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ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

/]

on being an employer of choice and continues to attract

The National Treasury places a high priority

highly skilled individuals who perform well in the highly
challenging and vibrant working environment. This annual

report captures the efforts of this dynamic team

Lesetja Kganyago: Director-General, National Treasury
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ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

The period covered by this annual report was marked by several economic and political factors. On the political front, it
was the first year of office for our fourth democratically elected government. To strengthen political oversight of public
resource allocation and service delivery, new ministries were created. For the finance family, the 2009 election brought
a new Minister of Finance — the first change in 13 years. The Money Bills Amendment Procedure Act (9 of 2009) was
also implemented and brought about adjustments to how Parliament and the National Treasury work together in the

management of the national budget.

On the economic side, we faced challenging times. Our economy briefly went into a recession, the first since 1992. Though
South Africa fared better than most industrialised countries, the recession took its toll, evidenced by the loss of 870 000
jobs in 2009. The economy is on the mend, but the recovery remains moderate and job creation is likely to be fragile in
the short term. The fiscal stimulus, rising public employment and the expanded public works programme reduced the
impact of the recession on jobs. Many of those who have lost jobs have had their fall in earnings cushioned by payments
from the Unemployment Insurance Fund (UIF).

We continued to monitor the impact of the economic crisis on government finances and ensured that government
responded appropriately. Monetary and fiscal policies provided significant support to the economy during this tough
time. The South African Reserve Bank cut interest rates by five percentage points.

Government spending increased, reaching 34.1 per cent of GDP in 2009/10. Much of this spending went to health care,
education and social grants, areas that benefit the poor. The increase in expenditure happened as tax revenue fell due to
a weak economy, and this meant we had to fund a relatively bigger share of the budget through borrowings. As a result,
our fiscal deficit rose to 6.7 per cent in 2009/10 and is expected to be 6.2 per cent in 2010/2011.

Government is committed to reducing debt levels as the economy improves and generates more tax revenue. Our debt
as a percentage of GDP remains low relative to many developed economies, although it is in line with high-growth
developing countries. As the world recovers from the recession, those countries with low levels of debt will be best placed
to take advantage of growth opportunities.

Despite the unfavourable macroeconomic environment, Moody’s upgraded South Africa’s long-term foreign currency
rating to A3 from Baa1, maintaining a stable outlook. Fitch and Standard and Poor’s maintained our credit ratings at BBB+,
while the outlook from both agencies remains negative.

Government has invested heavily in capital and major infrastructure projects, and the Infrastructure Delivery Improvement
Programme continues to assist in enhancing infrastructure planning, especially by provinces. The appraisal framework
developed by the Budget Office is also being rolled out, and will result in better capital planning, more efficient budget
allocations and improved capital expenditure.

Government recognises the need to do more with less, and maximise the value of every rand spent. Detecting and
preventing fraud in the procurement system is an essential part of ensuring value for money. In support of this, we have
created the specialised audit services unit, which has begun providing forensic investigation and consultancy services to

different entities on tender-related issues.



The National Treasury also continued to support state-owned entities and development finance institutions. Guarantees
of R231.3 billion were approved, of which R74.2 billion had been used by the end of the fiscal year.

Work to align the revised Preferential Procurement Regulations with the aims of the Broad-Based Black Economic
Empowerment Act, (53 of 2003) (B-BBEEA) continued. The draft revised Preferential Procurement Regulations were
published in the national and all provincial gazettes for public comments. Comments from all parties will be collated and
the revised draft will be submitted for consideration during 2010.

Treasury places a high premium on assisting municipalities to improve financial management and achieve better audit
outcomes. Targeted municipalities were assessed for readiness for internal audit, which will also ensure that early warning
signals are detected, allowing for timeous intervention.

On the international front, South Africa continued to play a leading role in promoting regional integration through
the Southern African Development Community (SADC) and the Southern African Customs Union (SACU). South Africa
successfully hosted the first meeting of the 12th replenishment of the African Development Fund (ADF) in Cape Town,
where it expressed its support for an early and strong replenishment of ADF resources. The National Treasury also co-
chaired G20 working group on the reform of the International Monetary Fund (IMF) and the experts group on financial
inclusion during the period under review.

The National Treasury places a high priority on being an employer of choice and continues to attract highly skilled
individuals who perform well in the highly challenging and vibrant working environment. This annual report captures the
efforts of this dynamic team

L
Lesetja Kganyago

Director-General
National Treasury
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THE MINISTRY

Minister Pravin Gordhan, in the 2009/10 financial year, assumed his position as Finance Minister in a difficult economic
environment. While Deputy Minister Nene had been part of the finance family since November 2008, the past financial
year was their first full year in the office together under the government of President Jacob Zuma. These changes brought
a fresh perspective, a new vision and a different way of doing things to the Ministry. Closer collaboration and cohesion
will form part of policy direction going forward, especially regarding inclusive growth, job creation, and poverty reduction.

While the 2008/09 financial period ended with uncertainty, 2009/10 ended with tentative positive signs of a slowly
recovering economy, both domestically and globally. Tough decisions taken in past years greatly benefited the country
during the recession. The stable macroeconomic environment coupled with a counter-cyclical fiscal position ensured
that the country weathered the storm better than major world economies. Consequently, social expenditure could be
expanded even during the difficult economic period, shielding poorer households from the worst effects of the recession.

The success of the Ministry is rooted in the Treasury's ability to prudently manage public finances. Ably led by Director-
General Lesetja Kganyago, the Treasury team continued to set an example for all in the public sector, evidenced by the
quality of decisions taken and policy choices exercised. The department also ensured that continuity and leadership
were maintained during the period of change. The transition of political leadership, coupled with a volatile economic
environment, was smoothly handled without negative consequences.

Both Minister Gordhan and Deputy Minister Nene are actively engaged in several diverse international forums to advance
the South African and African agenda. This ranges from the South African Customs Union (SACU) and African Development
Bank, to the G20 forums and others hosted by the OECD, World Bank and other multi-lateral institutions.

The National Treasury remains an eminently professional and effective organisation. With dedicated and competent
people who take pride in their work, it continues to maintain close and coordinated working relationships, and provide
the Ministry and government more generally with sound advice.

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10
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INTERNATIONAL VISITS UNDERTAKEN BY THE MINISTER OF FINANCE,
PRAVIN GORDHAN, DURING THE 2009/10 FINANCIAL YEAR

29 May 09 France
13-15 July 09 Nigeria
19-21 August 09 Angola
3-6 September 09 UK

17-18 September 09 Swaziland
22-27 September 09 USA

30 September 09 — 7 October 09  Turkey

5 November - 10 November 09 Scotland

5-10 January 10 India
26 January 10— 1 February 10
1-6 March 10 UK

Switzerland

OECD Forum on Tax Administration

C10 Meetings

State Visit with President Zuma

G20 Finance Ministers and Central Bank Governors Meetings
19th SACU Council Meeting

G20 Leaders Summit

IMF / World Bank Annual meetings

G20 Finance Ministers and Central Bank Governors Meetings
Pravasi Bharatiya Samman Award ceremony

WEF Meetings

Accompanied President Zuma on a State Visit

INTERNATIONAL VISITS UNDERTAKEN BY THE DEPUTY MINISTER OF
FINANCE, NHLANHLA NENE, MP, DURING THE 2009/10 FINANCIAL YEAR

Date Country
29 - 30 March 09 Swaziland
22 - 28 April 09 USA

04 -09 June 09 Egypt
23-26June 09 France
20-21 August 09 Lesotho
11 - 12 September 09 Tunisia

30 September-02 October09 | Cyprus
03 - 07 October 09 Turkey

27 -30 March 10 Singapore

Meeting
SADC Extra-ordinary Meeting
IMF /World Bank Spring Meetings
Annual Meetings of the AU Conference of Ministers of Economy
and Finance, and ECA Conference of Africa Ministers of Finance,
Planning and Economic Development
OECD Ministerial Council Meeting
9th Council of Ministers Meeting of the Eastern and Southern
Africa Anti-Money Laundering Group
10th Meeting of the Governors Consultative Committee of the
African Development Bank
Commonwealth Finance Ministers Annual Meeting
IMF/World Bank Annual Meetings
Signing Ceremony between Old Mutual Holdings LTD and
Ntsimbintle Mining
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MISSION STATEMENT

VISION

National Treasury is the custodian of the nation’s financial resources. We hold ourselves accountable to the nation to
discharge our responsibilities professionally and with humility, with the aim of promoting growth and prosperity for all.

We aspire to excellence in the quality of our analysis, our advice and the execution of our financial management
responsibilities. We aim to realise the full potential of South Africa’s economy and people and to mobilise the resources of
the state, business enterprises and the wider community in a partnership of trust and mutual respect.

MISSION AND OBJECTIVES

National Treasury aims to promote economic development, good governance, social progress and rising living standards
through accountable, economic, efficient, equitable and sustainable management of South Africa’s public finances.

We endeavour to advance economic growth, broad-based empowerment, progressive realisation of human rights and
the elimination of poverty. We are responsible for preparing a sound and sustainable national Budget and an equitable
division of resources among the three spheres of government.

We strive to raise fiscal resources equitably and efficiently and to manage government’s financial assets and liabilities
soundly. We promote transparency and effective financial management.

VALUES

As custodians of the nation'’s financial resources, the National Treasury acknowledges the authority of Parliament through
whom we are accountable to the nation. We value teamwork, sound planning and enthusiasm and strive continually to
improve the quality, accuracy and reliability of our service delivery.

Our people are our most valued assets. We seek to be an employer of choice, we invest in the education and training of
our staff, we cultivate a learning and consultative environment, we make use of the best available technological support

and we aim to mobilise the full potential of our people.

In our dealings with the public and with our colleagues we act transparently and with integrity, showing respect and
demonstrating fairness and objectivity.

In achieving these things, we will honour the faith that the South African public has placed in us.
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MINISTER’S STATEMENT ON POLICY AND COMMITMENT

1

but the Treasury team showed resilience and dedication

The past year was challenging in many respects
and strategic agility— concepts that have come to characterise
the fibre of the hard-working public servants.

7

Pravin Gordhan: Minister of Finance



MINISTER’S STATEMENT ON POLICY AND COMMITMENT

South Africa is well on its way to economic recovery. We can say with confidence that our macroeconomic policies helped
us weather the global financial crisis relatively well and that financial sector regulatory standards helped ensure that our
banking system remained unscathed.

One of the key lessons to be drawn from the crisis is that the current patterns of growth, income distribution, regulation
and governance cannot be relied upon to meet South Africa’s developmental needs. Our country’s future depends on us
placing our economy on a higher growth trajectory, characterised by higher levels of job creation and an economy that
has room for all those who are able and willing to work.

The 2010 Budget outlined a growth path that benefits all, especially the youth who bear a disproportionately higher burden
of unemployment. Youth unemployment is unacceptably high and that is why President Jacob Zuma's administration wants
to accelerate job creation for young people through various measures, including improved supply of information about
the labour market to job seekers, skills development, and the expansion of public employment programmes. In addition,
consultations are underway on the possible introduction of a wage subsidy to encourage employers to hire young workers.

To maximise resources available for our priorities, we have intensified the focus on improving financial planning and

management and building our capacity to identify and reduce corruption.

A cornerstone of President Zuma's administration is the acceleration of the pace of service delivery. The administration has
adopted a collective approach to doing this and we have committed ourselves to finding creative and lasting solutions.
Additionally, the new outcomes approach will highlight areas of weakness, helping improve on our performance.

The 2009 Medium Term Budget Policy Statement reinforced government’s intention to lower the cost of doing business
in South Africa, while managing risks in a volatile international environment. We will continue to advance the move to
prudential regulation of foreign exposure, while capital flow management will also be improved and macroeconomic
and financial stability maintained. South Africa will continue with the reform of foreign exchange control legislation and
regulation and, in so doing, reduce the red tape around doing business internationally.

Investmentin first FIFAWorld Cup to be held on African soil represents a considerable long-term investment in the country’s
development. The event has also been an excellent opportunity for the promotion of South Africa as an investment and
a tourist destination, and a gateway to the rest of the continent. Our success in hosting the tournament has contributed
significantly to changing negative perceptions of the African continent.

On international engagements, we remain resolute in finding solutions that address our unique challenges. As the only
African country permanently represented in the G20, we are mindful of the opportunity and the responsibility we have to
promote an African agenda on the international stage.

With global growth likely to remain weak for some time, we will continue to make and follow through with bold policy
decisions in partnership with business and labour, to accelerate and broaden our country’s growth. Everybody has a part
to play in this effort, and | am optimistic that we will all take full advantage of the opportunities afforded by an inclusive
growth strategy steered by the President.

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10
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My sincere thanks and gratitude go to National Treasury Director-General and his staff for welcoming me and working
together in charting the course through tumultuous economic waters. The past year was challenging in many respects
but the Treasury team showed resilience, dedication and strategic agility— qualities that have come to characterise the

fibre of these hard-working public servants.

"

m“‘““

Praviférdhan

Minister of Finance
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LEGISLATIVE MANDATE

The National Treasury has a legislative mandate to promote the national government’s fiscal policy and the coordination
of macroeconomic policy; coordinate intergovernmental financial and fiscal relations; manage the budget preparation
and enforce transparency and effective management in respect of revenue and expenditure, assets and liabilities, public

entities and constitutional institutions.
PARLIAMENTARY SERVICES

The Minister of Finance as the political principal of the department regards the active collaboration with Parliament as
vital. Consequently, National Treasury continued to have sustained relations during the period under review through
interactions with Parliamentary committees. Chief among the committees that the department works with is the Portfolio
Committee on Finance (now called Standing Committee on Finance); other committees include the Select Committee on

Finance, Joint Budget Committee and the Standing Committee on Public Accounts.

At the core of maintaining this relationship is the Parliamentary Services Office, tasked with ensuring a transparent and
cooperative working relationship with Parliament. The Office is also a vehicle through which financial policies and pieces

of legislation are presented to Parliament for consideration and approval.

During the period under review, the Parliamentary Services Office maintained a transparent working relationship through
coordinating work processes between policy makers and public representatives. Information continued to flow between
the Ministry through Cabinet to Parliament and vice versa.

Other clients of this office include but are not limited to:
« Members of Parliament;

- Parliamentary Committees;

- Parliamentary Administrative Staff;

- Civil society institutions; and

+ Members of the public.

The Parliamentary Services Office also maintains collegial and cooperative relationships on behalf of the Ministry with
political structures as well as offices of the Presiding Officers and Leader of Government Business.



LEGISLATION ENACTED

National Treasury annually tables legislation in Parliament, which can be categorised as follows:
Legislation conceptualised and prepared in-house
Legislation prepared by bodies like the Financial Services Board and the South African Reserve Bank, with National
Treasury providing policy direction

Tax legislation prepared jointly with the South African Revenue Service, with National Treasury providing policy direction.

1. Western Cape Inherited Debt Relief Act, 2009 (Act No. 7 of 2009)
Bill enacted: Western Cape Inherited Debt Relief Bill [B6 — 2009]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 19 April 2009
Published in Government Gazette No. 32149 dated 21 April 2009

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

2. Division of Revenue Act, 2009 (Act No. 12 of 2009)
Bill enacted: Division of Revenue Bill [B4 — 2009]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 3 April 2009
Published in Government Gazette No. 32106 dated 3 April 2009

3. Appropriation Act, 2009 (Act No. 16 of 2009)
Bill enacted: Appropriation Bill [B 5 — 2009]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 28 July 2009
Published in Government Gazette No.32461 dated 30 July 2009

4. Taxation Laws Amendment Act, 2009 (Act No. 17 of 2009)
Bill enacted: Taxation laws Amendment Bill [B 10 — 2009]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 29 September 2009
Published in Government Gazette No. 32610 dated 30 September 2009

5. Taxation Laws Second Amendment Act, 209 (Act No. 18 of 2009)
Bill enacted: Taxation Laws Second Amendment Bill [B11 — 2009]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 29 September 2009
Published in Government Gazette No. 32611 dated 30 September 2009

6. Adjustments Appropriation Act, 2009 (Act No. 21 of 2009)
Bill enacted: Adjustments Appropriation Bill [B 13 — 2009]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 26 November 2009
Published in Government Gazette No. 32752 dated 27 November 2009

7. Division of Revenue Act, 2010 (Act No. 1 of 2010)
Bill enacted: Division of Revenue Bill [B 4 — 2010]
English text signed by the President. Assented to 31 March 2010
Published in Government Gazette No. 33081 dated 31 March 2010

15



PROGRAMME 1
ADMINISTRATION




PROGRAMME 1
ADMINISTRATION

Purpose: Provide strategic management and administrative support to National Treasury, giving managerial leadership
to the work of the department.

Measurable objective: to provide effective leadership, management and administrative support to the core business
divisions of the National Treasury, through the continuous refinement of organisational strategy and structure, to ensure

compliance with applicable legislation and alignment with appropriate best practice.

The programme is divided into four subprogrammes:

-« The Minister subprogramme provides for the Office of the Minister of Finance and includes parliamentary and
ministerial support services.

-« The Deputy Minister subprogramme provides for the Office of the Deputy Minister of Finance and related support
services.

- The Management subprogramme incorporates the Office of the Director-General and related support services.

« The Corporate Services subprogramme supports the administration and effective operation of the department.

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

RECENT OUTPUTS

The Corporate Services division develops, maintains and implements the department’s governance framework, aimed at
the creation of a productive and creative working environment that enhances National Treasury’s effectiveness.

Corporate Services consists of the following units: Information Technology (IT), Facilities Management, Strategic Projects
and Support, Security Management, Financial Management, Internal Audit and Human Resources (HR).

During the year under the review, the division introduced cost saving initiatives to reduce expenditure on goods and
services by 30 per cent over the next three years. These initiatives include the reduction in the use of consultants in IT
and Internal Audit.

Service delivery continued to improve and the Human Resources team successfully reduce the vacancy rate to 6.75
per cent, exceeding the target of 8 per cent. The recruitment turnaround time has also been reduced to three weeks.
Improving the skills of our employees remains a priority and in this regard HR ran successful leadership and training
programmes and also exceeded the target of an average 5 training days per annum per employee. Improvement in the

performance management system meant employees were kept informed of their actual performance.

The Financial Management team processed all transactions before 31 March 2010, meaning that National Treasury
closed its financial books ahead of all national and provincial departments. All Drawings and ENE submissions complied
with set governance targets. During the review period, fifteen governance policies were approved by the Governance
Review Committee.

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10
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The Facilities team secured additional accommodation, a new PA system and a new generator for power backup purposes.
All lifts at the 240 Vermeulen Street building, as well as the emergency and fire systems, were audited.

The strategy and new structure of the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) chief directorate, which includes the Security
directorate, was approved. The unit developed a comprehensive ERM strategy, including a fraud prevention plan, and

successfully completed risk assessments for 70 per cent of the department.

The Internal Audit unit appointed relationship managers and is currently finalising a protocol document that will govern
the work of the unit. Spending on consultants was reduced, and audits requested by management were successfully
concluded.

The IT team ensured a marked improvement in the ICT infrastructure, operations and systems. A collaboration and

publication strategy has been developed, and a number of solutions have been developed and implemented.

The Paper Trail Project was finalised and implemented. The design of the E-signatures system was completed and
implementation is underway. A fileplan system was implemented in 90 per cent of the department and has improved
records management. The disposal of obsolete contract management files was approved and a cost effective system
for archiving files was created. A benchmarking session was held with other government departments intending to
introduce similar systems of records management. To improve project management capabilities, 37 employees were
trained in project management.

The Legal Services unit provides comprehensive legal support to the department and ministry. It managed more than a
hundred litigations, and continued to provide, procure and manage professional legal advice for the department. The unit
also oversaw the passage of legislation proposed by the department and made comments on legislation proposals from
other government departments. The unit ensured sufficient capacity to respond to emerging priorities and risks through
appointments in corporate law and public private partnerships.

The Communications unit continued to provide a reliable media liaison service to both the department and ministry. The
unit also managed the editing, layout and design and printing of all documents. Key events handled were the Medium
Term Budget Policy Statement in October and the annual Budget tabled in February. Other events managed by the unit
include study tours from tertiary institutions and a number of countries, including Tanzania, Uganda, Nepal and China; the
Africa Emerging Markets conference; the meeting of the Committee of Ten; and the Third Regional Workshop on African
Debt Management and Bond Markets. An awareness campaign for the RSA Retail Savings Bond yielded positive results
and contributed to increased investments in these savings products. The unit also responded to a high volume of public
queries on a range of issues related to the work of the department.
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PROGRAMME 2
PUBLIC FINANCE AND BUDGET MANAGEMENT

Purpose: Provide analysis and advice on fiscal policy and public finances, intergovernmental financial relations,
and expenditure planning and priorities. Manage the annual budget process and provide public finance
management support.

Measurable objective: To promote growth, social development and poverty reduction through sound fiscal and financial
policies, and the effective, efficient and appropriate allocation of public funds. Specific aims are to:
Prepare a national budget that gives effect to government’s economic, fiscal, social and developmental goals.
Publish the Budget Review, Estimates of National Expenditure (ENE), Medium Term Budget Policy Statement (MTBPS) and
appropriation legislation containing relevant, accurate and clear financial information, and associated indicators of
service delivery and performance.
Contribute to public policy and programme development, sound planning, budgeting and project management,
including increased support to public finance reform in provinces and municipalities.
Support improved monitoring and analysis of public expenditure and service delivery, and the appropriate use of
public and private financial resources for social and economic development and infrastructure investment.
Ensure that all official development assistance (ODA) provided to government is aligned with budget priorities and is
channelled through South Africa’s public finance management system.

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS
RECENT OUTPUTS

Budget Office

The Budget Office coordinates the budget process, provides advice to the Ministers’ Committee on the Budget, and
monitors fiscal and public expenditure trends.

The division produced on time the framework for the MTBPS, the Budget Review and an estimate of the structural balance.
The budget documentation was comprehensive and remains widely respected for its quality of coverage, including an
improved set of measurable objectives and trends-based performance indicators.

The Fiscal Policy unit monitors economic and fiscal trends, and advises the Minister of Finance on policy options and the budget
framework. It also plays a central role in the development of government's framework for the financing of infrastructure.

In the 2009/10 financial year, the unit continued to monitor the impact of the economic crisis on the fiscus and thus
ensured that government took appropriate measures to deal with the effects of the crisis. The framework for appraising
capital spending proposals was developed and is being rolled out. Together with the training in the appraisal of capital
project, this will result in better capital planning, more efficient budget allocations and improved capital expenditure.



The Expenditure Planning unit manages the medium-term expenditure framework (MTEF) budget process, which

culminates in the publication of the ENE and the main Appropriation Bill tabled on the day of the budget. The
unit also manages the in-year adjustments process. The Adjustments Budget is tabled together with the MTBPS.
Parliament’s Money Bills Amendment Procedure and Related Matters Act of 2009 was implemented for the first time
during the 2010 Budget process and National Treasury was able to respond appropriately to the recommendations
of parliamentary committees.

During the reporting period, the unit improved value for money in government spending, resulting in savings of R25.6
billion by national and provincial government departments. Cost containment guidelines were developed, particularly
focused on newly established departments and those being reorganised. The unit led the work on budgets relating to the
reorganisation of government departments and the shifting of functions between departments after the 2009 elections.
The unit also issued a guideline on budget programme structures. Through the efforts of the unit, improvements were
evident in the quality of information about the performance of government and public entities.

The Public Finance Statistics unit produces all fiscal data and public finance statistics used in National Treasury publications.
The main focus is to improve transparency and accountability by providing the public with information on government
revenue and expenditure outcomes. The data is also submitted to international organisations such as the International
Monetary Fund.

For the first time, the unit published a consolidated government account in the 2010 Budget, including information on
payments and revenues of all entities controlled by the state or largely financed by government either through taxes,
levies and administrative or service fees, or by direct transfers from the budget.

The unit also continued to improve the quality of existing databases, data collection processes, and models used for the
reporting of data in the consolidated government account. Combined with the ongoing capacity building initiatives at
national and provincial departments, these efforts have resulted in improved accuracy of the data.

During the reporting period, the unit produced an updated version of the Reference Guide to the Economic Reporting
Format (ERF), which together with corresponding classification circulars, is used by departments to classify transactions
for reporting purposes. Together with the Office of the Accountant General (OAG) and Public Administration Leadership
and Management Academy (PALAMA), the unit also introduced a new training programme on the Standard Chart of
Accounts (SCOA) and trained 1 507 national and provincial government officials. These initiatives are expected to translate
into better quality information published in the consolidated government account.

The International Development Cooperation (IDC), a unit responsible for coordinating and managing official development
assistance (ODA), has updated the framework and procedural guidelines for the management of ODA. The revised
framework will lead to better coordination and management of ODA by aligning ODA with the budget, skills development,
and better monitoring and reporting systems.
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The unit focused on:

- Acquiring resources in support of interventions that address developmental challenges and priorities of South Africa.

- Increasing funding for infrastructure projects from development finance partners including the European Investment
Bank, German Development Bank, and the French Development Bank, to help cushion the impact of the global
financial crisis on government’s reduced revenue.

- Improving the quality of information on ODA, especially the assistance that is “in kind” and therefore does not flow
through government accounts.

- Developing plans to ensure that ODA partners comply with frameworks on aid effectiveness such as the Paris Declaration.

ODA programmes worth more than R3 billion over the next three years were negotiated during the year and they are all
subject to South Africa’s financial and procurement requirements. Key programmes include support for primary education,
the legislature, restorative justice and job creation.

The IDC also sought to align ODA with priorities outlined in the budget. This included improved reporting on ODA through
the ENE (2009/10) and the use of ODA information from government departments in planning the MTEF. The information
system on development cooperation is being upgraded so it can also be used as a management system.

In response to requests from other African countries, the unit prepared a framework for trilateral cooperation, which
allows donors to fund South African projects in other countries. It also worked with the Department of International
Relations and Cooperation to access additional resources for such initiatives.

The Public Entities Governance (PEGU) unit implements the recommendations of the public entities governance framework
review. A key focus for the unit during the review period was the roll-out of a budgeting framework for all public entities.
The extension of budget planning and oversight to all government agencies and public entities will distinguish between
wholly-owned entities, those that are reliant on transfers from the fiscus, and entities that fund their operations without
recourse to the fiscus.

The unit assisted with the preparation of consolidated financial accounts, maintenance of databases of budgets, and the

relevant administrative records of the general government sector, including public entities.

In support of a sustainable fiscus, Public-Sector Personnel Policy provides analysis on the wage bill of government and
works with other Budget Group units to ensure that wages and employment growth are effectively budgeted for and
are consistent with the efficient delivery of government services. It also consults departments on budgets and policy,
including support for the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA) during public-service wage talks.

Public Finance

The Public Finance division advises the Minister of Finance on sectoral policies and departmental spending programmes;

evaluates budget submissions by national departments, public entities, state-owned enterprises and constitutional



institutions; monitors spending and service delivery trends, and supports improvements to financial administration,

including the implementation of the Standard Chart of Accounts and compliance with the Public Finance Management
Act (PFMA).

The Administrative Services unit oversees the finances and budgets of a number of central government departments

and entities. Key areas of work in 2009/10 included:

Department of International Relations and Cooperation: The unit was a member of the working group that advised
the Minister of Finance on options for funding the construction of a building to house the Pan African Parliament.
Department of Home Affairs: Helped the department roll out a new access control system to 34 ports of entry in
preparation for the 2010 FIFA World Cup. The new system will be extended to the remaining 38 ports of entry in the
following financial year.

Stats SA: Assisted in budgeting and planning for household surveys, including the living conditions survey and
the next national census (2011). Helped Stats SA find a new head office and the data processing centre, for which
different funding models, including PPS, are being considered.

National Treasury: Supported initiatives by the South African Revenue Service to strengthen capacity, modernise systems
and improve project management; provided support for funding initiatives of the Neighbourhood Development
Partnership Grant; and assisted in the establishment of the Government Pension Administration Agency.
Department of Public Works: Participated in an interdepartmental task team advising on the sustainability of the
Independent Development Trust (IDT) and a new funding model for the trust.

Department for Women, Children and People with Disabilities: Advised the Minister on the budget and progress in
setting up the department.

The Justice and Protection Services (JPS) unit oversees planning, expenditure and service delivery by departments in this

sector. In 2009/10, the unit provided technical assistance and expertise on a number of projects, including:

The transformation of correctional facilities (Department of Correctional Services) into a 45 hour, seven-day- a-week
operations.

The amalgamation of secret services into a single State Security Agency.

The transfer of the investigative arm of the former Directorate of Special Operations from the Department of Justice
and Constitutional Development to the Priority Crime Investigations Directorate in the Department of Police.

The shifting of the budget of the Commission for Gender Equality to the Department of Women, Children and
People with Disabilities.

The development of a framework on project management reporting to help monitor capital modernisation projects
of the Department of Defence.

Oversight of the special arms procurement programme of the South African National Defence Force (SANDF) and
integration of the special defence account allocation into the relevant programmes.

The Education and Related Departments unit monitors and advises government on several functions, largely implemented

by province. During the year, the unit’s efforts focused on supporting the development of policy and funding norms,

improved monitoring of service delivery, and the costing of services.
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The highlight for the year was the splitting of the Department of Education into Basic Education and Higher Education

and Training and the shifting of responsibility for skills development from the Department of Labour to the Department
of Higher Education and Training.

The unit also worked on:

Education: Monitoring and evaluation of national standards for school funding, assistance and advice on developing
norms and standards for school infrastructure, on shifting responsibility for the FET colleges to the national sphere,
which started in 2009 and is ongoing, and on processes to enable these colleges to access funding for bursaries
from the National Skills Fund.

- Arts and Culture: The establishment of a Language Practitioners’ Council, oversight of the Community Library
Services conditional grant, and developing norms and standards for library services.

- Sport and Recreation: Monitored and evaluated the conditional grants to facilitate the participation in sport by
as many South Africans as possible, grants for school sport, and the 2010 FIFA World Cup legacy projects. It also
advised the department on the support and oversight of sports federations and entities.

-+ Labour: Termination of contributions to the fund set up to stabilise the Sheltered Employment Factories Temporary
Employees Pension Fund; review of Department of Labour’s public-private partnership deal for the supply of IT services
to the department; proposals on skills, training and education as part of proposals to reduce youth unemployment.

- Inter-sectoral Policy Support: Assisted with the design of a performance-based funding model for Phase Il of the
Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP); compiled a concept note on the expansion of opportunities for the
EPWP’s social sector; proposed changes to the funding model of the Community Work Programme and assisted
with the transfer of the programme to the Department of Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs.

The Health and Social Development unit analyses overall expenditure, makes medium-term expenditure

recommendations, monitors and advises on sectoral and policy matters.

The unit supported the Department of Health on various projects that resulted in substantial additional budget
allocations to the sector over the MTEF. Amongst these were new guidelines for the treatment of HIV/AIDS (pregnant
women and TB patients) and support for an exercise on the long-term cost of HIV/AIDS treatment (Aids2031). It also
provided support for the introduction of the OSD for doctors, dentists and related professionals. It also worked with
provincial Treasuries to stabilise budgets of provincial Departments of Health.

The unit also worked on several initiatives for the financing of health projects; commissioned a review of hospital
funding which proposed a new approach based on case-mix adjusted outputs/workloads; participated in a Ministerial
advisory committee on National Health Insurance; researched and developed proposals for a new approach to the
health component of equitable share formula; supported the department of Social Development, including on the
modeling of the extension of the Child Support Grant to children up to their 18th birthday; contributed to the drafting
of a policy paper on social relief of distress and a consolidated paper on social security; assisted the South African
Security Agency (SASSA) with the management of payment contracts for social grants as well as the cancelation of
dormant accounts for social grant beneficiaries and the recoupment of unused funds.

The Economic Services unit analyses policy proposals, funding requests and expenditure plans of departments, state

enterprises and agencies. The focus is on economic development outcomes, employment and capital investment



plans. Environmental protection, land reform, agricultural and industrial development, support for distressed sectors

and regulatory oversight was central to the work programme.

Activities over the past year included:

Transfers of programmes between departments and/or agencies

The establishment of the Economic Development Department

The creation of the Agricultural Land Holding Account

The assessment of turnaround strategies for Denel and SAA

The development of the business case for the foot-and-mouth vaccine facility

The Urban Development and Infrastructure unit analyses the budgets and expenditures of national departments and

their associated public entities involved in infrastructure provision. The unit focuses on policies and programmes

for the delivery of network and social infrastructure in sectors such as transport, electricity, water and sanitation,

telecommunications, municipal infrastructure and human settlements.

Specific areas of focus in the reporting period included:

Transport: Review of Public Transport Infrastructure and Systems grant; engagement with cities on the financing of
Bus Rapid Transit systems; engagement on intercity Bus Subsidies and the creation of a Provincial Transport Operating
grant; support on the legal challenge to the RAF Amendment Act and review of the no-fault policy; engagement on
delivery of 2010 FIFA World Cup transport infrastructure and buses; review of the feasibility of the Moloto corridor and
the Mpumalanga Coal Haulage network institutional and funding arrangements.

Housing: Investigated and advised on the development of policy aimed at addressing gaps in national housing needs,
taking into account different levels of affordability; worked on the transfer of the Sanitation function from Water Affairs to
Human Settlements; and advised on Sectional Titles Scheme Management Bill and Community Scheme Ombuds bill.
Water Affairs and Forestry: Contributed to development of the water for growth and development strategy, water board
tariffs, and the transfer of Forestry to the Department of Agriculture and Sanitation to the Department of Human
Settlements; engaged with Trans-Caldon Tunnel Authority (TCTA) and water resources section on large projects, in
particular the De Hoop Dam project; assisted in the establishment of the on-site water and sanitation grant mechanism.
Provincial and Local Government: Analysed MIG funding, and the determination of Free Basic Electricity requirements
in terms of the equitable share funding formula; continued discussions on the Traditional Leadership issue; disaster
management arrangements for 2010; supported to Treasury's intergovernmental relations division on provincial and
local government issues.

Energy: Was a member of the committees on wind energy, national electricity emergency response team (NERT),
Biofuels task team, and various work-groups of the Interdepartmental Task Team on Energy (IDTT-E); assisted in
securing multilateral loans for Eskom build programme; participated in G20 and OECD initiatives on inefficient fuel
subsidies as well as the Nersa public hearings on Multi-Year Price Determination (MYPD).

Communications: Discussed with the South African Broadcasting Corporation and Sentech how best to address their
weaknesses in corporate governance and financial management, continued engagement on the rollout of digital
television and specifications, standards and the manufacturing of set-top boxes; participated in discussions on the
role of ICT in schools and the repositioning of the Universal Service and Access Agency of South Africa (USAASA);
continued discussions on broadband policy and reduction of the cost of communication; and continued discussions

with ICASA on how the regulator can fund its own operations.
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The Project Management Unit for Social Security and Retirement Reform (PMU) provides administrative support to the
inter-departmental (IDTT) task team on social security and retirement reform. It manages and co-ordinates research,
analysis and technical advice on social security and retirement reform on behalf of the task team, National Treasury and
the Minister of Finance. It is also responsible for co-ordinating communication and engagement with stakeholders,
media, as well as the consideration of public comments on reform options.

During 2009/10, the unit circulated a consolidated government paper, coordinated the work of several interdepartmental
sub-committees and research projects, and advised the Inter-Ministerial Committee responsible for overseeing the

reform of social security and retirement.

Technical and Management Support

Technical and Management Support is a subprogramme of Programme 2.

The work of the Technical Assistance Unit (TAU) is reflected in the number of projects (89) supported during the 2009/10
financial year. At the end of the financial year, TAU was supporting 60 projects, had completed seven, and initial
engagement or early diagnostics had already begun on 22 projects.

The following projects were supported:
City of Johannesburg — Johannesburg Social Housing Company (JOSHCO): Results-based business planning.
Local Government and Traditional Affairs, KZN (now Co-operative Governance and Traditional Affairs): Support on
Evaluation and Strategic Planning, and Municipal Progression Model.
National Department of Education (now Basic Education): Development of norms and standards for infrastructure.
Agricultural Research Council: Review of the business plan for a foot and mouth disease facility.
Eastern Cape Office of the Premier: Development of a Service Delivery Model and Business Process Mapping Report.
Government Communication and Information Services: Provided programme and operational management
support to the Thusong Service Centres.
Department of Environmental Affairs: Provided institutional and programme development to the Integrated
Coastal Management (ICM) unit.
Department of Transport: Helped develop a medium-term strategic plan, service delivery model, and the
alignment of the organisational structure.
TAU continued to build capacity in government and share information about proven methodologies and
experiences. The Project Management Interest Group (PMIG) is well established and the 17th session of the PMIG
took place on 9 March 2010.

The unit underwent a performance review and received positive feedback.

The 2010 FIFA World Cup unit provided support to the Minister and Deputy Minister of Finance, the Technical Co-ordination



Committee, Inter-Ministerial Committee and Organising Committee, regarding the hosting of the 2010 FIFA World Cup.

The unit provided support to departments and host cities on project management, cost control and the management
of contracts. It also worked with other agencies (Eskom, Telkom and Sentech) to ensure that quality services would be

provided during the event.

Four stadiums were completed in March 2009, in time for the 2009 FIFA Confederations Cup, and the remaining six
stadiums in December 2009. Public transport infrastructure was upgraded in the host cities, resulting in improved roads
and the purchase of buses. Construction at the major airports of entry was completed. SAPS purchased new equipment
and recruited additional personnel to ensure a secure event. These services were successfully tested during the 2009 FIFA

Confederations Cup.

The Public Private Partnership (PPP) unit ensures that PPPs are delivered in terms of approved legislation. It also provides
technical assistance to institutions in all spheres of government for the appraisal and procurement of PPPs. During
2009/10, the unit issued the revised standardised PPP contractual provisions for public comment. Comments will be
collated and a final revised document issued.

The unit provided contract management support to a number of PPP projects, including the Gautrain, which was
accelerated so the Airport-Sandton link could open in time for the 2010 World Cup, and Chapman's Peak Drive, which was
reopened for traffic after a lengthy closure.

Four PPPs were approved and two projects in the final stages of negotiations were put on hold by the implementing
departments. As a result, the target of six projects at implementation by the end of the review period could not be
reached. The Phalaborwa hospital project in Limpopo was put on hold because there was only one bidder for the project
and this lack of competition for this project warranted examination.

The unit also supported the Inter-Ministerial Committee on Energy (IMCE) regarding the purchase of energy by from the
Independent Power Producers, a process which is expected to begin in the next year.

Work also commenced on the five tertiary hospitals identified by the national Department of Health as potential PPPs.
The Development Bank of Southern Africa and the Industrial Development Corporation have agreed to finance the
five projects.

The Neighbourhood Development Programme unit administers the neighbourhood development partnership grant (NDPG),
which finances technical assistance to municipalities to develop proposals for property development in townships and
residential neighbourhoods. The NDPG also provides capital grants for the construction and/or upgrading of community
facilities and economic infrastructure. It strives to create a balance between township economic development and the
quality of life of residents. The NDPG targets about 54 per cent of the country’s poorest people, with R5.2 billion allocated
to metros and secondary cities, and R3.6 billion allocated to rural large and small towns.
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The unit's achievements include:
A portfolio of 90 awards (valued at R8.8 billion) in 57 municipalities.
Expenditure of more than R597.9 million, or 90 per cent of budgeted expenditure during the review period.
Facilitation of 106 projects since the inception of the NDPG in 2006.
Review of the NDPG's grant framework, award structure, information system, and monitoring and evaluation approach
to improve performance indicators and consolidate programme data and reporting.

The co-ordination of training programmes to enhance and streamline the process of NDPG management.

Neighbourhood development partnership grant

ey orf icatort 2006/07 | 2007/08 | 2008/09 | 2009/10

ey performance indicator Target ‘ Actual ‘ Target ‘ Actual ‘ Target ‘ Actual ‘ Target ‘ Actual
No. of projects granted award status 35 33 60 72 80 86 95 90
No. of projects commenced construction = = 2 4 7 27 30 47
Expenditure (technical assistance) (Rm) (Schedule 7) 50.0 00 638 38 8.0 676 1100 899
Expenditure (capital grant) (Rm) (Schedule 6) 0.0 00 2312 414 2890 1815 5510 5080
Expenditure (NDPG Total) (Rm) 50.0 0.0 2950 451 3740 249 661.0 5979

The Infrastructure Delivery Improvement Programme (IDIP) provides technical support to provinces for the planning and
management of infrastructure. IDIP also monitors and measures its impact on infrastructure planning, supply chain,
project, and finance management. Results thus far show considerable progress in the capacity of departments to budget,
plan and deliver infrastructure projects. The IDIP programme has been extended to 2013.

Key achievements during the review period include:
Assistance to provincial departments of education, health and public works, and the infrastructure units of some
provincial treasuries. The assistance included the deployment of 27 full-time technical advisors to nine provinces and one
to the national Department of Basic Education. Technical assistants were also deployed to these departments to provide
short-term assistance in specialised areas such as organisational development, change management, and planning.

Intergovernmental Relations

The Intergovernmental Relations (IGR) division coordinates fiscal relations between the national, provincial and local spheres
of government, an important function given that R345 billion or 50 per cent of non-interest expenditure in 2009/10 went
to provinces and municipalities. The bulk of this expenditure went to core programmes such as education, health care and
the provision of free basic municipal services.

The division coordinates inputs to the division of revenue, the annual Division of Revenue Bill and the development of the
framework for the management of conditional grants. During the reporting period the division published the Provincial
Budgets and Expenditure Review, which advances government’s commitment to report on the status of service delivery
and the intention to improve the lives of its citizens.



IGR also compiles consolidated provincial budgets and quarterly expenditure reports which provide parliament and

provincial legislatures with valuable data in their exercise of effective oversight and also strengthens the accountability of
accounting officers.

The division publishes quarterly reports on local government (Section 71 reports). From the fourth quarter of 2009/10, the
publication included for the first time a report on over- and under-expenditure, monthly actual expenditure and cash flow

statements for each municipality. All reports were published within agreed deadlines.

IGR also published regulations on municipal budgeting and reporting. For the 2009/10 Medium Term Revenue and
Expenditure Framework (MTREF), 24 of the targeted 27 large municipalities produced their budgets in the new format. The
remaining three will be included in the 2010/11 MTREF. Eleven other municipalities voluntarily produced their 2009/10
MTREF budgets in the new formats.

The division has an internet-based training programme on the essentials of budget formulation and analysis. The budget
formulation course attracted applications from 290 officials, 166 of whom completed the programme. There were fewer
than anticipated applications for the budget analysis course, with only 20 officials registering and successfully completing
the training.

IGR continues to ensure the effective use of financial resources, and recommended a delay of transfers to provinces which
failed to comply with the conditions of national grants.

A number of new provincial grants were introduced during the reporting period. These include the expanded
public works programme incentive grant, the public transport operations grant, the technical secondary schools
recapitalisation grant, the health disaster response (cholera) grant, and the housing disaster relief grant. The 2010 FIFA
World Cup host city operating grant and the expanded public works programme incentive grant for municipalities
were also introduced.

The local government fiscal framework has been amended to take into account the differences in the capacity of
large urban and smaller rural municipalities to deliver services. The municipal infrastructure grant was amended to
take into account differences in integrated planning, the leveraging of municipal resources to eradicate backlogs,
improved performance in developing integrated human settlements, and effective asset management for cities.
For rural municipalities, the amendments are meant to address infrastructure needs for basic services and rural
development.

Municipalities were advised on the provisions of section 12 of the Municipal Fiscal Powers and Functions Act (MFPFA),
which required all municipalities to apply to the Minister of Finance within two years after enactment of the MFPFA (i.e.
by 7 September 2009) for the continuation of any municipal tax, other than property rates, in order to avoid tax lapses.
All municipalities complied with this requirement, and municipalities were advised of the outcome of the preliminary
assessments during December 2009.
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PROGRAMME 3
ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

Purpose: Prudent management of government’s financial assets and liabilities.

Measurable objective: prudent cash and financial management; oversight of state-owned entities (SOEs); and optimal

management of government’s domestic and foreign debt.

There are six subprogrammes:
Management provides strategic guidance and direction to the overall programme, including managing the divisional budget.
Governance and Financial Analysis promotes the optimal allocation and use of financial resources and sound corporate
governance by SOEs, through financial oversight in accordance with government policy.
Sectoral Oversight promotes SOE restructuring and regulatory and financial oversight, by ensuring alignment with government
policy, conducting sectoral research, and providing required interventions where necessary.
Liability Management provides for government’s long-term funding needs, manages domestic and foreign debt, and
contributes to the development of domestic capital and retail markets.
Financial Operations provides for government’s short-term funding needs, the prudent management of cash in all spheres of
government, the efficient accounting for debt and investment transactions, the supply of reliable systems, and the provision
of quality information.

Strategy and Risk Management develops and maintains a risk management framework.

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

RECENT OUTPUTS

The division played a vital role in financing government’s gross borrowing requirement during the global economic crisis.
It also provided support to state-owned entities and development finance institutions to ensure that they delivered on
their development mandate.

Liability Management — Government’s gross borrowing requirement was revised upwards from R109.2 billion to R187.4 billion
and this was financed through short-term loans (R49.8 billion), domestic long-term loans (R132.4 billion) and long-term
international loans (R31.7 billion). This provided for an increase in cash balances of R26.3 billion. To enhance liquidity in the
market, bond issues were concentrated in existing benchmark bonds, with 64 per cent in fixed-income and 36 per cent
in inflation-linked bonds. As a result of lower investor demand, no buy-back and exchange transactions were entered into
during 2009/10. However, the 2008/09 switch programme reduced redemption over the period 2009/10 to 2011/12 by R20.3
billion per year. Debt service cost increased from 2.2 per cent to 2.3 per cent of GDP because of the higher gross borrowing

requirement. As part of the investor relations programme, two domestic and two foreign roadshows were conducted.

Financial Operations — Sound cash flow forecasting enabled the division to anticipate a revenue shortfall and adjust funding
levels accordingly. Intergovernmental cash coordination was also enhanced through opening accounts for public entities
with the Corporation for Public Deposits, out of which national and provincial governments used more than R12.4 billion
as bridging finance. By using these facilities national and provincial governments reduced their short-term borrowing
costs by 3 per cent.
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The division continued to roll out the new treasury management systems, while the foreign debt module was implemented

in September 2009 and ran parallel with existing systems to reduce the risks associated with the migration of data from

one system to another. The development of the domestic capital market module is in progress.

Strategy and Risk Management — Government continued its active debt management strategy in support of broader
macroeconomic objectives. The issuance of new debt is informed by market and credit risk guidelines, including risks

associated with the contingent liabilities arising out of loan guarantees issued to state-owned owned companies.

During the review period, government issued more Treasury bills and inflation-linked bonds in response to strong demand
for these instruments. This meant that debt without a fixed rate rose as proportion of total domestic debt to 36 percent,
exceeding the benchmark ratio of 30 percent non-fixed and 70 percent fixed rate. A strategy has been developed to re-
align the domestic debt portfolio to the benchmark. At 12.4 percent of gross debt, however, foreign debt was well within
the 20 — 25 percent benchmark.

Despite the unfavourable macroeconomic environment because of the global economic crisis, Fitch and Standard
and Poor’s maintained South Africa’s credit rating at BBB+ and left the outlook unchanged at negative. Meanwhile, R&l
removed the negative outlook and the rating was maintained at A- Moody’s, however, upgraded South Africa’s long-term
foreign currency rating to A3 from Baal, but changed the outlook from positive to stable. . The rationale for the upgrade
was South Africa’s resilience, strong macro-economic fundamentals, and manageable debt levels. The accumulation of
foreign exchange reserves which reduced SA's vulnerability to external factors also contributed to the upgrade.

In support of the state-owned entities, including development finance institutions, guarantees of R231.3 billion were
approved, of which R74.2 billion had been drawn down by the end of the review period. These guarantees (contingent
liabilities) plus net government debt amounted to 41 per cent of GDP during the review period.

Governance and Financial Analysis and Sectoral Oversight -National Treasury continued to monitor state-owned entities
and development finance institutions so as to timeously identify and address challenges. In particular, Treasury closely
monitored the progress made by state-owned companies whose debt had been guaranteed by government. A
standardised process for receiving, accessing, recording and monitoring guarantees is being developed.

A review of the administered prices and their impact on the economy and state-owned companies was initiated during the
year. The findings thereof will assist government to balance a number of factors, including the protection of consumers from
monopoly pricing, ensuring that SOEs remain financially sound, promotion of economic efficiency by ensuring that the pricing

of services reflects the costs of providing those services, and ensuring long-term supply based on adequate investment.

In support of the state-owned entities and development finance institutions the following initiatives were implemented:
- Approved a R14 billion guarantee for the SABC, of which R1 billion had been drawn by the end of the year and the balance
is subject to the SABC submitting to government a comprehensive strategy to improve the finances of the corporation.

- Approval was granted for Denel to drawdown R150 million against the R550 million guarantee. In addition, a transfer
payment of R192 million was made to Denel during December 2009 in terms of the government indemnity provided

to Denel Saab Aerostructures.



Plans are advanced for the Land Bank and the DBSA to implement the recommendations of the report on the review

of development finance institutions (DFIs). Both entities have been challenged to deepen their development impact.
A memorandum of understanding was concluded with the DBSA containing specific targets on how the developing
financier will roll-out its services to the poorest of municipalities.

Amendments to legislation are in progress to authorise the increase in DBSA's callable capital from R5 billion to R20
billion to enable the DBSA to increase its lending capacity to R140 billion. Pending the approval of the increase in
capital, a guarantee of R15 billion was issued to DBSA to allow it to increase its lending.

The Land Bank was given a guarantee of R3.5 billion, an amount which was later reduced to R2.5 billion after the bank
received a capital injection of R1 billion in terms of the Adjustment Appropriation Act (2009). To redirect the Land Bank
towards its core mandate of supporting emerging farmers, National Treasury, Rural Development and Land Reform,
and Agriculture, Forestry and Fisheries have formed a coordinating committee which is due to submit proposals to
Cabinet on the repossession of farms whose owners have failed to repay the bank.

The division monitors the treasury operations of SOEs to ensure that they comply with best practice standards, and
coordinates their borrowing activities. Borrowings by SOEs for the period 2009/10 — 2013/14 to finance their capital
expenditure programmes are projected at R486.4 billion. To reduce borrowing costs, the department supported SOEs
to access funding from multilateral organisations, export credit agencies, and project financing arrangements.
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PROGRAMME 4
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND SYSTEMS

Purpose: Manage and regulate government’s supply chain processes, implement and maintain standardised
financial systems.

Measurable objective: aims to regulate and oversee public-sector supply chain management, and standardise the
financial systems of national and provincial government.

Managed by the Specialist Functions division, activities are carried out under the following subprogrammes:
Supply Chain Management (SCM) consists of Supply Chain Policy, Norms and Standards, and Contract Management.
SCM develops policy that regulates supply chain management processes in the public sector, monitors policy
outcomes, facilitates and manages transversal term contracts.
Financial Systems maintains and enhances financial management systems to ensure they comply with the Public
Finance Management Act (PFMA) and Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP).

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

RECENT OUTPUTS

Supply Chain Policy unit is responsible for introducing strategic sourcing principles to all spheres of government.
During the 2009/10 financial year, strategic sourcing principles were introduced to twenty four (24) national
departments and five (5) provincial treasuries. Draft implementation plans for the remaining national and provincial
treasuries are being processed.

The upgrading of the User Requirement Statement (URS) was completed in November 2009; the configuration and
customisation of the Oracle software is underway.

Norms and Standards continues to improve SCM practices and procedures. During the reporting period two practice notes
were issued in terms of the PFMA. One dealt with procedures to be followed when procuring ICT goods and services through
SITA; the other provided guidance on bids submitted by persons employed by the state, connected, or related to persons
employed by the state.

The alignment of the Preferential Procurement Regulations with the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act (53 of
2003) (B-BBEEA) and its related strategy was partially achieved. Draft Preferential Procurement Regulations were published in
the national and provincial gazettes for public comment by August 2009. Because of greater than anticipated public interest,
the closing date for submissions had to be extended to 30 September 2009. Completion of the process was delayed, however,
by the submission in December 2009 of comments on the draft regulations by NEDLAC and the request by Parliament’s
Standing Committee on Finance and NEDLAC for further discussion of the draft regulations. In addition, proposals contained
in the Industrial Policy Action Programme Il (IPAP 1), which was released in February 2010, had to be accomodated. A revised
draft will now be published in the second half of 2010.

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10
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Contract Management facilitates transversal term contracts on behalf of government departments. Thirty two (32) out of the
fifty nine (59) transversal term contracts were due for renewal during the year. Of these, thirty (30) were renewed and the
remaining two (2) — subsidised vehicle maintenance and vehicle finance — will be renewed in the 2010/11 financial year.
The delay in the renewal of the two was due to the late finalisation of the revised bid specifications by the user department.
Strategic sourcing principles were applied to one (1) additional transversal term contract in the 2009/10 financial year,

bringing the number of transversal contracts administered by National Treasury to 98 percent.

In the Financial Systems subprogramme, the roll-out of the Procurement Management Module (PMM) and Human Resource
Management Module (HRM) was reprioritised. This is a result of the protracted pace of preparing the Primary Systems
Integration (PSI) to provide support for the projects and the external economic environment during the review period.

The lead site for the PMM will go live in August 2010 and for the HRM, in November 2010.

The Asset Management module of the Integrated Financial Management Systems (IFMS) was deployed successfully
at National Treasury and the Limpopo Provincial Treasury in February 2010. The Department of Defence and three other
Limpopo departments are scheduled to go live in the second half of 2010.

Discussions are underway to phase-out existing financial management solutions supported by National Treasury, Department
of Defence and the South African Police Services. The financial systems supported by National Treasury continue to operate
optimally, with enhancements only targeted at areas that support further implementation of the PFMA.
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PROGRAMME 5
FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING

Purpose: Enhance accountability and governance by promoting the transparent, efficient and prudent management of
revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities.

Measurable objective: aims to promote accountability to the public by encouraging transparency and effective
management of revenue, expenditure, assets, and liabilities in the public sector.

Financial Accounting and Reporting develops frameworks, guidelines, practice notes and transversal policies for internal auditing,
risk managementand accounting for the public service. It sets new government accounting policies and practices and improves
existing ones to ensure compliance with the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP). It also prepares consolidated

financial statements for national departments and seeks to improve the timeliness and accuracy of financial reporting.

The programme consists of eight subprogrammes:

- Technical Support Services develops and publishes frameworks, policies and guidelines on accounting, internal audit
and the management of risks associated with revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities (REAL).
Accounting Supportand Reporting provides accounting and reporting support to clientsin all spheres of governmentin respect
of REAL management; manages and reports on the National Revenue Fund and the Reconstruction and Development Fund;
renders banking services to all national departments and prepares their annual consolidated financial statements.
Internal Audit Support provides departments, constitutional institutions, public entities and municipalities with an
independent assurance of the quality of their business processes.

« Risk Management Support helps departments, constitutional institutions, public entities and municipalities improve
their capacity to manage risks that would otherwise hobble their performance, and ultimately that of the state.

- Capacity Building manages, coordinates, monitors and facilitates the building of financial management capacity within
government.

- Governance Monitoring and Compliance monitors financial management governance and compliance with legislation
by all spheres of government.

« MFMA Implementation develops regulations, co-ordinates, monitors and reports on the implementation of the Municipal
Finance Management Act,and administers the financial management grant in support of financial reforms in local government.

- Specialised Audit Services provides performance auditing and investigative capacity in all three spheres of government
on a broad range of financial management issues.

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

RECENT OUTPUTS

The Technical Support Services unit enhanced the reporting framework for national and provincial departments based on
the Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) and other relevant legislative prescripts. Tools were developed to
assist national and provincial departments interpret GRAP standards. The unit also developed a reporting framework a
year ahead of schedule, enabling stakeholders to give input to the division timeously. In addition, the unit developed the
Inventory Management Framework and guidelines for the use and securing of assets.



The unit also contributed, through participation in the International Public Sectors Standards Board, to the development

of international standards.

The Accounting Support and Reporting unit helped entities across all spheres of government to improve financial
management and audit outcomes. Support plans were developed and implemented in line with the results of the
financial management capability maturity model (FMCMM).

The unit also provided banking services to national departments, including daily bank statements. It also provided these

departments with mechanisms to reduce the risk of fraudulent payments.

Consolidated financial information (CFl) for national departments and public entities for 2008/2009 was produced
within the set deadlines and tabled in Parliament in compliance with the PFMA. To ensure the smooth completion
of the Annual Financial Statements, the Accounting Support and Reporting unit ran a series of workshops and other
support initiatives for departments and public entities. Provincial treasuries were also helped to produce annual
consolidated statements. In supporting the consolidation process, the Revenue Fund was included in the Standard

Chart of Accounts.

Municipal officials (1 334) were also trained on the new GRAP standards, the framework for the preparation of financial

statements as well as inventory management.

Internal Audit provided training to internal auditors and audit committee members on the revised Internal Audit Framework
as well as on the auditing of performance information. Twenty six municipalities were assessed for readiness to implement
the revised framework.

Senior management in the Office of the Accountant General (OAG) also attended audit committee meetings to offer
support and identify needs for support. The attendance of these meetings has become an early warning system for
potential problems, enabling the OAG to intervene early.

Risk Management launched the revised Risk Management Framework and trained over 840 officials. More than 205 officials
completed the e-learning programme, for which they received the certificate of competency in risk management. Due to
delays in finalising the contract with the donor funder (Belgian Study Fund), the risk management learnership will now be
implemented in the 2010/11 financial year.

The Capacity Building unit is developing a Capacity Building Model for financial management in the public sector.
A Competency Framework, which gives draft technical competency dictionaries for nine functional areas of
financial management, and a Learning Framework for financial management, which details learning programmes
as capacity building solutions, have been developed. Employees in 46 departments are being assessed in finance,
internal audit and risk management to ensure that they are accurately assessed for their skills levels, allowing
for solutions to be provided where there are gaps, and provide guidance on public finance management to all
spending agencies.
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As the approved training office for Chartered Accountants in government, National Treasury has established the
Chartered Accountants Academy (CAA). To support the CAA, the Treasury and the University of Pretoria have established
an academic support programme for trainee accountants. During the year under review, 15 trainee accountants were

registered in the academic support programme.

Additional training sites were also established in three metros towards the end of December 2009, and three trainee
accountants were allocated to them in January 2010. The programme is being monitored with a view to extending it to
other sites.

The Financial Management Improvement Programme, which is being funded by donors, contributed to capacity building
initiatives, including the completion of 49 projects and the initiation of an additional five. Reforms to improve financial
reporting were undertaken in two pilot provincial treasuries, while measures to improve public finance management,

specifically on budgeting and the quality of annual financial statements, were implemented in four municipalities.

The Governance Monitoring and Compliance unit implemented the Financial Management Capability Maturity Model, a
tool for testing financial management maturity in entities, and the information received was used to develop support
plans and strategies for clients. Reports on the status of financial management in departments were submitted to SCOPA
and the Portfolio Committee on Finance. A memorandum indicating areas of concern, particularly regarding audit
outcomes and remedial plans, was also submitted to Cabinet.

The MFMA Implementation unit continued to monitor those municipalities where recovery plans had been produced; a
further 17 municipalities were assisted by the unit. These interventions were accompanied by capacity building initiatives,
including the placement of 894 graduate interns in municipalities and the survey of the financial management skills of 7
496 officials. Two guideline documents, including one on oversight, were also issued to help municipalities improve their
financial management accountability.

A set of thirty financial management indicators were developed to serve as an early warning system and to improve
compliance with financial management guidelines.

The Specialised Audit Services unit was established in January 2010 and provides consultancy services to different
government entities. The unit has begun forensic investigations, particularly of transactions that are suspected of not
complying with supply chain management regulations. In the year under review, a charter, policies, and methodologies
were put in place, and assistance provided to senior managers on procurement related issues.

The unit also coordinates the work of the multi-agency working group made up of the OAG, South African Revenue
Service, Financial Intelligence Centre, Special Investigating Unit, Asset Forfeiture Unit, National Prosecution Authority,
Auditor General and the South African Police Services. It is also reviewing financial management systems to identify
weaknesses in the system.

The review of the PFMA and the MFMA was postponed pending further consultations with stakeholders in government.
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PROGRAMME 6
ECONOMIC POLICY AND INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL RELATIONS

Purpose: Provide specialist policy analysis and advisory services in macroeconomics, microeconomics, tax policy, financial
and banking sector policy, regulatory reform, regional integration and international financial relations.

Measurable objective: The programme provides advice on policy to promote growth, employment, macroeconomic
stability and regional integration.

There are five subprogrammes:

- Management and Research funds the department’s economic research programme, including international research
on growth, and the promotion of local research capacity.

- Financial Sector Policy provides financial sector policy advice and is responsible for related legislation, regulations
and the regulatory framework. Key strategic focus areas include improvements to the financial regulatory system to
maintain financial stability; retirement reform and financial sector transformation.

- Tax Policy provides advice on the formulation of tax policy, is responsible for drafting tax legislation, revenue analysis
and forecasting.

- International and Regional Economic Policy focuses on improving South Africa’s participation in international economic
institutions and debates. It facilitates the deepening of South Africa’s role in regional integration (Southern African
Development Community and Southern African Customs Union) and in promoting economic development via African
institutions like the African Development Bank. Outside of Africa, the division facilitates South Africa’s participation in
the IMF, World Bank and G20.

Economic Policy provides macroeconomic and microeconomic analysis and policy advice, economic forecasting,
regulatory assessment and policy review for the annual budget and other government processes.

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

RECENT OUTPUTS

Programme 6 covers the functions of three National Treasury divisions: Economic Policy, Tax and Financial Sector Policy, and

International and Regional Economic Policy. These divisions coordinate the National Treasury’s interaction with:

+  The Reserve Bank on the framework and conduct of macroeconomic policy, supervision and regulation of banking,
and exchange controls
The Financial Services Board on the regulation of non-banking financial services

- The Financial Intelligence Centre on anti-money-laundering and combating the financing of terrorism

-+ The Cooperative Banks Development Agency, established after the proclamation of the Cooperative Banks Act (40 of
2007) on 1 August 2008.

Together with the Asset and Liability division, Economic Policy and Tax and Financial Sector Policy co-chair three standing
committees with the Reserve Bank on macroeconomics, financial regulation and financial markets, and prepare

recommendations for bilateral meetings between the Minister of Finance and the Governor of the Reserve Bank.



Economic Policy

Economic Policy conducted research and provided advice on and coordination of growth-enhancing policies. Important
areas of work included:

- Development of inputs to the G20 Framework for Strong, Sustainable and Balanced Growth

- Analysis of the causes and consequences of the international financial crisis and policy responses

- Assessment of the economic impact of electricity tariff increases

- Redevelopment of daily, weekly and monthly data reporting and assessment formats

- Analysis of the effects of export taxes on the economy

- Perspectives on growth-enhancing policies

- Assessment of the monetary policy framework and the drafting of the mandate letter on inflation targeting

+ The development of a wage subsidy pilot and discussion documents on youth employment options

The division engaged with a number of international organisations, including the IMF, the Commission on Growth and
Development, and the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development (OECD). The division managed two
missions by the OECD to survey the South African economy.

The division worked with Public Finance, Tax Policy and Asset and Liability to assess and advise on departmental policy
proposals and initiatives of state-owned enterprises.

The quarterly forecast remains a key output of the work of the Modeling and Forecasting unit. It feeds into the budget framework
and is accompanied by other analysis provided to policy makers. In the period under review, studies were also conducted on
structural budget balances, modeling of the Gini coefficient and the effects of employment increases, the impact of exchange

rate adjustments on the economy, modeling of the impact of the World Cup, and analysis of electricity price increases.

A key output of Economic Policy is the economic forecast for the medium-term expenditure framework and the
macroeconomic chapter of the Medium Term Budget Policy Statement (MTBPS) and Budget Review. The division monitors
various economic sectors. The methodology to calculate the structural budget balance and to improve the accuracy
of tax forecasts was also refined. The division also wrote the new chapter on employment in the 2010 Budget Review.

Tax and Financial Sector Policy

The Tax Policy unit implemented tax policy reforms arising from the 2009 Budget, including the legislative framework for
the shift of the secondary tax on companies to a withholding tax on dividends in the hands of shareholders, industrial
policy incentives and the turnover tax for small businesses. The Revenue Laws Amendment Bill (2009) and the Taxation
Laws Amendment Bill (2009) were passed during 2009/10. The unit also provided tax revenue analysis and coordinated
the revenue forecasts for the 2009 MTBPS and the 2010 Budget.

Work continued on environmental fiscal reform, the use of taxes and incentives to deal with environmental challenges
such as climate change, and the interactive gambling bill. The levy on electricity generated from non-renewable sources
was implemented on 1 July 2009. Work on the vehicle carbon emission tax was completed, but its introduction postponed
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to 1 September 2010. The implementation of the Mineral and Petroleum Royalty Act was postponed to 1 March 2010.The
publication, 2009 Tax Statistics, which aims to make available tax revenue data at a more disaggregated level, was released
during the year.

The Financial Sector Policy unit prioritised responses to the global financial crisis by working closely with regulators to improve
the functioning of the financial regulatory system and by participating in international forums such as the Financial Stability
Board and the G20. In support of more effective financial supervision, the unit convened a forum of local financial regulators
to improve information-sharing. The unit also prepared proposals for further reforms to exchange controls.

The unit led a process to finalise government’s response to the recommendations of the Panel on Banking Enquiry
Report. The panel, which was appointed by the Competition Commission, focused on among other issues, the reduction
of penalty fees and improvement in the transparency of retail banking services. The unit also worked closely with the

Department of Communications to complete draft legislation to govern the PostBank.

The unit continued with its work on reforming the retirement fund industry, researching technical issues arising from the
second discussion paper on social security rand retirement reform published by National Treasury in February 2007. This
work feeds into the intergovernmental task team on social security and retirement fund reform.

International and Regional Economic Policy

International and Regional Economic Policy manages South Africa’s relationship with multilateral institutions such as the
World Bank, International Monetary Fund (IMF) and African Development Bank (AfDB). South Africa continued to play
a key role in negotiations with donor countries to ensure that they meet their commitments to increase funding to
low-income countries via increased contributions to the African Development Fund and the World Bank’s International
Development Association (IDA). More details are provided under Programme 9.

During the period under review, a third chair for Africa was created on the Board of the World Bank and a third chair for
Southern Africa was also created on the board of the African Development Bank.

The division successfully completed negotiations for two loans for Eskom: a €1.86 billion loan from the African Development
Bank and a $3.75 billion loan from the World Bank. The division also implemented a Budget Support Grant of R300 million
for the government of Zimbabwe to finance municipal infrastructure, health and education.

The Collaborative African Budget Review Initiative (CABRI) was established, with Ghana, Kenya, Mali, Rwanda, Senegal and
South Africa as the founding members. Mauritius joined later through accession. Lesotho, Swaziland, Burkina Faso, Togo,

Liberia, and Sierra Leone have expressed an interest to join CABRI.

SA successfully hosted the first meeting of the 12th replenishment of the African Development Fund in Cape Town, where

it expressed its support for an early and strong replenishment of ADF resources.

In the 2009/10 financial year, the National Treasury co-chaired G20 working groups on IMF reform and growth and
development. The Director-General is also the vice-chair of the Financial Stability Board and the Standing Committee on

Standards Implementation.
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PROGRAMME 7
PROVINCIAL AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS

Purpose: Manages three conditional grants to provinces and local governments. These grants are in addition to the
equitable share allocations and constitute only a portion of the many conditional grants administered by national

departments.

Measurable objective: aims to improve the pace and quality of provincial infrastructure investment and asset
maintenance, promote financial management reforms in municipalities, and restructure service delivery in municipalities
with large budgets.

This programme includes three conditional grants:

- The infrastructure grant to provinces supplements provincial infrastructure budgets, and is intended to accelerate
the building and maintenance of social and economic infrastructure such as hospitals, clinics, schools, roads and
agricultural infrastructure. The grant also assists provinces in funding labour-intensive infrastructure projects.

« The local government financial management grant provides financial assistance to municipalities to help them
implement the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) as part of capacity-building efforts to modernise financial
management in local government.

- The neighbourhood development partnership grant (NDPG) supports projects that provide community infrastructure,
create platforms for private-sector development and improve the quality of life of residents in targeted areas. The unit
administering this grant is discussed in Programme 2.

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

RECENT OUTPUTS

Infrastructure grant to provinces

The Infrastructure grant to provinces is a supplementary grant aimed at accelerating the construction of new infrastructure
and the maintenance, upgrading and rehabilitation of existing infrastructure in education, health, roads and agriculture.
The grant was increased from R7.2 billion in 2008/09 to R9.2 billion in 2009/10, mainly due to allocations made to
eradicate mud and inappropriate school buildings. The increase was also due to the maintenance of coal haulage routes
in Mpumalanga and Limpopo. The R9.2 billion allocation was transferred to all provinces in five instalments. Portions of
the fourth and fifth instalments were delayed due to under-expenditure and non-compliance, but these amounts were
subsequently released after the provinces complied with the regulations.

Provincial budgets for education, health and roads infrastructure grew from R24.7 billion in 2008/09 to R27.1 billion in
2009/10, a nominal growth of 9.6 per cent. Preliminary (un-audited) total infrastructure expenditure in the education,
health and roads sectors amounted to R24.8 billion or 91.7 per cent of the total allocation for 2009/10. Significant
improvements in spending trends were notable in Mpumalanga, North West, KwaZulu-Natal and the Western Cape. These
provinces spent more than 90 per cent on their overall infrastructure budgets, while the remaining provinces spent less
than 90 per cent.



The Infrastructure Delivery Improvement Programme (IDIP) helps departments improve their planning of infrastructure

projects, align project planning with budgets, and clarify roles and responsibilities. This has contributed to improved

working relationships between public works and the client departments.

To implement the IDIP, government is recruiting and placing technical assistants in departments to support the
institutionalisation of good practices in managing infrastructure delivery.

During 2009/10, 36 full-time technical assistants, supported by short term assistants, were deployed in 27 departments
(education, health and public works) across the provinces. This has improved planning and delivery of infrastructure
projects, with expenditure for 2009/10 averaging 100.5 per cent compared to 97.3 per cent in 2008/09.

Local government financial management grant

The local government financial management grant helps municipalities to improve the quality of budgeting and in-year
reports, appoint skilled finance officials, participate in the graduate internship programme, build financial management
skills, improve processes and procedures, introduce internal controls, publish relevant financial information on municipal
websites, enhance audit outcomes, improve management of revenue and expenditure, reform accounting and supply
chain management processes, and improve compliance with the MFMA and its regulations.

The grant was transferred to 283 municipalities, and the programme prioritised additional support and allocations to 32

small and rural municipalities.

This grant leveraged support from donors, including the Financial Management Improvement Programme I, which
assisted in placing advisors in four municipalities to implement financial management reforms (Makhuduthamaga,
Modimolle, Inkwanca and Port St Johns). GTZ, a German development organisation, provided additional assistance to the
Eastern Cape treasury for municipal financial management. The total allocation of R300 million in 2009/10 was disbursed
in terms of the Division of Revenue Act.

The review of internal processes, delegations, implementation plans, changing of past practices, introduction of risk
management, and development of financial management skills, continued to receive attention during 2009/10. The unit
continued to assist municipalities with budgeting, accounting and reporting as well as risk management and auditing. The
skills development programme included the facilitation and accreditation of 39 independent service providers, and the
development of quality training material to support the countrywide rollout of the minimum competency regulations.
Municipalities also used the grant to fund the graduate internship programme and increased the in-take of graduates
from 537 in 2009 to 894 by the end of the financial year. National Treasury will continue to use the grant to accelerate skills
development, and develop further training material, guidelines and manuals.

Neighbourhood development partnership grant

Since the start of the NDPG, R730.8 million has been disbursed to local government for township capital investment (see
Programme 2 for more details).
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PROGRAMME 8
CIVIL AND MILITARY PENSIONS, CONTRIBUTIONS TO FUNDS AND
OTHER BENEFITS

Purpose: Payment and administration of special pensions, military pensions, other statutory pensions, and post-retirement
medical subsidies.

Measurable objective: The programme aims to ensure the payment of benefits and awards to beneficiaries of
departments, state-aided entities and other specified bodies in terms of various statutes, collective bargaining agreements
and other commitments.

There are two subprogrammes:

Civil Pensions and Contributions to Medical Aid Schemes provides for the payment of pensions and contributions to
medical aid schemes for pensioners, surviving spouses, dependants and civil pensioners who were not members of
medical schemes during their period of service (by special concession). It ensures payment to medical schemes for
pensioners and widows in the former Development Boards and the National Film Board. The subprogramme also
provides for payment of special pensions to persons who have made sacrifices or served the public interest in the
establishment of the democratic constitutional order.

Military Pensions and Other Benefits provides for the payment of military pensions and medical claims arising from
treatment for disability, medical assistance devices, and other related expenses in terms of statutory commitments. The
subprogramme is responsible for payment of compensation benefits to government employees in cases of temporary, total
or partial disablement; as a result of injuries sustained on duty; and in cases of death to dependants of such beneficiaries
in accordance with the Compensation for Occupational Injuries and Diseases Act (1993). In addition, it provides for the
payment of former presidents, retired judges (pre-1994), parliamentarians, and Venda and Gazankulu parliamentarians.

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

RECENT OUTPUTS

The administration of the Government Employees Pension Fund (GEPF) was separated from the fund and the government
component responsible for administering both programme 8 and civil pensions was established.

The following was achieved during the review period:
Absorption by the GEPF of all employees on permanent or long-term contracts
Shortening of time taken to process applications
Employment of qualified staff to speed up the processing of applications and reduce backlog by 20 per cent
Finalisation of a comprehensive communications strategy for the Special Pensions Amendment Act

Military Pensions made payments to more than 6000 beneficiaries, exceeding target. There was a huge influx of applications
from Military Veterans; this influx is expected to continue in the 2010/11 financial year.

The Injury-on-Duty unit improved its processes for the payment of client benefits, and implemented increases on
time. The unit initiated regular meetings with the Compensation Commissioner to discuss challenges and to improve
stakeholder relationships.
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Government contributions to medial schemes amounting to R1 451 578 000 were made on behalf of 68 352 members.

During 2009/10, the administration continued its effort to verify the members'roll for eligible beneficiaries by comparing
the database with the Home Affairs system for the main members as well as for all beneficiaries. It also strengthened
administrative processes to improve the reconciliation of arrear and monthly claims received from medical schemes.

There was a marked increase in pensioners receiving post-retirement medical aid subsidy payments electing to transfer
their medical scheme membership to the Government Employees Medical Scheme (GEMS). Over 11 762 pensioners
were paid out by 1 April 2009 and the number had increased to 14 248 by 31 March 2010. To improve co-operation and
streamline processes, the administration and GEMS meet every quarter.
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PROGRAMME 9
FISCAL TRANSFERS

Purpose: Finances public authorities and other institutions in terms of legal provisions governing financial relations
between governmentand the relevant authority or institution, including multilateral development banks and international
development bodies of which South Africa is a member.

Measurable objective: To meet international and other statutory financial obligations, to meet the costs of effectively and
efficiently raising revenue for the state, and to finance intelligence-gathering and other secret services in the national interest.

Domestic transfers are made to:
The South African Revenue Service (SARS), which is responsible for collection of revenue in terms of the South African
Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997).
The Financial and Fiscal Commission, a constitutional body charged with making recommendations about the
equitable division of revenue between the three spheres of government.
The Secret Services account, used to finance the activities of the National Intelligence Agency, the South African
Secret Service, and certain activities of the Detective Service of the South African Police Service.
The Financial Intelligence Centre, which combats money-laundering and works to strengthen financial regulation capacity.

To fulfil government’s international obligations, foreign transfer payments are made to:
The World Bank Group
The African Development Bank
Member states of the Common Monetary Area — Lesotho, Namibia and Swaziland
The Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation
The Global Alliance for Vaccines and Immunisation

SERVICE DELIVERY OBJECTIVES AND INDICATORS

RECENT OUTPUTS

South Africa contributes to the World Bank Group’s International Development Association (IDA), which is replenished
by donors every three years. Fifty percent of IDA's resources are ring-fenced for expenditure in sub-Saharan Africa. South
Africa is the only Sub Saharan African country that contributes to IDA resources, and continues to lobby for additional
resources for IDA and improved processes for their effective use.

The 15th replenishment of IDA was negotiated during 2007 and totalled US$42 billion. South Africa’s share of the donor
component is R204 million, to be paid in three annual payments of R68 million, with the first payment made in 2008/09
and the second in 2009/10. The 16th replenishment of IDA (IDA16) is currently being negotiated.

South Africa is the only African country that donates to the African Development Fund (ADF) of the African Development
Bank (AfDB). The fund lends money at reduced interest rates to low-income African countries in support of poverty
alleviation and foster economic growth and development. South Africa has been contributing to ADF replenishments
since 1998. During the 11th ADF replenishment, South Africa doubled its contribution to R67.4 million in line with the
AfDB positioning to make a greater contribution to the development of Africa. This contribution is payable in instalments
of R22.5 million per year over a three year period. South Africa paid its 2nd instalment of R22.4 million in 2009/10.
Consultations for ADF-12 replenishments are currently underway.



South Africa’s shareholding in the AfDB stands at just over 4.5 per cent and total transfers to the AfDB for the 2009/10
period stood at R 36.3 million.

The Common Monetary Area is made up of South Africa, Lesotho, Namibia and Swaziland. Its purpose is to implement a
common monetary policy. South Africa compensates the other countries for rands circulating in their territories as legal
tender in terms of Article 6 of the Multilateral Monetary Agreement. The compensation is based on the understanding
that South Africa, as the issuing country, benefits from this through seigniorage collection. In 2009/10, R409 million was
transferred for this purpose.

Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation (CFTC) resources are used to further the Commonwealth Secretariat’s goals
and programmes, which are closely aligned to the Millennium Development Goals (MDGs). The primary objective of the
fund is to assist developing member countries to acquire the knowledge and institutional capacity needed to address
their development priorities. Public sector development is a central theme of the fund-sponsored activities. The CFTC
provides funding to (mostly) technical advisors, and funding or scholarships for workshops, seminars, study tours and
study programmes. South Africa contributed R3.5 million to this fund during the review period.

South Africa acceded to the International Financial Facility for Immunisation (IFFIm) in early 2007, with a binding pledge
to contribute USST million a year for 20 years towards the achievement of the health-related objectives of the MDGs.
The purpose of this arrangement is to ‘lock-in"donor support for accelerated progress towards health MDGs. The IFFIm’s
financial resources are made available to the Global Alliance for Vaccinations and Immunisation in support of health care,
particularly the provision of vaccines to reduce the number of vaccine-preventable deaths among children under the age
of five. During 2009/10 South Africa transferred US$ 970 000 (R7.5 million) to the facility.

In the 2008/09 year, R10 billion was transferred to Eskom as part of the subordinated loan of R60 billion over three years.
During the reporting period a further R30 billion was transferred. These funds are for the sustainable development of
infrastructure for electricity in South Africa.

In June 2006, South Africa pledged to contribute USS$3 million to the Investment Climate Facility (ICF). Payable in three
equal instalments of US$1 million, the final contribution of R7.4 million was paid to the ICF in November 2009.

Name of institution R’000
African Development Bank and African Development Fund 58715
Commonwealth Fund for Tech Cooperation 3659
Common Monetary Area Compensation 359 400
Development Bank of Southern Africa [Siyenza Manje] 246 809
Eskom 10 000 00
Financial and Fiscal Commission 26 125
Financial Intelligence Centre 111474
International Funding Facility for Immunisation 9618
Investment Climate Facility 7 306
Secret Services 2 843583
South African Revenue Service 6302 778
World Bank Group and IDA 68 000
Total: 20078 580
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2010.

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE:

The audit committee consists of the members listed hereunder and has met as reflected below, in line with its approved
terms of reference.

Audit Committee Meetings 2009/10

Name of member *Number of meetings attended Remarks
Ms Mamoroke Lehobye 40of5 Contract expired 31 Jan 2010
(Acting Chairperson) 4 0of 5 None
Ms Lesibana Fosu 50of5 None
Mr Ignatius Sehoole 3of5 Contract expired 31 Jan 2010
(Past Chairperson) 40of4 Contract expired 31 Jan 2010
MrVuyo Jack 30f3 Appointment effective 1 October 2009
Ms Matsotso Vuso 30of5 Contract expired 31 Jan 2010
Professor Carolina Koornhof 20of5 Contract expired 31 Jan 2010
Mr Zach Le Roux 10of 1 Appointment effective 1 March 2010
Mr Joe Lesejane 10of 1 Appointment effective 1 March 2010
**Ms Lindie Engelbrecht 10f 1 Appointment effective 1 March 2010

* Note 1: The five audit committee meetings included one special meeting
**Note 2: Ms Lindie Engelbrecht resigned on 20 April 2010 due to her new position which resulted in a possible conflict of interest.

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38(1)(a) of the PFMA and
Treasury Regulation 3.1.13.

The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its charter, has regulated its
affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein.

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The Audit Committee is of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, the internal
auditors, and discussions with the independent external auditors (Auditor-General) on the results of its audits, that the
internal accounting controls are generally operational and was mainly efficient and effective to ensure that the financial
records may be relied upon for preparing the annual financial statements, and accountability for assets and liabilities
is maintained. From the various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the Annual Financial Statements
and the management letter of the Auditor-General, it was noted that no significant or material non compliance with
prescribed policies and procedures have been reported. Accordingly, we can report that the system of internal control for
the period under review was efficient and effective.



However, attention is drawn to the following areas of concern:

There were a number of findings raised by the Auditor-General relating to Programme 8 (Civil and Military Pensions,
Contributions to Fund and other Benefits) as well as the ineffectiveness to address past audit findings relating to
missing files. In order to address this concern, the Audit Committee recommended a forensic review to assess if there
were any fraudulent activities that took place relating to the missing files and progress on this will be provided to the
Audit Committee on a quarterly basis; and

+  The State Information Technology Agency (SITA) is responsible for the Wide Area Network (WAN), security and related
controls, such as firewalls for National Treasury. The Auditor-General audits this area and provides assurance to the
Audit Committee of SITA only. We are therefore unable to express an opinion on the IT controls as they relate to SITA
and SITA's functions at National Treasury. In terms of the Integrated Financial Management System (IFMS) project, the
Auditor-General has been appointed by National Treasury as the assurance provider who will express a view on the
adequacy of the internal controls for the different modules that form part of the IFMS project. Progress with regards
to the auditing of the IFMS project will be provided to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

Other than these matters, nothing significant has come to the attention of the Audit Committee to indicate any material
breakdown in the functioning of controls, procedures and systems during the year under review.

EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee has evaluated the Annual Financial Statements of the National Treasury for the year ended 31 March
2010 and, based on the information provided to us, concurs and accepts the Auditor-General's conclusions on these
financial statements. The committee is of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements should be accepted
and read together with the report of the Auditor-General.

QR
\m \J
Ms. M Lehobye

Acting Chairperson of the Audit Committee
Date: 4 August 2010
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REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

Report by the Accounting Officer to the Executive Authority and Parliament of the Republic of South Africa.

1. GENERAL REVIEW OF THE STATE OF FINANCIAL AFFAIRS

1.1 STRATEGIC OVERVIEW

National Treasury's strategic direction is informed by five external strategic focus areas, as depicted in
the Department’s Strategic Plan and Estimates of National Expenditure: promoting sustainable economic

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

growth and expanded employment levels, fighting poverty and inequality, maintaining optimal allocation
and utilisation of financial resources in all spheres of government, ensuring good governance and
accountability, and macroeconomic stability along with microeconomic reforms. These are supported
by four internal strategic imperatives: improving coordination and communication, matching resources
to workload, developing human resource strategies to address attraction and retention challenges, and
developing management skills.

For a more detailed discussion on the outcome of the aforementioned strategic activities, please refer to the
relevant chapters dealing with programme performance included in the Annual Report.

1.2 KEY POLICY DEVELOPMENTS

Improving Accountability

Focusing on improved accountability to both Parliament and the public, National Treasury will continue its
efforts at aligning the allocation of resources with expected outputs from departments in line with improved
performance and better formulated programme objectives.

Review of the Division of Revenue Bill

The review process of the annual Division of Revenue Bill is aimed at ensuring that the grant system contributes
to better and quicker decision making, improved accountability and accelerated service delivery.

Monitoring the implementation of the Public Finance Management Act

Since implementation of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), (Act No. 1 of 1999) with effect from 1 April
2000, the National Treasury has undertaken various initiatives to monitor the implementation of the Act. These
initiatives were augmented by the introduction of a Financial Management Capability Maturity Model (FMCMM)
which provides a mechanism to assess the financial maturity of departments against predetermined benchmarks.
The Model also provides departments with financial management requirements based on the nature, complexity
and risks associated with their activities.
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1.3

1.4

During the period under review, the Model was used to assess the financial maturity of national and provincial
departments. The results of these assessments were made available to the departments who were subsequently
required to develop corrective plans to address areas of concern. The results were also used to compile detailed
reports to the Standing Committee on Public Accounts (SCOPA) and to the Portfolio Committee on Finance on

progress made with implementation of the PFMA (Act No.1 of 1999).

Improving financial oversight of state owned enterprises

Better financial oversight can improve operational efficiency of state owned enterprises. The appraisal of their
treasury operations coupled with financial modeling that will include setting of realistic capital structure and
dividend payment targets, as well as assessing funding alternatives, should encourage adherence to treasury
management best practices and improvements in financial performance and sustainability.

ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND VOTE STRUCTURE

The total appropriation for National Treasury for the year ending 31 March 2010 amounted
to R62.8 billion (2008/09: R31.4 billion) and is divided into two main components namely: the
operational budget and transfers.  Programmes 1 to 6 constitute National Treasury’s operational
budget, which amounted to R1.3 billion (2008/09: R1,1 billion). The operational budget comprised
R408 million (2008/09: R321 million) for compensation of employees, R788 million (2008/09: R608 million) for
goods and services and R16 million (2008/09: R10 million) for the acquisition of capital assets.

The remaining budget of R61.64 billion (2008/09: R30.5 billion) falls under Programmes 7,8 and 9 and includes transfers
to provinces, municipalities, universities and technikons, departmental agencies, foreign institutions, payments of post
retirement benefits for a specific category of former employees and members of liberation movements.

PROGRAMME STRUCTURE

There are nine programmes which fall under National Treasury’s Vote: Administration, Public Finance and
Budget Management, Asset and Liability Management, Financial Management and Systems, Financial Accounting
and Reporting, Economic Policy and International Financial Relations, Provincial and Local Government Transfers,
Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits, and Fiscal Transfers.In 2009/10, there were
some changes in the programmes following an internal re-organisation; these are outlined in detail in the
annual report.

Administration provides managerial leadership and administrative support to the National Treasury through
continuous refinement of strategy and structure, in compliance with relevant legislation and best practices. The
Administration Programme comprises the Minister, Deputy Minister, Management, Corporate Services and Property
Management sub programmes.
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The total appropriation for this Programme amounted to R247 million (2008/09:
R205 million). Expenditure for Administration totalled R243 million (2008/09: R204 million).
Expenditure  incurred on  compensation of employees was R92  million  (2008/09:
R70 million), goods and services R143 million (2008/09: R130 million), transfers R1.4 million (2008/09: R1,5 million)
and capital expenditure R7.6 million (2008/09: R3,6 million).

Public Finance and Budget Management provides financial and budgetary analysis of government programmes,
advises on fiscal policy and public finance matters, coordinates intergovernmental fiscal relations and manages the
annual budget process as well as expenditure planning. These activities are organised into four sub programmes:
Public Finance, Budget Management, Intergovernmental Relations and Technical and Management Support.

The  total adjusted appropriation  for  this  Programme amounted to R265 million
(2008/09:  R245  million). Current  expenditure incurred  totalled R242 million  (2008/09:
R222  million) and comprised compensation of employees R123  million  (2008/09:
R107 million) and goods and services R119 million (2008/09: R114 million). Capital expenditure amounted to
R1 million (2008/09: R2 million). Transfer payments amounted to R20 million (2008/09: R20 million).

Asset and Liability Management manages government’s asset and liability portfolio, which includes amongst
others prudent cash management, asset restructuring and optimal management of government debt portfolio
both domestic and foreign. There are five sub programmes namely: Management, Asset Management, Liability
Management, Financial Operations and Strategy and Risk Management.

The  total  appropriation  amounted to  R61  million  (2008/09: R64  million).  Total
expenditure incurred amounted to R53 million (2008/09: R63 million) and consists of
compensation  of employees R38 million (2008/09: R33 million), goods and  services
R15 million (2008/09: R29 million) and payments for capital expenditure R0.T million (2008/09: R1 million).

Financial Management and Systems manage and regulate government'’s supply chain processes. It also implements
and maintains standardised financial systems in the national and provincial spheres of government. This will culminate
in the migration from the outdated systems to the new integrated financial management system. The Programme
consists of three sub programmes namely: Management, Supply Chain Management and Financial Systems.

The total adjusted appropriation for this Programme amounted to R459 million (2008/09:
R279  million). The total expenditure incurred amounted to R406 million (2008/09:
R273  million) and  comprises  compensation  of  employees R40  million  (2008/09:
R33 million), goods and services R365 million (2008/09: R237 million) and payments for capital expenditure
R1 million (2008/09: R2 million). The major cost pressure on this Programme relates to professional service
providers for maintaining the transversal systems.

Financial Accounting and Reporting enforces and encourages accountability, transparency and effective
management of revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities of departments, public entities, constitutional



institutions and local government, thus ensuring effective service delivery. The Programme consists of six sub

programmes: Financial Reporting for National Accounts, Financial Management Improvement, Investment of Public
Monies, Service Charges (Commercial Banks), Audit Statutory Bodies and Contingent Liabilities: Reinsurance Liabilities.

The total appropriation for this Programme amounted to R139 million
(2008/09:  R203  million) and  consisted of an  operational budget of R86 million
(2008/09:  R69 million). The total amount spent by the Programme was R137 million (2008/09:
R203 million), comprised compensation of employees R51 million (2008/09: R31 million), goods and services
R33 million (2008/09: R38 million), and capital expenditure R1 million (2008/09: R1 million). Transfer payments
amounted to R53 million (2008/09: R134 million).

In addition, this Programme is responsible for transfer payments to the Auditor-General of South Africa in terms of the
Public Audit Act (2004), whereby National Treasury is obliged to pay audit costs in respect of the auditing of statutory
bodies for any financial year concerned where such costs exceeds one per cent of the total expenditure of such bodies.
The transfer payments in respect of these statutory audit costs amounted to R19 million (2008/09: R106 million).

Economic Policy and International Financial Relations is responsible for specialist policy analysis and advisory
services in the areas of macroeconomics, microeconomics, financial sector, regulatory reform, tax policies, regional
integration and international financial relations. The Programme is made up of five sub programmes namely:
Management and Research, Financial Sector Policy, Tax Policy, International Economics and Economic Policy. The final
adjusted appropriation for this Programme amounted to R96 million (2008/09: R91 million). Total expenditure
incurred amounted to R94 million (2008/09: R90 million) and comprised compensation of employees R59 million
(2008/09: R46 million), goods and services R30 million (2008/09: R38 million) and capital expenditure R0.5 million
(2008/09: R1 million). Transfer payments amounted to R5 million (2008/09: R5 million) for economic research.

Provincial and Local Government Transfers facilitates and manages the transfer of conditional grants to
the provincial and local spheres of government. The final adjusted appropriation for this programme
amounted to R14.4 billion (2008/09: R7.9 billion). The total expenditure amounted to R14.3 billion
(2008/09: R7.8 bhillion) and included conditional grants transferred directly from National Treasury’s vote to
provinces and municipalities amounting to R9.2 billion (2008/09: R74 billion) and R300 million (2008/09:
R180 million) respectively and once off payment of Gautrain Loan amounting to R4.2 billion. The balance of R578
million (2008/09:R262 million) wasin respect of the Neighbourhood Development Partnership grant to municipalities.

Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and Other Benefits is responsible for payment of benefits
and awards to beneficiaries of departments, state aided bodies and other entities in terms of various statutes,
collective bargaining agreements and other commitments. The final appropriation for this Programme
amounted to R4.9 billion (2008/09: R2.3 billion).

Expenditure for the period under review amounted to R4.9 billion (2008/09: R2.3 billion) which comprised civil
pensions and other contributions R4.8 billion (2008/09: R2.2 billion) and military pensions and other contributions
R164 million (2008/09: R157 million) and goods and service amount to R25 million (2008/09: R18 million).
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1.5

1.6

Fiscal Transfers transfer funds to other countries and multilateral and domestic institutions and public entities,
including international development institutions of which South Africa is a member. This Programme comprises
the following sub programmes: Domestic Budgetary Transfers, Domestic Programme Transfers, African Integration and
Support, Multilateral Institutions and International Projects.

Transfers are made to the South African Revenue Service, Financial Intelligence Centre and the Financial and Fiscal
Commission for the fulfilment of their statutory obligations, and to the Development Bank of Southern Africa for
specified government programmes. In addition, funds are also paid to augment the Secret Services Account.
Domestic transfers accounted for 96 per cent of the total transfers allocated to this programme and amounted
to R41.6 billion (2008/09: R19.5 billion), of which the largest transfers went to the South African Revenue Service,
Secret Services and Eskom totalling R40.2 billion (2008/09: R19.1 billion).

Foreign transfer payments were made to:
The World Bank Group;
The African Development Bank (AfDB) and African Development Fund;
- Common Monetary Area Compensation to Lesotho, Namibia and Swaziland;
The African integration and support programmes; and
- Various international programmes, such as Common Wealth Fund for Technical Cooperation, the Investment
Climate Facility, and the Global Alliance for Vaccines and Immunisation.

The total foreign transfers made by National Treasury amounted to R554 million (2008/09: R548 million) of
which the transfer to Lesotho, Namibia and Swaziland makes up the largest portion of foreign transfers totalling
R410 million (2008/09: R363 million).

For more details on the Vote structures, annual appropriation and summarised explanations for variances please
refer to the Appropriation Statement and related notes thereto.

DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE

Departmental revenue received during the reporting period amounted to R3.5 billion (2008/09: R5.3 billion) and
consisted of sales of goods and services of R300 million (2008/09: R49 million), fines, interest and dividends of
R2 billion (2008/09: R5 billion) and other recoveries amounting to R1.2 billion (2008/09: R268 miillion).

For more details on departmental revenue, please refer to Note 2 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

UTILISATION OF DONOR FUNDS

Local and foreign assistance received in cash during the reporting period amounted to R15 million (2008/09:
R50 million). Expenditure incurred amounted to R16 million (2008/09: R42 million). Other funds amounting to
R10.3 million (2008/09: R5 million) were transferred to external spending agencies on behalf of the Reconstruction
and Development Fund. However, these amounts are not disclosed on the face of the Annual Financial Statements



1.7

1.8

because National Treasury was only channelling the funds as a link between the donors and spending agencies.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Payments amounting to R81 million (2008/09: R67 million) were processed during April 2010, which relate to the
2009/10 financial year. These payments were not included in the financial statements for the 2009/10 financial
year, which were prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting. (Refer to Note 21). Departmental revenue
amounting to R203 million (2008/09: R87 million) was received after year-end and surrendered to the National
Revenue Fund. (Refer to note 25).

2010 WORLD CUP TICKET EXPENDITURE

During the period under review there was no expenditure incurred on 2010 world cup tickets or clothing by
National Treasury, Technical Assistance Unit (TAU) and Project Development Facility (PDF).

SERVICE RENDERED BY THE DEPARTMENT

The core business of the National Treasury is of a fiscal and financial policy nature, servicing organs of the state
in all three spheres of government and foreign multilateral and national institutions with the exception of
Programme 8 which provides pensions and post retirement civil and military benefits. National Treasury is not
a service delivery department and does not render any services in the public domain on a recoverable basis.
Other technical assistance is disclosed with the Project Development Facility (PDF) and the Technical Assistance
Unit (TAU) trading accounts.

CAPACITY CONSTRAINTS

Internal focus

A major focus and challenge for the year was reviewing our service delivery model. Introducing the Human
Resources Business Partnering model enabled the Department to create a platform to transform our human
resources way of working to ensure a‘value added’service to the business. This also started the process of ensuring
that our Human Resources function is more business focused and is working closer with our line managers in order
to support strategy execution. Extensive focus is given to a more customer-focused, innovative and structured way
of quickly responding to changing priorities.

Resourcing was yet another challenge. The Department has managed to improve our vacancy rates from 9.0%
to 6.8% and turnaround time for filling vacancies for all areas from average of 11 to 9.5 weeks. The Department’s
resourcing focus also led to the improvement in filling pipeline requirements at entry levels.
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4.1

Senior Management Leadership Development Programme initiatives were implemented in the period under
review which included the new Directors Development Programme, Managing for Results, Chief Directors
Development Programme, Coaching for Results and Choice at Work.

External focus

The National Treasury, in enhancing public service capacity through training and development, and
especially in financial management, will roll-out the 2009/10 business plan through the Institute of Public
Finance & Auditing (IPFA). This is a non-profit organisation providing professional training, mainly on finance
and auditing. This institution will play a major role in the implementation of the Capacity Building Model for
Financial Management.

TRADING ENTITIES AND PUBLIC ENTITIES

TRADING ENTITIES

Project Development Facility

The Project Development Facility (PDF) is a single function trading entity in the National Treasury’s Public
Private Partnership (PPP) unit, created in accordance with the PFMA (Act No. 1 of 1999). Its mandate is to
assist national, provincial and municipal spheres of government to pay for services provided by consultants
(transaction advisors) to conduct feasibility studies for PPP projects. After the financial closure of the PPP,
the funds are recovered from the successful private party bidder, allowing the PDF to fund further projects.
The PDF also disburses technical assistance funds for municipalities wishing to access capital grants from the
Neighbourhood Development Partnership grant.

Technical Assistance Unit

The Technical Assistance Unit (TAU) is a facility that was established in 2001 in the National Treasury. It provides
project management support and technical assistance through a wide range of services to all spheres of
government. The TAU trading entity will play a major role in the fields of legislation, institutional and municipal
operation and capacity building by ensuring that prudent financial and project management are implemented
throughout national, provincial and local government.



4.2

PUBLIC ENTITIES AND BUSINESS ENTERPRISES REPORTING TO THE MINISTER
OF FINANCE

The Minister of Finance is responsible for several entities. These entities are as follows:

The Development Bank of Southern Africa (Schedule 2: Major public entity)

The Development Bank of Southern Africa (DBSA) was established in 1983 to perform a broad economic
development function within the prevailing dispensation of the homelands. It was reconstituted in terms of the
Development Bank of Southern Africa Act (1997) as a development finance institution with the primary purpose of
promoting sustainable socio-economic development by funding physical, social and economic infrastructure. It
does this by mobilising financial and other resources from the national and international private and public sectors
for sustainable development projects and programmes.

South African Revenue Service (Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The South African Revenue Service (SARS) is mandated to support government in meeting its key growth
developmental objectives by facilitating legitimate trade, protecting South African ports of entry and eliminating
trade and tax evasion. By administering an efficient tax system, SARS is reducing the compliance burden, ensuring
delivery on revenue targets and ensuring good governance and administration.

Financial Services Board (Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The Financial Services Board (FSB) was established in terms of the Financial Services Board Act (1990). It supervises
and regulates the non-banking financial services industry namely long term and short term insurance, retirement
funds and friendly societies, financial service providers, collective investment schemes and capital markets. The
FSB is responsible for ensuring that the regulated entities comply with the legislation and with capital adequacy
requirements, thus promoting the financial soundness of these entities and protecting the investing community.

The introduction of the Financial Advisory and Intermediary Services Act (2004) (FAIS), expanded the mandate of
the FSB to include aspects of market conduct in both the banking and non-banking financial services industries.
In addition, the Financial Intelligence Centre Act (2001) (FICA) has added another dimension to the jurisdiction of
the FSB in terms of monitoring compliance provisions to combat money laundering and the financing of terrorism.
The FSB also advises the Minister of Finance through various committees made up of industry experts. Another
responsibility of the FSB is to promote information and educational programmes by financial institutions and its
representative bodies for users and potential users of financial products and services.

Financial Intelligence Centre (Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The Financial Intelligence Centre (FIC) was established in terms of the Financial Intelligence Centre Act (2001). The
core mandate of the FIC s to assist in identifying the proceeds of unlawful activities, combating money laundering
activities and combating the financing of terrorist and related activities. The centre aims to protect South Africa’s
financial system, its institutions and citizens from being abused by criminals and their networks.
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Accounting Standards Board (Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The Accounting Standards Board (ASB) was established in 2002 in accordance with the PFMA (ACT NO.1 OF 1999.
Its main function is to set standards and guidelines for financial reporting as required by section 216 (a) of the
Constitution. It also promotes transparency and the effective management of the revenue, expenditure, assets
and liabilities of the entities to which the standards apply.

Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (Schedule 3A: National public entity)

The Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors (IRBA) was established in terms of section 3 of the Auditing
Profession Act (2005), and came into effect in April 2006. The strategic focus of the Board is to protect the financial
interest of the public by ensuring that only suitably qualified individuals are admitted to the profession and that
registered auditors deliver services of the highest ethical standards.

South African Special Risk Insurance Association (SASRIA) Limited (Schedule 3B: National
government business enterprise)

SASRIA Limited was established in 1979 and registered in terms of section 21 of the Companies Act (1973). In 1998, it
was converted through the SASRIA Act (134 of 1998) for government to be the sole shareholder. The goal of SASRIA is to
create an environment for positive investment and gross domestic product growth and change, by covering special risks.
SASRIA indemnifies the insured against loss of or damages to property caused by any riots, strikes and public disorders.

Public Investment Corporation Limited (Schedule 3B: National government business enterprise)

The Public Investment Corporation (PIC) was only established as a corporate entity in 2005, in accordance with
the Public Investment Corporation Act (23 of 2004). The PIC is wholly owned by the South African government
and invests funds on behalf of the state. Major clients include the Government Employees Pension Fund (GEPF),
the Unemployment Insurance Fund (UIF), the Associated Institutions Pension Fund (AIPF), the Compensation
Commissioner: Pension Fund (CC: PF), the Compensation Fund (CF) and the Guardian’s Fund.

The Land and Agricultural Bank of South Africa (Land Bank) (Schedule 3B: National government
business enterprise)

The Land Bank is an agricultural development finance institution whose mission is to support developing
and resource poor farmers by providing them with retail, wholesale, project and micro-finance. As a specialist
agricultural financier, the bank’s aim is to improve the sector by providing the necessary support, especially for
training and capacity building of (developmental) farmers and the sustainability of the sector.

Co-operative Banks Development Agency (Schedule 3A; National Public Entity)

The Co-operative Banks Development Agency (CBDA) was established in terms of the Co-operative Banks Act
(2007). The objectives of the CBDA are to provide for the registration of co-operative banks comprising deposit
taking financial services co-operatives, savings and credit co-operatives, community banks and village banks, and
the regulation and supervision of these banks. The CBDA will also facilitate, promote and fund the education and
training of co-operative banks.



6.1.

CBDA were exempted for the 2009/10 financial year to prepare financial statements and the annual report. However,

expenditure of R3.6 million was incurred and audited as part of National Treasury Annual Financial Statements.

Government Employees Pension Fund

The Government Employees Pension Fund was established in terms of the Government Employees Pension
Law (1996). The Fund is responsible for administering pensions and related benefits on behalf of its members,
pensioners and their beneficiaries.

ORGANISATIONS TO WHOM TRANSFER PAYMENTS HAVE BEEN MADE

Funds to public entities and other institutions in terms of various legal provisions governing financial relations
between Government and those institutions are made available on the Fiscal Transfers Programme. Kindly refer to

annexures TAto 11.

In addition to the Fiscal Transfer Programme, funds for the Project Development Facility, Technical Assistance
Unit, Accounting Standards Board and Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors have been provided for, under
Programmes 2 and 5.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The co-sourced Internal Audit Function (IAF) of the National Treasury was established in 2006, in terms
of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999), as an integral part of the National Treasury system of
governance.

The IAF provides objective and independent assurance to management and the Audit Committee on the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes within National

Treasury. In pursuing this activity the IAF is guided by a fully functional Audit Committee which operates in terms

of an approved Audit Charter.

The IAF organisational structure was approved by the audit committee and the accounting officer. All
positions as per the approved organisational structure have since been filled, which will result in the
conclusion of the co-sourced service provider's contract by the end of December 2010. The IAF continues
to monitor its human capital and ensures that there are processes in place to make sure that existing staff

obtain appropriate qualifications.
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6.2

6.3

The IAF through engagement with internal stakeholders formulated a comprehensive three-year rolling plan,
incorporating an annual plan that was approved by the Audit Committee. The annual audit plan was fully executed
during the year under review. The IAF also performed a number of consulting activities and relationships with
management improved as evidenced by the number of unplanned specialized audits, which, in turn, indicate that
management sees the value of the IAF within its system of governance.

The head of the IAF has complete access and a direct reporting line to the Audit Committee and reports at each
audit committee meeting on control weaknesses and other Internal Audit activities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee continues to operate within its written terms of reference, which are reviewed annually.
The Audit Committee met five times during the year. In these meetings, the accounting officer and executive
management were always represented. The Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA) or the staff of the AGSA is
always invited to attend, thus ensuring that such meetings are as effective as possible.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Unit has continued to coordinate and support the implementation of risk
management activities throughout the National Treasury under the leadership of the Chief Risk Officer (CRO). The
Unit has reviewed its Enterprise Risk Management Strategy, which informed the continuous integration of risk
management into the day-to-day activities of the National Treasury.

The Unit has championed good governance practices by creating awareness and instituting approved risk
management processes and procedures in alignment with regulations and the Public Sector Risk Management
Framework. The ongoing risk management activities have culminated in an updated Risk Profile for the National
Treasury that is monitored, on an ongoing basis, by internal governance structures, including ExCo, the Audit
Committee and the Risk Management Committee. The Unit has commenced a process of coordinating the
National Treasury's Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery processes, and will continue to manage this process
going forward.

During the course of developing its risk profile, the National Treasury has identified corruption risks that it may face.
In line with the National Treasury’s zero tolerance stance on corruption, activities to mitigate corruption risks have
been incorporated into the reviewed Fraud Prevention Plan for implementation by the identified risk owners. The
implementation of the Plan will be monitored to ensure that corruption risks are managed and a strong ethical
culture is maintained throughout the National Treasury.

The formally appointed Risk Management Committee held four meetings during the financial year under
review. It operated within its approved Terms of Reference and provided objective oversight and advice in the
institutionalisation of risk management throughout the National Treasury.



6.4

6.5

INTERNAL POLICY REVIEW

During the 2009/10 financial year, the Governance Review Committee (GRC) approved fifteen corporate

governance policies and prescripts for implementation and final approval by the Accounting Officer.

The policies are as follows:

.

.

Employment Equity;

Peripheral;

Anti-virus;

Labour Relations;

Probation;

Information Sensitivity;

Chartered Accountants Academy;
Recruitment and Selection;
System Lockdown;

Employee Handbook;

Internship;

Revised GRC Terms of Reference;
Framework for Policy Development;
LAN security; and

Mobile and Remote Computers.

National Treasury reviews its policies, prescripts and related business processes, at least once a quarter to ensure

compliance with statutory requirements and best practices.

OTHER GOVERNANCE MATTERS

In addition to the above-mentioned governance arrangements, the following governance structures have been

complied with or have been given attention:

Fully implemented and applied business processes designed in the previous financial period for all Corporate
Services business units;

Established a fully functional Bid Specification and Adjudication Committee;

Systems put in place to ensure:

- The effective, efficient, economical and transparent use of the departmental resources;

- Proper management, administration, safeguarding and maintenance of the Department's assets and liabilities;
Complied with all tax, levy, duty, pension and audit commitments as required by the relevant statutes and
regulations;

Settled contractual obligations and paid outstanding amounts owing, including intergovernmental claims,
within the prescribed or agreed period, except where discrepancies have been identified or circumstances
beyond reasonable control have prevented the timely processing and finalisation of such payments;

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

Annual Financial Statements

123



o
>~
[N
o
=}
N
-
I
o
Q
(9]
o
]
>
=
c
<<
>
2
]
%)
©
)
o
=
©
c
o
=1
©
=z

Annual Financial Statements

124

Complied with the provision of the Division of Revenue Act (12 of 2009), prior to transferring funds to provincial
or local governments and ensured that all funds transferred to provinces and municipalities were paid to their
primary bank accounts;

- Obtained written assurances from all entities confirming that those entities have implemented effective,
efficient and transparent financial management and internal control systems prior to funds being transferred
to those entities;

Formulated the internal budget guideline document and subsistence and travelling manual; and
Submitted all required reports to the relevant authorities.

DISCONTINUED DEPARTMENTAL ACTIVITIES

The 2010 FIFA World Cup was completed in July 2010. The specialist unit will prepare a lessons learned report
which will be closed before 31 March 2011.

NEW DEPARTMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Migration of 2010 FIFA World Cup Unit to New Mega Capital Projects Analysis Unit

The 2010 FIFA World Cup Unit has developed significant institutional knowledge during the delivery of the 2010
FIFA World Cup. The National Treasury recruited, on a contract basis, high calibre expertise to deliver on the
National Treasury’s 2010 FIFA World Cup mandate. This has been successfully done with considerable savings
to the fiscus. The 2010 FIFA World Cup Unit's mandate expires on 31 March 2011, and it would be unwise for the
National Treasury to loose such expertise given the considerable resources that are annually allocated to Mega
Capital Projects. Therefore it is recommended that this 2010 FIFA World Cup Unit migrate to the new Mega Capital
Projects Analysis Unit.

The new unit will have six key functions and will commence operations during financial year 2010/11:
Develop sound relationships with the National Treasury Divisions, line departments and state owned enterprises
companies implementing mega capital projects.
Collect data on a monthly basis from each of the forty nominated mega capital projects until the project
construction and commissioning phase has been completed.

+ Analyse data to determine project delays, cost overruns, risks going forward and forward data for use in
economic modeling.

«+ Preparation of reports on a regular basis to guide decision makers (National Treasury Divisions, Offices of the
Director-General and Minister of Finance).

- Develop relationships with private sector companies implementing mega capital projects.



9.1

9.2

9.3

ASSET MANAGEMENT

In terms of Sub-section 38(1) (b) of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999) as amended, the Accounting
Officer for the Department is responsible for the effective, efficient, economical and transparent use of the
resources of the Department.

In addition to the normal day-to-day administration and management of the National Treasury’s Asset Register,
the Department’s Asset Management Unit undertook several key activities to improve on the overall asset
management environment of the Department. These activities are as follows:

ASSET VERIFICATION

Assets are departmental resources that should be disclosed in the Department’s annual financial statements. As
such the Department ensured that all departmental assets are properly tagged, verified and accounted for and
that any lost or redundant assets are identified and removed from the asset register on a timely basis.

An asset verification process was conducted during the current financial year in order to ensure that departmental
assets are accounted for and reported accurately in the annual financial statement.

ASSET DISPOSAL

During the 2009/10 financial year, the Asset Management Unit, in line with the National Treasury Asset Management
Disposal Policy, National Regulations and Governance report pertaining to corporate social responsibility,
managed to dispose redundant and obsolete assets as follows:
Donated 80 desktop computers to four state schools in Venda, in support of the community project that was
initiated by the University of Pretoria (Meteorology Community Project).
The schools that benefited from the above mentioned project are Gonde Primary, Tshanowa Primary, Tshiavha
Primary and Gilbert Mulondo Primary School.
Identified and disposed 268 assets through a bid process to National Treasury staff members. These comprised
of 2 motor vehicles, 81 computer equipment and 105 office machinery and equipment items.

The department will continue to support needy communities in the 2010/11 financial year.

ACQUISITION OF ICT ASSETS

The department follows Supply Chain Management processes in the acquisition of assets. There is an Information
Communication and Technology (ICT) Procurement Committee, which comprises Financial Management and
Information Technology. The terms of reference of the committee will be reviewed in the 2010/11 financial year
and this includes effectiveness of its operation.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Divisional heads have reported to the Director-General on a regular basis on the progress made with regard to the
programme delivery and measurable objectives, as contained in the National Treasury’s Strategic Plan.

SCOPA RESOLUTIONS

There were no new SCOPA resolutions relating to the National Treasury from the 2008/09 financial year.

PRIOR MODIFICATIONS TO AUDIT REPORTS

No matters of significance were reported on by the AGSA regarding the Department’s administration. Those
internal control related matters highlighted in the management letter were addressed and required control
processes implemented to prevent the re-occurrence of those matters.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to express my appreciation to all the members of staff for their continuous dedication, commitment
and hard work in ensuring the proper execution of the National Treasury’s mandate.

APPROVAL
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Lesetja Kganyago
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF VOTE 7: NATIONAL TREASURY

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTRODUCTION

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of the National Treasury, which comprise the appropriation
statement, the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the statement of financial performance, statement
of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 133 to 214.

ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury, as set out in accounting
policy note 1.1 and in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act
No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2009 (Act No. 12 of 2009) (DoRA). This
responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.

AUDITOR-GENERAL'S RESPONSIBILITY

As required by section 188 of the Constitution of South Africa and section 4 of the Public Audit Act of South Africa,

2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1570 of 2009 issued
in Government Gazette 32758 of 27 November 2009. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion.

OPINION

In my opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the National
Treasury as at 31 March 2010, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
the modified cash basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury, as set out in accounting policy note 1.1 and
in the manner required by the PFMA and DoRA.

EMPHASIS OF MATTERS

| draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters:

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The National Treasury’s policy is to prepare financial statements on the modified cash basis of accounting determined by
the National Treasury, as set out in accounting policy note 1.1.
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RESTATEMENT OF CORRESPONDING FIGURES
As disclosed in the statements of changes in net assets and notes 9, 12, 16, 17, 20, 24 and 28 to the financial statements,

the corresponding figures for 31 March 2009 have been restated as a result of an error discovered during the 2009-10 year
in the financial statements of the National Treasury at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2009.

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

As disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure of R2,746,235 relating to the prior year was
incurred, as a proper tender process had not been followed.

ADDITIONAL MATTER

| draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter:

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

Annexure 1 A (statement of conditional grants paid to provinces) on page 178, Annexure 1 C (statement of unconditional
grants paid to municipalities) on pages 181 to 195 and Annexure 1 D (statement of in-kind conditional grants and transfers
to municipalities) on page 196, include a column of amounts spent by the provinces and municipalities. | have not audited
these amounts and accordingly | do not express an opinion thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In terms of the PAA and General Notice 1570 of 2009 issued in Government Gazette 32758 of 27 November 2009, | include
below my findings on the report on predetermined objectives, compliance with the PFMA, DoRA, Municipal Finance
Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) and the Public Service Act of South Africa, 1994 (Proclamation
No. 103 of 1994), and financial management (internal control).

FINDINGS

Predetermined objectives

No matters to report.



Compliance with laws and regulations
Public Service Act of South Africa, 1994 (Proclamation No. 103 of 1994)
Non adherence to legislation

Contrary to requirements of Public Service Regulation 1/1ll/B2(d) no human resource plan was in place for the
medium -term expenditure framework period 2009/10.

INTERNAL CONTROL

| considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and the report on predetermined objectives
and compliance with the PFMA and DoRA, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control. The matters reported below are limited to the deficiencies identified during the audit.

No matters to report.

OTHER REPORTS

INVESTIGATIONS

Aninvestigation was conducted in terms of Proclamation R50 of 2006 published in the Government Gazette on 7 December
2006. Investigation was initiated based on the allegation of possible maladministration of the Special Pensions Board
(board) and improper or unlawful conduct by officials of the board. The investigation identified 374 (6.9%) disentitled
beneficiaries in respect of fraud and/or a schedule 1 conviction as well as 683 (12,6%) instances of misinterpretation of
the Special Pensions Act of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 69 of 1996) by the board. The investigation resulted in 141 (2.6%)
criminal matters that have been handed to the South African Police Service.

A forensic investigation was conducted but the results were not yet made available for review at the time of finalising
the audit.
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PERFORMANCE AUDITS

A performance audit was conducted on the department’s use of consultants during the year under review. The audit is
currently in the reporting phase and the findings will be reported in a separate report.

Aot Levasif

Pretoria
29 July 2010

s

D

AUDITOR-GENERAL
SOUTH AFRICA

’

P

Audifing te build public confidence



ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied
consistently in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated. However, where appropriate and meaningful,
additional information has been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the Financial Statements and to comply
with the statutory requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of
1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in terms of the Act and the Division of Revenue Act, Act 12 of 2009.

PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a modified cash basis of accounting, except where stated
otherwise. The modified cash basis constitutes the cash basis of accounting supplemented with additional
disclosure items. Under the cash basis of accounting transactions and other events are recognised when cash is
received or paid.

PRESENTATION CURRENCY

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional
currency of the department.

ROUNDING

Unless otherwise stated all financial figures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R'000).

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year's financial statements. Where
necessary figures included in the prior period financial statements have been reclassified to ensure that the format
in which the information is presented is consistent with the format of the current year’s financial statements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES - APPROPRIATION STATEMENT

A comparison between actual amounts and final appropriation per major classification of expenditure is included
in the Appropriation Statement.

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

Annual Financial Statements

133



o
>~
[N
o
=}
N
-
I
o
Q
(9]
o
]
>
=
c
<<
>
2
]
%)
©
)
o
=
©
c
o
=1
©
=z

Annual Financial Statements

134

2.1

2.2

23

REVENUE

APPROPRIATED FUNDS

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against revenue fund (i.e.
statutory appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the financial records on the date the appropriation becomes effective.
Adjustments made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the financial records on the date
the adjustments become effective.

The total appropriated funds received during the year are presented in the statement of financial performance.

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the National Revenue Fund. Any amounts owing to the
National Revenue Fund at the end of the financial year are recognised as payable in the statement of financial
position.

DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE

All departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of financial performance when received and is
subsequently paid into the National Revenue Fund, unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the National Revenue Fund is recognised as a payable in the statement of financial position.

No accrual is made for the amount receivable from the last receipt date to the end of the reporting period. These
amounts are however disclosed in the disclosure note to the annual financial statements.

DIRECT EXCHEQUER RECEIPTS / PAYMENTS

All direct exchequer receipts are recognised in the statement of financial performance when the cash is received
and subsequently paid into the National Revenue Fund, unless otherwise stated. All direct exchequer payments
are recognised in the statement of financial performance when final authorisation for payment is effected on the
system (by no later than 31 March of each year). Any amount owing to the National Revenue Funds at the end of
the financial year is recognised as a payable in the statement of financial position.



24

AID ASSISTANCE

Aid assistance is recognised as revenue when received.

All in-kind aid assistance is disclosed at fair value on the date of receipt in the annexures to the annual financial
statements.

The cash payments made during the year relating to aid assistance projects are recognised as expenditure in the
statement of financial performance when final authorisation for payments is effected on the system (by no later
than 31 March of each year).

The value of the assistance expensed prior to the receipt of funds is recognised as a receivable in the statement of
financial position.

Inappropriately expensed amounts using aid assistance and any unutilised amounts are recognised as payables in
the statement of financial position.

All Conservation of Agricultural Resources Act, Act No. 43 of 1983 (CARA) funds received must be recorded as
revenue when funds are received. The cash payments made during the year relating to CARA earmarked projects are
recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance when final authorisation for payments effected
on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

Inappropriately expensed amounts using CARA funds are recognised as payables in the statement of financial
position. Any unutilised amounts are transferred to retained funds as they are not surrendered to the revenue fund.

EXPENDITURE

COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

Short-term employee benefits

The costs of short-term employee benefits are expensed in the statement of financial performance when financial
authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later then 31 March each year).

Short-tem employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in the
disclosure notes to the financial statements. These amounts must not be recognised in the statement of financial
performance or position.

Employee costs are capitalised to the cost of a capital project when an employee spends more than 50% of his/her time
in the project. These payments form part of expenditure for capital assets in the statement of financial performance.
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3.1.2 Post retirement benefits

3.2

3.3

Employer contribution (i.e. social contributions) are expensed in the statement of financial performance when the
final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March each year).

No provision is made for retirement benefits in the financial statements of the department. Any potential liabilities
are disclosed in the financial statements of the National Revenue Funds and not in the financial statements of the
employer department.

Social contribution (such as medical benefits) made by the department for certain of its ex-employees are classified
as transfers to households in the statement of financial performance.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits such as severance packages are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance as a transfer (to households) when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by
no later than 31 March of each year).

Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits (such as capped leave) are recognised as an expense in the statement of
financial performance as a transfer (to households) when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the
system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

Long-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in the
disclosure notes to the financial statements.

GOODS AND SERVICES

Payments made for goods and/or services are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance
when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

The expense is classified as capital if the goods and/or services were acquired for a capital project or if the total
purchase price exceeds the capitalisation threshold (currently R5, 000). All other expenditures are classified as current.

INTEREST AND RENT ON LAND

Interest and rental payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance when the
final authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). This item excludes
rental for the use of buildings or other fixed structures. If it is not possible to distinguish between payment for the
use of land and the fixed structures on it, the whole amount should be recorded under goods and services.



3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Debts are written off when identified as irrecoverable. Debts written-off are limited to the amount of savings
and/or underspending of appropriated funds. The write off occurs at year-end or when funds are available. No
provision is made for irrecoverable amounts but an estimate is included in the disclosure notes to the financial
statements amounts.

All other losses are recognised when authorisation has been granted for the recognition thereof.

TRANSFERS AND SUBSIDIES

Transfers and subsidies are recognised as an expense when the final authorisation for payment is effected on the
system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

UNAUTHORISED EXPENDITURE

When confirmed unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in the statement of financial position until
such time as the expenditure is either approved by the relevant authority, recovered from the responsible person
or written off as irrecoverable in the statement of financial performance.

Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is derecognised from the statement of financial position when
the unauthorised expenditure is approved and the related funds are received.

Where the amount is approved without funding it is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial
performance on the date of approval.

FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance
according to the nature of the payment and not as a separate line item on the face of the statement. If the
expenditure is recoverable it is treated as an asset until it is recovered from the responsible person or written off as
irrecoverable in the statement of financial performance.

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial performance. If the
expenditure is not condoned by the relevant authority it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written
off as irrecoverable.
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4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

ASSETS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost.
Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of financial position.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held,
other short-term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other financial assets are carried in the statement of financial position at cost.

PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES

Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the statement of financial position when the payments are made
and where the goods and services have not been received by year end.

Prepayments and advances outstanding at the end of the year are carried in the statement of financial position
at cost.

RECEIVABLES

Receivables included in the statement of financial position arise from cash payments made that are recoverable
from another party or from the sale of goods/rendering of services.

Receivables outstanding at year-end are carried in the statement of financial position at cost plus any accrued
interest. Amounts that are potentially irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

INVESTMENTS

Capitalised investments are shown at cost in the statement of financial position.

Investments are tested for an impairment loss whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
investment may be impaired. Any impairment loss is included in the disclosure notes.



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.8.1

4.8.2

LOANS

Loans are recognised in the statement of financial position when the cash is paid to the beneficiary. Loans that are
outstanding at year-end are carried in the statement of financial position at cost plus accrued interest.

Amounts that are potentially irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

INVENTORY

Inventories purchased during the financial year are disclosed at cost in the notes.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Movable assets

Initial recognition

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of the item at cost. Cost of an asset is defined as the total cost of acquisition.
Where the cost cannot be determined accurately, the movable capital asset is stated at fair value. Where fair value
cannot be determined, the capital asset is included in the asset register at R1. All assets acquired prior to 1 April
2002 are included in the register R1.

Subsequent recognition

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature is recorded in the statement of financial performance as “expenditure
for capital asset”and is capitalised in the asset register of the department on completion of the project. Repairs
and maintenance is expensed as current “goods and services”in the statement of financial performance.

Immovable assets

Initial recognition

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of the item at cost. Cost of an asset is defined as the total cost of acquisition.
Where the cost cannot be determined accurately, the immovable capital asset is stated at R1 unless the fair value
for the asset has been reliably estimated.

Subsequent recognition

Work-in-progress of a capital nature is recorded in the statement of financial performance as “expenditure for
capital asset” On completion, the total cost of the project is included in the asset register of the department
that legally owns the asset or the provincial/national department of public works. Repairs and maintenance is
expensed as current “goods and services”in the statement of financial performance.
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5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

LIABILITIES

PAYABLES

Recognised payables mainly comprise of amounts owing to other governmental entities. These payables are
carried at cost in the statement of financial position.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes to the financial statements when it is possible that
economic benefits will flow from the department, or when an outflow of economic benefits or service potential is
probable but cannot be measured reliably.

CONTINGENT ASSETS

Contingent assets are included in the disclosure notes to the financial statements when it is possible that an inflow
of economic benefits will flow to the entity.

COMMITMENTS

Commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the
statement of financial performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

ACCRUALS

Accruals are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement
of financial performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in the
disclosure notes to the financial statements. These amounts are not recognised in the statement of financial
performance or the statement of financial position.



5.7 LEASE COMMITMENTS

5.8

7.1

Finance lease

Finance leases are not recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position. Finance lease
payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance and are apportioned between
the capital and interest portions. The finance lease liability is disclosed in the disclosure notes of the annual
financial statements.

Operating lease

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance. The operating
lease commitments are disclosed in the disclosure notes of the annual financial statements.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are disclosed when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to forfeit economic benefits as a
result of events in the past and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

RECEIVABLES FOR DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE

Receivables for departmental revenue are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the annual financial statements.

NET ASSETS

CAPITALISATION RESERVE

The capitalisation reserve comprises of financial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting period
but which are recognised in the statement of financial position for the first time in the current reporting period.
Amounts are recognised in the capitalisation reserves when identified in the current period and are transferred
to the National Revenue Fund when the underlining asset is disposed and the related funds are received.
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7.2

10.

RECOVERABLE REVENUE

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous financial year becomes
recoverable from a debtor in the current financial year. Amounts are either transferred to the National Revenue
Fund when recovered or are transferred to the statement of financial performance when written-off.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Specific information with regards to related party transactions is included in the disclosure notes.

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Compensation paid to key management personnel including their family members where relevant, is included in
the disclosure notes.

PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS

A description of the PPP arrangement, the contract fees and current and capital expenditure relating to the PPP
arrangement is included in the disclosure notes.



-
<
Ll
=
=
=
v
<
O
-
=
(a2
a.
o
0
o
o
<

01/600¢ toawm |enuuy/ >\_3mm®\_._. |euoneN

SlusWelelS [eldueul |enuuy

€€8'€SE’LE ¥07'S89'79 (24n31puadxa |B101) BDULRWLIOLID |RIDURUIY JO JUBWLL)S Jad Sjunowe |en)dy
L'y /%91 2OUBISISSE PIY
‘PPY
00°S¥L'9€ 00'v0t'99 (SNUBA3I |B10]) BDUBWLIOIR [eIdURUIY JO JUBWIL)S Jad sjunowe [endy
98105 LE8Y1 aduejsisse piy
¥GE'0LT'S £6S'EVS'e s1dienal |pruswiedaqg
‘PPY
95UBWIOYIA [eIDURULY JO JUSWISILIS YIM UOIRI|IDU0d3Y
60LTLE'LE YoLvTY'LE %L 66 we'9LL 82£'899'C9 0£5°S¥8'C9 - - 0£5'st8'79 awuweiboud 13d uonendoidde jenuue jejop
085'8£0'0C G81'980'0C %666 €/€'TC 801061y L8k'zLT'Ty 959'8 - SC8'e0T'ty SaIpIsgns pue sigjsuel]
sigjsueip |edsiy 6
YrO'ELET 1Z8'v6C'T %0001 091 £49'626'7 €08'626'7 000'S€ lzs'8 780'988'y seIpIsgns pue sigjsuel|
8178l £98'81 %0001 4 L6Y'ST 6615 - (LzL's) 0ze've aunypuadxa JuaLnd
sjyauag J9YyiQ pue spung
0} SUOIINQUIUO)) ‘suoisudd AIeN|IN PuUe [IAD '8
¥¥0'9¢8', £T0'8€6'L %66 097'€8 LLELTE YL LEYOLY' YL = = LEOLYYL S3IPISANSs pue sisjsuel]
- = = = = = - - - 1uaWAed uaund
$19JSUBI] JUBWUIIAOD [EI0T PUE [BDUINOL]  */
6€6 Y6 %606 LS LS 679 - - 609 2inipuadxe |eyded
000'S 000'S %0001 - 0L0's 0l0's - ol 000'S salpisqns pue sisjsuel|
GGEY8 110’58 %586 8lE'L 506'88 €206 (009'2) (GID) €€8'26 aInlipuadxe 1uan)
suoneay
|erdueul] [euolleUIdlU| pue AJ1j0d Jlwouod3 ‘9
LS 59/ %L Y6 0S 588 566 - = 556 aInypuadxa [exded
1607€L olTyeEL %1'66 99 €8S 86C'€S - 869 009'8 saIpisgns pue sisjsuel|
€1€'89 1T¥'89 %586 9G7'L £6£'€8 6v9'v8 (9z6'01) (869'%) €/7001L ainpuadxa 1uaund
bunioday pue bununodxdy |epueuly g
€€ET LEE'T %909 598 gee’l 861'C = - 861'C s19sse [ended 10j Juswiheq
£8€'0LT ¥15'9/T %Y'88 786'CS 6601 18T'LSY (006'6€) - 18126 1uswAed usun)
swiaisAs pue juswabeuel [epueul]
€LS 99 %6'€EE €0¢ 0oL £0€ - - £L0€ s1955e [e1ded 10) JuswAed
- = - - = - - - - SaIPISNS pue siajsuel|
0€6'L9 zelL'e9 %S'L8 16S'L 0L0'€S £99'09 (00T'9) - £98'S9 JusawiAed 1uannd
jJuswabeuepy ANjiqer] puelassy €
806'L 616'L %8'99 895 Ll [4YA - = [4yA ainupuadxs [eyded
9S¥'0C 9SH'9C %0001 S 9z1'0T LEL'0T - L6¥ €961 SaIpIsgns pue sisjsuel]
769'LcT €1691T %€ 66 199t 99’ L¥T LOE'EVT 00S'LL (L6%) Y0E'TET aInypuadxa Jua1nd
judwabeueyy 196png pue dueulddiqnd ‘T
LoL'e €89'¢ %S'CL 768'C ¥19'L 90501 - - 90501 aInypuadxs [eyded
00S'L 0ls'L %V 76 18 €/€'1 YSy'L = = S salpisgns pue siajsuel|
790'661 0LL'661 %966 ov0'L €08'€€T 6V87€T 0/¥'8 - 6/£'9CC ainipuadxe 11N
uopensiuiwpy ‘L
000.4 0004 % 0004 000.4 0004 000.4 000.4 000.4
uoneudoidde
anypuadxe uoneudoidde T ainypusdxe  uoneudoidde spul uoneudoidde
um.”uu B .m:_ |euy Jo 9, se sdueLIRA um.”ﬁ i .u:_ JUBIAIA m_”___.c : ..Nm:_. awuweiboid 1ad uoneudosddy
fenoy e | fenoy feuty jobumyys  passnipy
60/800C 01/600C

143




60L'TLE'LE  PVIL'VTV'LE  %L'66 we'9LL 87/'899'C9  0/S'S¥8'T9 | - - 0/5'Gt8'79 | uonedyissep diwouodad sad uonerdosdde [enuue [e1o)
LEV'6 SLEoL %S'LL SE9Y 59'LL /8791 = = /8791 Juswdinba pue Aisuiyoepy
sjasse |ejded Joj syuswied
PES'LLET Y0E'€67'C %0001 S8 756667 LEV'0E6'Y 000'GE 609'LL 878'€88'Y SployssnoH
- 89 %8'S6 € 89 V4 - - LL suonn1isul 1yoid-uoN
S8'orC’0L S¥8'orT’ol %0001 6¢ Y97 LE €LV'19T'1E - - €LV'L9T'LE sasludiarus a1eAud pue suoneiodiod dlignd
105055 ¥50'L5S %0001 PEL 981'G5S 07€'SSS 959'8 (18€'0) SHO'67S suoljesiuefio [euoneussiul pue sJUSWUIA0D ubiaio4
9S¥'s 95¥'S %0001 - 9S¥'S 9S¥'s = = 95¥'S SUOYIUYDS) PUB SDNISIDAIUN
LP7'815'6 7816756 %166 GEV'T G86'0L5°0L 0T¥'eL50L - 8697 7T/'895°01 SJUNOdDE pue sadusbe [eyuswiedsg
v6'StL L 900'€58'2 %66 09C'ey LLE'1STYL LE9'00E L - - L€9'00E YL sanijedidiUNW pue sadUIAOId
SsaIpIsqns pue sidjsues]
9St - - (8LlY) 8ly - - - - e|| puUe $1355€ U] SUOIIdesuURI) [epueulq
105209 £15'109 %6 86/'65 €C1'8TL 126482 (0€8'0¢€) 99l'e 686’518 SOJINISS PUE SPOOS
000'LCE £50'LTE %186 189 €/0'°0% $55'80% (9z8'cl) (c60'21) [A4: 197 saakojdwa Jo uonesuadwo)
ainypuadxa jJuaiin)
0004 000.4 % 000.4 000, 000.4 000.4 000.4
anypuadxe  uoneudoidde UG EIEAE anypuadxe  uonendoidde spuny uoneudoidde
enpy Jeury |euy jo o se uelep Jenpy jeuny JUBWIDAIA JoBunyys oy uonedyIsse]d dJiwouody
I - wha___u:wn_xw oo paisni|
60/800C 01/600T
uonesyisse|d d1wouodd Jad uoneudoiddy

01/600¢ 110day |enuuy Ainseai| [euonen

SIUBWISIEIS [eDURUIH [eNUUY

144



145

01/600¢ 110day [enuuy Ainsesi| [puoleN SJUBWIL1LIS [BIDURUL [ENUUY
€99°€0C £96'70T %186 6L0'Y 06L£'T¥T 608'9%C 0/¥'8 - 6EE'BET L dwweiboud 1ad uonendoidde jeror
901 £01 %689 718 S08'L 619C - (150 0/8'C ainpuadxa [ended
- - %0001 - 9C 9C - 9C = S9IpISQNS pue Siajsuel|
8S'Ly 620'8Y %666 7S €91'95 L1795 0z, 969 L0€'81 2In1puadxs Juaund
jJuswabeue|y A1adoud (=4
LTY'T SSL'T 9%6'99 856'L £96'€ 126's - 991 GS/L'S a1nypuadxa [eyded
9/9 589 %C 96 149 olLe'L 9¢'L - 90) 88¢€'l Salpisgns pue sisjsuel|
€56'C01 710'€0l %966 691 08s'/C1 610'8C1 0ST'L 008'€ 666'CCL 2Inypusdxs Jua1nD
s9dIAI9S djelodiod L
899 1c8 %6'€6 0cl or8'L 99'L - S8 188l ainyipuadxs [euded
(8 S8 %195 6¢ A3 99 - - 99 S$aIpIsgNs pue sisjsuel|
€91°9% L9E9Y %066 L6V ole'ly £08'Ly - (951'p) €96'LS 2IN1puadxs 1UsIND
jJuswabeuepy €1l
000'L 100'L %¥'86 0¢ L0T'L [TTL - (081) LOV'L 2InIpuadxa Jualind
@siuy findag - 'L
Y9E'L GoE'L %966 9 €Vl 6¥5'L - (091) 60/'L 2InIpuadxa Jualind)
J2sIUIN 'L
000.4 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4
anypuadxe  uoneudoidde B e ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uopeudoidde
- N |euy Jo o se dueLep - N JUSWIRIIA s awweiboid-gns sad | swweiboid
lenpy leuty am: leny leuly Jobunyys paxsnipy
Mipuadxy
60/800C 01/600C
€990 €96'70T %186 610y 06LTT 608°9C 0Lv'8 - 6EE'8ET uonedylsse]d 51wouod3 1ad uonendoidde jeyoy
LoL'E €89'€ %S'CL 168'C SL9'L 90501 - - 90501 wswdinba pue Aiduiydep
sjasse |ejided 10j syuswiheq
08L'L 681'L %L'L6 €C 116 000'L - - 000'L Sp|oyssnoH
9¢ 9¢ %195 6¢ L€ 99 - - 99 sospdiaius s1eaud pue suoneiodiod dlgngd
¥8¢C S8¢C %ET6 0¢ 85¢ 88¢ - - 88¢ s)unodde pue saidube [erusuedaq
S9IpIsqns pue sidysues)
Gl - - () 144 - - - - |gjel| puUE S33SSe Ul SUOlDeSURIY [BIDURUL
8zl'6C! 8€6'6C1 %€ 66 56 L56'LpL 606'C 1 0LY'8 96v'6 [ 4! SOIIAISS pue SPOoD
61869 7€8'69 %866 8¢l 208'L6 0v6'L6 - (96%'6) 9¢r'Lol soako[dws Jo uoiesusdwod
ain)ipuadxa juaiin)
000.4 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 0004 000.4
uonendoidde
anypuadxe  uoneudoidde ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uoneudoidde
|euy Jo 9%, se adueuen JUSWIBAIA uolnedyisse|d Jiwouod] 4ad | swweibold
[enpy leuty [endy leuty Jo6unyys paxsnipy
aunypuadxg
60/800C 0L/600C




950 88T'SHT %266 vET'T 91629T 0S1s9Z 00S‘LL o 0S9°€ST Z dwweiboud sad uonendoidde jeyoy
0LS €45 %8'85 ovlL 002 [0i43 5 - [0i%3 syasse [eyded 10j Juswheq
000'0C 00097 %0001 - 868'8L 868'8L - - 868'8L SaIpisqns pue Jsjsuel|
6LY'SLL TLEDLL %L 66 8C€ ¥15'8CL 88Tl 005'LL S9L'L 115601 2INypuadxe JuaLND
1oddng juswabeueyy pue jed1uydsl '
00t 1404 %l'EL L 6C¢ 0St - - 0S¥ s1osse [ended 1oj 1uswiAed
L£2'SE £96'SE %686 SSE LpS'CE 968'C¢ - (S¥0'7) LY6'7E 2In1puadxs JusLnd
suone|ay |eusawuidanobiau| €T
/8Y L6 %v'SS 691 ole 6L€ S - 6L€ s1asse [eyded 10} JuswAeq
- - %986 14 9/¢C 08¢ - - 08¢ SaIpIsgns pue siajsuel]
¥06'£E 856'/€ %586 09 7€6'6€ 9€5'0F = 067'1) 9z8'ly 2in1puadxa usund
juawabeuey 196png T
LSy (394 %9 /L 8¢l SOt £vS - - €vS s19sse |e)ded Joj JuawAed
9S¥y oSy %666 L 56 €56 - L6V 9G¥ Solpisqns pue siojsuel|
8€5'CE 0z9'ce %166 L7A3 659'0% €€0'Ly - (£26Y) 096Gy 2IN1pUSdXa JusLND
ddueuld dljqnd 4
000.4 000.4 % 000.4 0004 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4
ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde uonedo.dde ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde uoneudoidde
u_ net [euyjo%se  adueyen e - Juawau spuny et swiwesBoid-gns sad z swwiesboig
[enpy leury [enpy leury J0bunyys passnipy
ainypuadxy
60/800C 01/600T
950V 88T'StT %766 [ 4X44 916'79T 05159z 00S‘LL - 0S9°€ST uonedyIsse|d J1iwouod3 4ad uoneudordde ejol
806'L 616l %899 89S Ll [4YA - - [4VA Juswdinba pue Asauiyoepy
s1asse |ejided 10} Jusawied
- - %t'66 S cLL LLL - L6V 08¢ Sp|oyasnoH
9Sv 14 %0001 - oSt oSt - - oSt SUOXIUYD3) pue SSRISIDAIUN
0000¢ 000'9¢ %0001 - 86881 86881 - - 86881 SIUNODDE pue saidusbe [ejuswiedsg
SaIpISqNs pue siajsuel]
ST - - (€9) €5 - = = - ©l| pUP S1395SE Ul SUOI1DesuUeI) [eldueuly
6€€YLL G95'601L %886 LEV'L 906'81L L £7E0CL 00511 660 ¥/'10L SIDINISS pUR SPOOS
8C€'L0L 8€'/01 %866 11T /89'CCL #96'CC L - (965'2) 095°0¢L se9£0|dwa Jo uonesuadwo)
ainyipuadxa juaiin)
000.4 000.,4 % 0004 000.4 0004 000.4 000.4 000.4
ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde uoney a2 ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uoneudoidde
i b |euy Jo 9, se dueney i o JUSWIDAIA o uolnedyisse|d Jjwouod] 4ad g swweibold
lenpy euyy lenpy leury Jo bunyiys paisnipy
aunypuadxg
60/800C 01/600C

01/600¢ 110day |enuuy Ainseai| [euonen

SlusWwialelS [eldueUl |lenuuy

146



01/600¢ 10day [enuuy Ainseas| [euonen

SlusWelelS [eldueul |enuuy

147

€059 96£'€9 %T'L8 0082 vLL'ES ¥£6'09 (00z’s) - vL1'99 € dwweiboud 1ad uoneudoidde jeroy
- - %0001 - JA L - - VA s19sse [exded Joj JuswAed
SEY'9 619 %L 78 GL0'L 096'S GE0'L - - GE0'L 2IN1puadxe JUsND
juawabeuey ysiy pue A6ajeis S'€
oS LYS %81 6€1L 0¢ 691 - (04) 6€C s1osse [exded Jof 1uswiAed
L1¥01 8l¥ 0L %¢'68 olLe'L 68001 66C'LL (00S'1) Se ¥92'C1 2In)puadxa JuaLnd
suonesadQ [epueuly '€
A ol - - - 5 = = = s19sse |eyded Joj JusuAed
98101 86101 %C€6 /18 LYTLL #90'CL - 0S¥ yLOLL 2IN1puadxs UsND
judwabeuep Ayjiqer] €€
- - %.L'S6 € /9 0/ - 0/ - s19sse [ended Joj 1uawiAed
8/8'L 1 L68'LL %918 SLL'E T6LEL L0691 - (S€) w69l 2Inypuadxe JusLIND
jJuswabeueyy 19ssy '€
0¢ £01 - 19 - 19 - - 19 s19sse [exded U0 JuswAeq
0cL'ce 988'¢€C %268 08¢l 786'LL 9g'EL (00£'¢) (0s¥) [4xya 2Inipuadxa JuaLnd
jJuswabeuepy L'
000.4 0004 % 0004 000.4 000.4 0004 000.4 0004
uoneudoidde
ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde - ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uoneudoidde
|euy Jo o5 se aduelep JUBWIAIIA awweiboid-gns 1ad ¢ swweiboid
|enpy leuty [endy leuly J06unjiys paisnipy
ainypusdx3
60/800C 01/600T
€0S'79 96£'€9 %T'L8 008°L vLL'ES v£6'09 (00Z’s) 5 vL1'99 uonedyisse|d J1wouod3 Jad uoneudordde |eyop
€LS 99 %6'€€ €0C 70l £0€ - - £0€ Juswdinba pue Aisuiydeyy
syasse |eyded 1oy JusawAheq
- - - (1) L = = - - gel| pue S13Sse Uj SUODesURIY [eIDURUIS
£15'8C L1'6C %9'LL SEEY 66671 YEE6L (007'9) - YESYC SOIIAISS pUe SPOOS
ElY'EE Ley'ee %16 €9C'¢ 0£0'8€ €ee'ly - - ece'ly soakojdws Jo uonesusdwo)
ain)ipuadxa juaiin)
000.4 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4
uoneudoidde
ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uoneudoidde
|euy Jo 9, se dueuep JUSWIRMIA uonedyisse|d Jiwouodd Jad g swweibold
leny leuly |eny leuty Jo bunyiys passnipy
aanypuadxg
60/800C 01/600C




0zL'TLe 168'84T %€'88 LY8'ES Z€9'soy 6.¥'65Y (006°6€) - 6L£'661 ¥ swweiboid 1ad uonendoidde jejol
8€0'C L70'C %CT9 90/ 1oLl £98'L = - £98'L s1asse [ended 1oy JusiAeq
0cy'sie vLY'vST %068 028'st 88C'CLE 80L'8LY (006'6€) 0s€ 859'LSY 21N1Ipuadxa JuaLIND
swalshs epueul] €y
e €/ %9°€S ol [ lze - - 43 s1osse [eded 1oy JuaiAed
08¥'0C 105'0¢ %¢E'L8 1002 9er'0€ LEV'LE - (05¢€) [8/'L€ 2IN1pUSdXa JuaLND
juswabeueyy urey) Ajddng Ty
€C €C - oL - ol - - ol s19sse |e)ded Joj JuawAed
[8Y'L 6£5'L %06 19l G/S'L 9¢/'L - - 9¢/'L ainpuadxa 1ua1n>
jJuswabeuepy L'y
000.4 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 0004 000.4
uoneudoidde
aunypuadxe uoneudoidde i ainypuadxe  uoneudoisdde spunj uoneudoidde
|euy Jo o5 se Qdueuen JUBWIAAIA awuweiboid-qgns 1ad  swweiboid
lenpy leuly lenpy leuly Jo bunyys paisnipy
aunypuadxg
60/800C 01/600C
ozL'zLe 168'84T %€'88 LY8'ES 7€9's0y 6.¥'6SY (006°6€) - 6L£'66Y uopedyIsse|d diwouoda 42d uoneridoidde [ejop
€€ET LEET %909 598 eee’l 861'C = s 861'C 1wswdinbs pue Aisuiydep
sjasse |eyided 1oy JusawAheq
L S S (8) 8 S = = - S31}1[ICel| PUB S19SSe Ul SUOIIDeSUe [eldueuly
8176'9€T 690'€tC %9'/8 LEL'LS 80/79¢ SyyoLy (006'6€) - SYE9SY S9INISS PUE SPOOSH
8er'ce Shi'ee %6'96 €Sl €85'6¢ 9€8'0v S S 9¢8'01 s99£0|dwa Jo uonesuadwo)
ainypuadxa juaiin)
000.4 000.4 % 0004 000.4 000.4 000.4 0004 0004
aunypuadxs uoneudoidde U R ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uoneudoidde
. o |euy Jo 9 se sduelen i o JUSWIBAIA - uonedyissed diwouod] Jad iy swweiboid
[enpy leury e [enpy leury Jobunyys passnipy
ipuadx3
60/800C 01/600C

01/600¢ 110day |enuuy Ainseai| [euonen

SlusWwialelS [eldueUl |lenuuy

148



01/600¢ toawm |enuuy/ >\_3mm®\_._. |euoneN

SlusWelelS [eldueul |enuuy

£86'70T 80%'€0C %L'86 (474} OLL'LEL 788'8€L (9z6'01) = 808'67L G dwweiboid 13d uoneudoidde |eyoy
- l - | - | - - | salpIsgns pue siajsuel|
@dueinsulay abunuoy 9§
8T¥'90L S#S'901 %0001 - 9¢9'61 9€9'61 - 865 8061 salpisgns pue sisjsuel]
salpog A1o1njels yipny [
/8 88 %6'LS St 851 €LC - /91 Q0L aInipusdxe 1ua.nd)
(s)ueg |enJawwo)) sabiey) dIAISS 'S
- L - l - L - - L SaIpIsgns pue siajsuel|
S3IUOIA JI|qNd JO JUBWISIAU|  €°G
/8 601 %68 a4 99¢ 801 - (620 €9 s1asse [eded 1o Juswheq
- - %096 9l 9¢6'e 00l - 00l'y - S9IPISQNS PUe Sisjsuel|
LET6T 19z'6¢ %586 865 £90'8¢ 199'8¢ (950'9) (6vC) 996'Ly 2IN1puadxa JusLnd
juswanoidwi juswabeuey jepueuly  Z'§
06 959 %586 8 615 LTS - 6CC 86C s1asse [euded 1oy JuswiAeq
699'/C 699'£C %066 00€ 09Z'6C 095'6¢ - - 095'6¢ Salpisgns pue sisjsuel|
686'8€ 8/0'6€ %886 €vS LSy SlL'Sy (0£8'9) 919 10C'es 21n}puadxa JuaLIND
sjunoddy |euonep 104 bunioday jenueury 1's
000.4 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4
uoneudoidde
aunypuadxa uoneudoidde ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uoneudoidde
|euy Jo 9 se adueep JUSWIBIIA awuweiboid-qgns 1ad g swweiboid
[enpy leuty [enpy Jeuty Jobunyys paisnipy
aumipuadxy
60/800C 01/600C
£86'70C 80t'€0C %L 86 L' OLL'ZEL 788'8€L (9z6'0L) - 808'67L uoljedyIsse]d diwouodd 12d uonendoidde jeyor
Y7 S9L %S 76 LS 738 G€6 = = S€6 wuswdinba pue Aisuiyoepy
s1asse |eyded 10j juswied
- - - 00€ - 00¢ - - 00€ Sp|oyasnoH
£607€L olzveEL %/'66 991 7€8'TS 866'CS = 8697 00€'8% SJUNODDE pue sapusbe [eyuswiedsg
SaIpIsgns pue siaysuel]
8 - - ©61) 6l - - - - IGjel| pUe S33SSe Ul SUolDeSUeIY [eIdURUl
6v9'LE 89/'L€ %v'L6 €/8 685'CE Or'EE (005'9) (869') 099'cy SOIIAISS pue SPooD
959'0¢ 659'0€ %C 66 Loy 9805 /8l'LS (92+'S) = €19'95 saakojdwia Jo uonesuadwio)
ain)ipuadxa juaiin)
000.4 000.4 % 0004 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4
uoneudoidde
aunypuadxa uopeudoidde anypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uopeudoidde
[euy Jo 95 se dueep JUSWIDIIA uonedyisse|d diwouod] 4ad g swweiboid
[endy leuty [enpy leuty J06unyys paxsnipy
anypuadxy
60/800C 0L/600C

149




62'06 85606 %9°'86 SLE'L L8V'V6 798'S6 (009°2) - ov'solL 9 swweiboid 1od uoneudoidde [ejoy
6¢ ¥6€ 9%C %9 Y€ 19 56 S (10 oLl s1asse [ended 1oy JuswAed
£96'61 ¥20'0C %C'86 €6C 05091 EVE9L 0450 (¢z9) SEV'6L 2INypuadxe JusLnd
o104 51wouody g9
cle 4% %6 S 65 %9 - (09) ylL s19sse [exded Joj JuswiAed
719'81 199'81 %566 601 56861 96’61 (0€1) 8Ll 9/5'8lL ainypuadxa Juan>
SJJwouod] [euoneuwId| 9
Sl Lyl %8'S6 8 181 681 - 19 8¢l s1asse [eyded 1o} uswikeq
€0V'SL 8i7'SL %Y'66 601 987'LL S6E'/L (00%'1) 19 €81 2IN1pUSdxs Jua1ND
flodxel €9
ol 8yl %6'S6 8 S8l €61 - Ly ol S195se [ended Joj JusulAed
- - %0001 - ol ol - ol = S3IPISANS puUe siajsuel|
06261 661 %586 9le 6£8'0C SSl'Le (009'7) €91°C 765'LT aInypuadxa 1uaun>
£d1]04 101336 [epueuly 79
144 144 %L L6 C 98 88 - (£8) 4! syasse |elded 10 JusWwAey
0005 0005 %0001 - 000'S 000'S - - 000'S SaIpIsgns pue siajsuel]
G80'LL v8Y'LL %8'96 L6y S/8%1 99¢€'S1 (00¢€) (0€8°€) 9661 2InIpuadxa JuaLind
ydaeasay pue juswabeuepy 1'9
000.4 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4
uoneudoidde
ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uoneudoidde
|euy Jo 9, se dueLEA JUSWIRIIA awuweiboid-qns 1ad 9 swweiboid
[enpy [euty [endy leuty J06unyys paxsnipy
anypuadxy
60/800C 0L/600C
6206 85606 %9'86 SLE'L L8Y'V6 798'S6 (009°2) - 91'eo0L uojedyIsse|d diwouods 12d uonerdoidde jeyoy
6€6 (16 %606 /5 LS 679 S S 679 Juswdinba pue Aisuiyoepy
sjasse [eyided 1oy Juswiheq
= = %0001 = ol ol = ol - SployasnoH
000'S 000'S %0001 - 000'S 000'S - - 000'S SUOYIUYD3] PUE SINISISAIUN
SaIpIsgns pue siaysuel]
4 - - (09) 05 = = = - Sa1M[IGeI| PUE S19SSE Ul SUONDPSURIY [PIDUBUIL
£00'8E 659'8¢ %€ 66 6lC 0lLz'6T 676'6C (000) (oL) 6€1'0¢ SIDINISS pUR SPOOS
obe9r 75€'9 %186 67L'L S¥1'6S 76209 (00%'2) - #6929 se9£0|dwa Jo uonesuadwo)
ainjyipuadxa juaiin)
000.4 000.4 % 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 0004 000.4
uoneudoidde
ain)puadxe uoneudoidde + ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uoneudoidde
|euy Jo o5 se aouenep JUSWRIIA uonedyissed dJiwouodd Jad 9 wweiboid
feniy Jeury - feniy feud Jobunyys passnipy
ipuadx3
60/800C 01/600C

01/600¢ 110day |enuuy Ainseai| [euonen

SlusWwialelS [eldueUl |lenuuy

150



01/600¢ 10day [enuuy Ainseas| [euonen

SlusWelelS [eldueul |enuuy

v0'9Z8'L £T0'8€6'L %V'66 097'€8 LLE'LTEYL LEg'oLy'yL - LEI'OLY'PL £ 3wweiboud 1ad uonendoidde eyor
- - %0001 - 00000 00000 - 000'00C'% SoIpISgNs pue sigjsued|
ueojulennen  p/
£55'19C 0vS'eLE %t'L8 657'€8 GEL'8LS 76€'199 - ¥6£'199 salpisgns pue sigjsuel]
juein
diysiauyied uswdojaaag pooyinoqybisN €/
000081 000081 %0001 - 066'66¢ 066'66C - 066'66C Ssalpisgns pue sisjsuel|
sjuesp bulndNAsSaY
juswabeuely [eIDUBUIY JUSWUIBAOCD [0 7'/
e et . I P o salpisqns pue siaysuel|
[8Y'V8E'L [8Y¥8E'L %0001 L 45740 LYC6vT6 LYT6vT6
jueID INJdNJISRIU| [BIDUIAOI] 1’
0004 000.4 % 0004 000.4 000.4 000.4 0004 000.4
ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde e EEEE ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uoneudoidde
* N |euy Jo 9 se adueLep i N JUBWIAIIA T awweiboid-gns 1ad £ swweiboid
[endY leuiy [endyY leuty Jobunyys paisnipy
anypuadxy
60/800C 01/600¢
70'978'L £T0'8€6'L %Y'66 09Z's8 LLELTEYL | LEIOLY' VL - LEYOLY'VL uonedy|sse]d 51wouod3 13d uonendoidde [ejoy
001'08 12058 %9'€9 00001 000'0Z 0000L L - 0000L L 51UNod2e pue sauabe [eruswledag
Y6'SyL'L 900'€58'2 %L 66 097'cl L/E'/STyL L€9'00€ L - L€9'00€ 7L sanljedidIUNW pue SedUIAOI]
S9IPISQNS pue si1djsuel]
0004 000.4 % 0004 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4
ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde uoneydoudde anypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uonendoidde
. i |euy Jo 95 se ueep i b JUSWIBMIA o uonedyisse|d diwouod] 4ad /£ swweiboid
[enpy leury [enpy leury J0bunyys pasnipy
anypuadxy
60/800C 01/600C

151



T9T'LEET 889'ELE'T %0°00L 9L 0vL'SS6'y Z0€'SS6'Y 000'SE - z0€'026'y 8 swweiboid 1ad uonendoidde jejoy
98¢'¥S1 8TY¥SL %0001 0€ T6'191 756'191 - (#S9'L L) 909'¢/L solpisgns pue siajsued|
Y0C'E 85C'E %0001 L [86'C 886'C - (826'1) ol6Y 2IN1Ipuadxa JuaLND
sjyauag 19Yi0 pue suoisusad Kiejiiy '8
85/'8S1'C €6£071'C %0001 0€L L¢L'L9L'y 1S8'29L"y 000'S€ SLE0C oUY'CLLY Solpisgns pue siojsued|
¥10'SL 609'SL %0001 L 0ls'ce L16'ce - (€6£'9) Y0€'6C 2Inlipusdxa JuaLlind
spung 0} SUOIINQIIUOD) pUB SUOISU [IAID '8
000.4 000.4 % 0004 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4
ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde L s ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde s| uoneudoidde
il et |euy Jo 9, se dueep pU net JUSWIDAIA puny heL swweiboid-qns 1ad g swweibold
[enpdy [euty [endy Jeuty J06unyys paisnipy
aunypuadxg
60/800C 01/600C
TT'LEET 889'ELE'T %0°00L 9L ovL'SS6'y ZO0E'SS6'Y 000'SE - T0£'026' uonedy|sse|d d1wouoda 1ad uonendoidde |ejoy
¥SEOLE' T SLL'zeT' C %0001 /51 €61'876'7 0S€'826% 000'GE 0LLL 877’788 Sp|oyasnoH
- 89 %8'S6 € 89 Y4 - = V4 suonninsul 1yoid-uoN
069'C 8€9'C %0001 - 8€'L g€l - (18€'0) €9/'¢ suoljes|uebIo [euolieuIR)Ul pue syusWUISA0E ubiai04
SaIpISqNs pue siajsuel|
S0€ - - (ev0) 324 - - - - gel| puUE S33sse Ul SUORdesuUeIy [eloueuld
€L6'LL £98'81 %066 974 ¥ST'ST 667'SC - (12L'8) 0ze've SIINISS PUB SPOOS
ainyipuadxa juaiin)
0004 000.4 % 0004 0004 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4
ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde LEDEIEREGE ainypuadxe  uonendoidde spuny uoneudoidde
- T |euy Jo 9, se duelep . b JUSWIDAIA S uonedyisse|d Jiwouod] Jod g swweiboid
lenpy leury ain fenpy leuyy J0bunyys paisnipy
jpuadxy
60/800C 01/600C

01/600¢ 1oday |lenuuy/ \ijmw\g |euoneN

SlusWwialelS [eldueUl |lenuuy

152



01/600¢ 10day [enuuy Ainseas| [euonen

SlusWelelS [eldueul |enuuy

085'8£0°0T G81'S80°0Z  %6'66 €LE'TT 80L’'06L°cy | L8Y'TLT'TY | 999'8 - ST8's0T'ty 6 dwuweiboid 1ad uonendoidde [eror
S61'€C S61'€C %0001 4 16581 66581 - (L0Z'e) 008'LT Solpisqns pue sigjsuel]
s1>9foid [euoneusdlu]  S'6
678'191 57’891 %666 o€l 62€'sCl 65¥'sCl - (£v5'81) 90071 L SoIpIsgns pue sisjsuel|
suoimsul [erR1eINN ¥'6
89¥'C9¢ 697'79¢ %0001 4 8/8'60v 088'60¥ 959'8 8v/'LT oLY'6LE Solpisgns pue sijsuel]
1oddng pue uoneibaju| uesryy €6
608'917¢ 608'91¢ %0001 - LOV'L9C L0Y'£9C - - LOV'L9C solpisgns pue sisjsuel]
si9jsuel] swweiboidonsswoq 76
096'€8C'61 096'€8C'61 %866 6€C'CC £68'89€' LY 9el'l6E LY - - 9el'L6E LY solpisgns pue sisjsuel]
19jsueu) K1e1abpng onsawoq 1'6
0004 000.4 % 000.4 0004 0004 000.4 000.4 000.4
ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde uoneudoudde ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde ul uoneudoidde
! nel |euy Jo o5 se duelep ! nel JUBWIBAIA spuny el awweiboid-gns 1ad g swweiboid
[enpy leury e [enpy leury J0bunyys pasnipy
Ipuadx3y
60/800C 01/600T
0858£0°0C S8L'S80°0Z = %6'66 €L€'TT 80L'06L°cy  L8Y'TLZ'TY | 9598 - ST8'€0T Ty uonedyisse|d dlwouodd Jad uoneridoidde jejol
60897201 60891201 %0001 - L0¥'29T L€ L0¥'29T' L€ - - L0V'L9T' L€ sasudizue areaud pue suoieiodiod dljgngd
suonesjuebio
L18'L¥S 9L¥'¥SS %0001 Pel ¥08'€SS 8E6'€SS 959'8 - 78T'SYS [PUOIRUISIUI PUB SJUSWWSA0E UBI2104
096'€87'6 096'€87'6 %866 6€7'TC £68'89€0L 9eL'l6E0L - - 9eL'l6E0L sJunodde pue sappusbe [eruswiiedsg
S3IPISCNS pue sisjsuel]
000.4 000.4 % 0004 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4 000.4
uoneudoidde
anypuadxe  uoneudoidde ainypuadxe  uoneudoidde spuny uoneudoidde
|euy Jo 9, se sdueLen JUSWIBAIA uolnedyisse|d Jjwouod] 4ad 6 swwelbold
leny leuld leny leuly J06unyys paisnipy
aunypuadxg
60/800C 01/600C

153



NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT

1. DETAIL OF TRANSFERS AND SUBSIDIES AS PER APPROPRIATION ACT
(AFTER VIREMENT):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note 7 (Transfers and subsidies), disclosure notes and
Annexure 1 (A-J) to the Annual Financial Statements.

2. DETAIL OF SPECIFICALLY AND EXCLUSIVELY APPROPRIATED
AMOUNTS VOTED (AFTER VIREMENT):

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in note 1 (Annual Appropriation) to the annual financial statements.

3. DETAIL ON FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in note 6 (Financial transactions in assets and liabilities)
to the Annual Financial Statements.

Annual Financial Statements
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Per economic classification

Current expenditure
Compensation of employees
Goods and services
Financial transactions in assets and
liabilities

Transfers and subsidies
Provinces and municipalities
Departmental agencies and
accounts
Universities and technikons
Public corporations and private
enterprises
Foreign governments and international
organisations
Non-profit institutions
Households

Payments for capital assets
Machinery and equipment

Total per economic classification

. Variance
Final Actual .
o . Variance as a % of final
appropriation expenditure ..
appropriation
R’000 R'000 R'000 %
1,196,475 1,130,614 65,861 5.5
408,554 402,073 6,481 1.6
787,921 728,123 59,798 7.6
_ 418 (418) 0.0
61,632,808 61,526,462 106,346 0.2
14,300,631 14,257,373 43,258 0.3
10,573,420 10,510,985 62,435 0.5
5,456 5,456 = 0.0
31,267,473 31,267,444 29 0.0
555,320 555,186 134 0.0
71 68 3 4.2
4,930,437 4,929,950 487 0.0
16,287 11,652 4,635 28.5
16,287 11,652 4,635 285
62,845,570 62,668,728 176,842 0.3




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFOMANCE

PERFORMANCE Note 2009/10 2008/09 §
R'000 R’000 §

g

REVENUE ko

Annual appropriation 1 62,845,570 31,424,164 T

Departmental revenue 2 3,543,597 5,270,354 E

Aid assistance 3 14,837 50,486 2

TOTAL REVENUE 66,404,004 36,745,004 =
C
S

EXPENDITURE 2

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees 4 402,073 321,000

Goods and services 5 728,123 602,501

Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 6 418 456

Aid assistance 3 16,139 41,103

Total current expenditure 1,146,753 965,060

Transfers and subsidies 61,526,462 30,378,721

Transfers and subsidies 7 61,526,462 30,378,721

Expenditure for capital assets 11,989 10,052

Tangible capital assets 8 11,989 10,052

Total expenditure for capital assets

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 62,685,204 31,353,833

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 3,718,800 5,391,171

Reconciliation of net surplus/(deficit) for the year

Voted funds 176,842 112,055

Annual appropriation 176,842 112,055

Departmental revenue 2 3,543,597 5,270,354

Aid assistance 3 (1,639) 8,762

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 3,718,800 5,391,171
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Prepayments and advances
Receivables

Aid assistance receivable

Non-current assets
Investments
Loans

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund

Cash and cash equivalents

Departmental revenue to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
Payables

Aid assistance repayable

Aid assistance unutilised

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Represented by:
Capitalisation reserve
Recoverable revenue

TOTAL

*Reclassification of the prior year amount.

Note 2009/10 2008/09
R’000 R’000

194,233 148,221

9 50,191 1,710*
10 1,373 982
11 140,001 144,603
3 2,668 926
44,947,667 10,400,956

12 400,956 400,956*
13 44,546 711 10,000,000
45,141,900 10,549,177

193,984 147,967

14 176,842 112,055
16 = 14,734*
15 2,841 1,753
17 11,349 8,765*
3 = 7,811
3 2952 2,849%
193,984 147,967

44,947,916 10,401,210

400,956 400,956*

44,546,960 10,000,254*

44,947,916 10,401,210




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Note 2009/10 2008/09 §

R'000 R'000 g

5

Capitalisation reserves §

Opening balance 400,956 400,956* E

Closing balance 400,956 400,956 é

Recoverable revenue 3

Opening balance 10,000,254 98 =

Transfers: 34,546,706 10,000,156 é

Irrecoverable amounts written off = (1) z
Debts recovered (included in departmental receipts) (2,768) (5426)*
Debts raised 34,549,474 10,005,583*
Closing balance 44,546,960 10,000,254
TOTAL 44,947,916 10,401,210

*Reclassification of the prior year amount.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

CASH FLOW Note 2009/10 2008/09
R’000 R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 66,324,881 36,625,675

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

Annual appropriated funds received 1 62,845,570 31,424,164
Departmental revenue received 2 3,464,474 5,151,025
Aid assistance received 3 14,837 50,486
Net decrease/(increase) in working capital 6,795 (135,733)
Surrendered to Revenue Fund (3,654,564) (6,060,393)
Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor (7,811) (8)
Current payments (1,146,753) (965,060)
Transfers and subsidies paid (61,526,462) (30,378,721)
Net cash flow available from operating activities 18 (3,914) (914,240)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for capital assets 8 (11,989) (10,052)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 2.3 212 324
Increase in loans (34,546,711) (10,000,000)
Net cash flows from investing activities (34,558,488) (10,009,728)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Distribution/dividend received 2.2 78911 119,005
Increase in net assets 34,546,706 10,000,130
Net cash flows from financing activities 34,625,617 10,119,135
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 63,215 (804,833)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period (13,024) 791,809
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 9&19 50,191 (13,024)
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1.

2.1

2.2

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ANNUAL APPROPRIATION
Final Actual Fundsnot Appropriation
Appropriation Funds requested/not received
Received received 2008/09
R'000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Administration 246,809 246,809 = 204,963
Public Finance and Budget Management 265,150 265,150 - 245,288
Asset and Liability Management 60,974 60,974 - 63,796
Financial Management and Systems 459,479 459,479 = 2783851
Financial Accounting and Reporting 138,882 138,882 - 203,408
Economic Policy and International 95,862 95,862 = 90,958
Financial Relations
Provincial and Local Government Transfers 14,410,631 14,410,631 - 7,938,027
Civil and Military Pensions, Contribution 4,955,302 4,955,302 = 2,313,688
to Funds and Other benefits
Fiscal transfers 42,212,481 42,212,481 - 20,085,185
Total 62,845,570 62,845,570 31,424,164
DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE
Note 2009/10 2008/09
R’000 R’000
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 300421 49,280
Interest, dividends and rent on land 2.2 2,085,054 4,953,175
Sales of capital assets 2.3 212 324
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 2.4 1,157,910 267,575
Departmental revenue collected 3,543,597 5,270,354
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets
Sales of goods and services produced by the department 300418 49,273
Sales by market establishment 85 86
Other sales 300,333 49,187
Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods 3 7
Total 300,421 49,280
Interest, dividends and rent on land
Interest 2,006,143 4,834,170
Dividends 78,911 119,005
Total 2,085,054 4,953,175
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23

24

3.1

3.2

33

Note 2009/10 2008/09
R’000 R’'000
Sale of capital assets
Tangible capital assets
Machinery and equipment 212 324
Total 212 324
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities
Receivables 70 212
Other receipts including Recoverable Revenue 1,157,840 267,363
Total 1,157,910 267,575
AID ASSISTANCE
Aid assistance received in cash from RDP
Foreign
Opening balance 9,734 980
Revenue 14,837 50,486
Expenditure (16,476) (41,724)
Current (16,139) (41,103)
Capital (337) 621)
Surrendered to the RDP (7811) (8)
Closing balance 284 9,734
Total assistance
Opening balance 9,734 980
Revenue 14,837 50,486
Expenditure (16,476) (41,724)
Current (16,139) (41,103)
Capital (337) (621)
Surrendered / transferred to retained funds (7,811) 8)
Closing balance 284 9,734
Analysis of balance
Aid assistance receivable (2,668) (926)
RDP (2,668) (926)
Aid assistance unutilised 2,952 2,849
RDP 2,952 2,849
Aid assistance repayable - 7,811
RDP - 7811
Closing balance 284 9,734




4.1

4.2

5.

COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES

Salaries and Wages

Basic salary

Performance award

Service Based
Compensative/circumstantial
Other non-pensionable allowances
Total

Social contributions

Employer contributions
Pension

Medical

Bargaining council

Total

Total compensation of employees

Average number of employees

GOODS AND SERVICES

Administrative fees
Advertising

Assets less then R5,000
Bursaries (employees)
Catering
Communication
Computer services

Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services

Entertainment

Audit cost — external

Inventory

Operating leases*

Owned and leasehold property expenditure
Travel and subsistence

Venues and facilities

Training and staff development

Other operating expenditure

Total

Note 2009/10 2008/09
R’000 R’000

260,326 203,843

18,087 19,615

1,132 1,326

1,401 1,503

81,788 63,274

362,734 289,561

30,319 24,293

8,990 7,120

30 26

39,339 31,439

402,073 321,000

1,007 861

11,637 14,975

1,897 4,451

5.1 1,546 1,058
1,985 2,189

1,973 2,506

7,400 5473

52 386,698 252,693
53 183,401 184,466
137 248

54 8,468 7,579
55 16,825 16,612
30,739 24,789

5.6 13,358 8715
57 36,214 43914
8,458 17,427

9,957 9,910

58 7,430 5,496
728,123 602,501

*QOperating leases includes rental payments and copy expenses that do not form part of lease commitments.
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5.1

52

53

54

55

56

Note 2009/10 2008/09
R’000 R’000
Assets less than R5,000
Tangible assets
Machinery and equipment 1,546 1,058
Total 1,546 1,058
Computer services
SITA computer services 34,303 44,327
External computer service providers 352,395 208,366
Total 386,698 252,693
Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services
Business and advisory services 161,619 135,581
Legal costs 10,512 12,324
Contractors 2,019 3,710
Agency and support/outsourced services 9,251 32,851
Total 183,401 184,466
Audit cost - External
Regularity audits 7,603 6,620
Performance audits 731 550
Forensic investigations 134 409
Total 8,468 7,579
Inventory
Food and food supplies 810 654
Fuel, oil and gas 341 802
Other consumable materials 825 795
Maintenance material 242 52
Stationery and printing 14,607 14,309
Total 16,825 16,612
Owned and leasehold property expenditure
Municipal services = 8,656
Property management fees 8,340 =
Property maintenance and repairs 4,944 =
Other 74 59
Total 13,358 8,715




57

58

6.1

6.2

Note 2009/10 2008/09
R’'000 R'000
Travel and subsistence
Local 20,786 22,071
Foreign 15,428 21,843
Total 36,214 43,914
Other operating expenditure
Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees 6,181 4,054
Resettlement costs 916 1,039
Other 333 403
Total 7,430 5,496
FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Other material losses written off 6.1 338 148
Debts written off 6.2 80 308
Total 418 456
Other material losses written off
Nature of losses
Accident damages 124 19
Miscellaneous 214 129
Total 338 148
Debts written off
Civil and military pension (bad debts) 50 304
Staff debt written off 30 4
Total 80 308
TRANSFERS AND SUBSIDIES
Annex 1A,
Provinces and municipalities OIS 1 14,257,373 7,745,944
Annex 1C,
Annex 1D
Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1E 10,510,985 9,518,441
Universities and technikons Annex 1F 5,456 5,456
Foreign governments and international organisations Annex 1H 555,186 550,501
Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1G 31,267,444 10,246,845
Non-profit institutions Annex 1/ 68 =
Households Annex 1J 4,929,950 2,311,534
Total 61,526,462 30,378,721
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8.1

8.2

10.

Note 2009/10 2008/09
R'000 R'000
EXPENDITURE FOR CAPITAL ASSETS
Tangible assets
Machinery and equipment 29 11,989 10,052
Total 11,989 10,052
Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets — 2009/10
Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R’000 R’000 R’000
Tangible assets
Machinery and equipment 11,652 337 11,989
Total 11,652 337 11,989
Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets — 2008/09
Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R’000 R’000 R’000
Tangible assets
Machinery and equipment 9,431 621 10,052
Total 9,431 621 10,052
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Consolidated Paymaster General Account 42,996 ¥
Cash on hand 21 21
Cash with commercial banks (Local) 7174 1,689
Total 50,191 1,710
*Reclassification of the prior year amount.
PREPAYMENTS AND ADVANCES
Travel and subsistence 108 117
Prepayments 1,265 865
Total 1,373 982




11.

11.2

1.3

12.

RECEIVABLES

2009/10 2008/09
R’000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R’000
Less thanone One to three Older than
Total Total
Note year years three years
Claims recoverable  11.1 4,608 127,663 6,163 138,434 141,795
Staff debt 11.2 172 354 17 543 578
Other debtors 11.3 544 44 436 1,024 2,230
Total 5,360 128,025 6,616 140,001 144,603
Note 2009/10 2008/09
R’000 R’000
Claims recoverable
National departments 2,356 6,387
Provincial departments 126,267 126,478
Foreign governments 316 481
Households and non-profit institutions 9,495 7,949
Total 138,434 141,795
Staff debt
Departmental Debt 455 515
Other staff debts 88 63
Total 543 578
Other debtors
Theft and losses 436 465
Value added tax (SARS) 347 1,681
Miscellaneous 241 84
Total 1,024 2,230
INVESTMENTS
Non-Current (non-current shares)
Development Bank of Southern Africa Annex 2A & 2B 200,000 200,000
Public Investment Corporation Limited Annex 2A & 2B 1 1
SASRIA* Annex 2A & 2B - -
Land Bank Annex 2A & 2B 200,955 200,955%*
Total 400,956 400,956

*Total shareholding in SASRIA Limited amounts to R1. Refer to Annexure 2A for more details.

**Disclosure of Land Bank equity.
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13.

14.

15.

160

17.

Note 2009/10 2008/09
R'000 R’000
Analysis of non current investments
Opening balance 400,955 400,955*
Closing balance 400,956 400,956
*Adjustment of opening balance of investment in Land Bank
LOANS
Public corporations 44,456,711 10,000,000
Total 44,546,711 10 000 000
Analysis of balance
Opening balance 10,000,000 -
New issues 34,546,711 10,000,000
Closing balance 44,546,711 10,000,000

VOTED FUNDS TO BE SURRENDERED TO THE REVENUE FUND

Opening balance 112,055 782,199
Transfer from statement of financial performance 176,842 112,055
Paid during the year (112,055) (782,199)
Closing balance 176,842 112,055

DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE TO BE SURRENDERED TO THE REVENUE FUND

Opening balance 1,753 9,593
Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 3,543,597 5,270,354
Paid during the year (3,542,509) (5,278,194)
Closing balance 2,841 1,753
BANK OVERDRAFT

Consolidated Paymaster General Account - (14,734)*

*Reclassification of the prior year amount.

PAYABLES - CURRENT

Advances received 17.1 93 =
Clearing accounts 17.2 66 44*
Other payables 17.3 11,190 8,721
Total 11,349 8,765




17.1

17.2

17.3

18.

Note 2009/10 2008/09
R’000 R’000
Advances received
Local Government 93 =
Total 93 -
Clearing accounts
Receivable interest - -*
Income tax 29 27
ABC recalls 36 16
Pension fund 1 1
Total 66 44
*Reclassification of the prior year amount.
Other payables
Civil and military pensions 6,869 6,470*
Special pensions 4,321 2,251
Other - -*
Total other pension 11,190 8,721
*Reclassification of the prior year amount.
NET CASH FLOW AVAILABLE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net surplus as per Statement of Financial Performance 3,718,800 5,391,171
Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating (3,722,714) (6,305411)
activities
Decrease/(increase) in receivables — current 4602 (131,823)
Increase in prepayments and advances (391) (702)
Increase/(decrease) in payables — current 2,584 (3,208)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets (212) (324)
Expenditure on capital assets 11,989 10,052
Surrenders to Revenue Fund (3,654,564) (6,060,393)
Surrenders to RDP Fund/Donor 3 (7,811) (8)
Dividend received 2.2 (78,911) (119,005)
Net cash flow generated by operating activities (3,914) (914,240)
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Note 2009/10 2008/09
R’000 R’000
19. RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOR

CASH FLOW PURPOSES

Consolidated Paymaster General account 42,996 (14,734)*

Cash on hand 21 21

Cash with commercial banks (local) 7,174 1,689

Total 50,191 (13,024)

* Bank overdraft



DISCLOSURES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2009/10 2008/09 §
R’000 R’000 §
20. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES &
©
Liable to Nature ;
Motor vehicle guarantees Employees Annex 3A 53 205 %
Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 3A 193 243 =
Other guarantees Annex 3A 29,154,578 14,290,293 g
Local guarantees Financial institutions Annex 3A 17,907,902 1,863,638* ‘;“
Local guarantees interest Financial institutions Annex 3A 76,665 78,694
Foreign guarantees Financial institutions Annex 3A 11,130,224 12,290,574*
Foreign guarantees interest Financial institutions Annex 3A 39,787 57,387
Claims against the department Annex 3B 1,333,012 226,616*
Other Annex 3B 146,795 473,980%
Total 30,634,631 14,991,337
* Reclassification of the prior year amount.
21. COMMITMENTS’
Current expenditure
Approved and contracted 44 183
Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted - 10
Total 44 193

*Commitments are for a shorter period.
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22, ACCRUALS

Listed by economic classification

Goods and services
Transfers and subsidies
Machinery and equipment
Other

Total

Listed by programme level
Administration

Public Finance and Budget Management

Asset and Liability Management
Financial Management and Systems
Financial Accounting and Reporting

Economic Policy and International Financial Relations

Civil and Military Pensions, Contributions to Funds and

Other Benefits
Total

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Leave entitlement

Service bonus (thirteenth cheque)
Performance awards

Capped leave commitments
Total

24. LEASE COMMITMENTS

24.1 Operating leases expenditure

2009/10
Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

Total lease commitments

Note 2009/10 2008/09
R’000 R'000
30 Days 30+ Days Total Total
6,438 77 6,515 18,097
64,653 15 64,668 49,225
- - - 8
12 42 54 135
71,103 134 71,237 67,465
3,483 3,110
766 2,679
295 534
91 8,599
632 812
1,252 2,506
64,569 49,225
100 -
71,237 67,465
11,656 11,248
7,963 6,519
17,944 21,000
14,103 14,300
51,666 53,067
Bui‘::;gr;?(:: Machingry and
structures equipment Total
2,382 3,020 5,402
5012 2,561 7,573
7,394 5,581 12,975




25.

26.

26.1

27.

Note 2009/10 2008/09
R’000 R’000
Buildings and
other fixed Machinery and
2008/09 structures equipment Total
Not later than 1 year 2,762% 2,748* 5,510%
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 7,394* 4,649% 12,043%
Total 10,156 7,397 17,553
*Reclassification of the prior year amount.
RECEIVABLES FOR DEPARTMENTAL REVENUE
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 4,037 -
Interest, dividends and rent on land 197,790 86,214
Financial transactions in assets and liabilities 814 807
Total 202,641 87,021
IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
Reconciliation of irregular expenditure
Opening balance 176 176
Add: irregular expenditure - relating to current year 2,746
Less: Amounts condoned (2,746)
Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation 176 176
Analysis of awaiting condonation per age classification
Prior years 176 176
Total 176 176
*Irregular expenditure were condoned during 2008/09
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
No. of 2009/10 2008/09
Individuals R'000 R’000
Political office bearers (provide detail below) 3 3,301 3,056
Officials:
Level 15t0 16 13 13,457 11,985
Level 14 (incl. CFO if at a lower level) 70 54,394 40,105
Total 71,152 55,146
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28. PROVISIONS

Potential irrecoverable debts
Households and non profit institutions
Staff debtors

Other debtors

Total

Other provisions

Special pension

Military Pension

Injury on duty

Medical benefits

Total

*Reclassification of the prior year amount.

29. MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Note 2009/10 2008/09
R'000 R'000
6,085 4,106
298 87
436 232
6,819 4,425

= 12,717*

222 309*
31,377 2,237%
2,484 1,624*
34,083 16,887

Movement in movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2010

Opening  Current Year Additions Disposals Closing
balance adjust-ments balance
to prior year
balances
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Machinery and equipment
Transport assets 2,488 (M 1,440 (1,235) 2,692
Computer equipment 45,297 (1,098) 6,862 (4,738) 46,323
Furniture and office 14,266 (230) 1,269 (78) 15,227
equipment
Other machinery and 2,733 7 3,135 (62) 5813
equipment
Total ble tangibl
e Rl 64,784 (1,322) 12,706 (6,113) 70,055

capital assets




29.1

29.2

Additions

Additions to movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2010

Cash Non-cash (Capital work Received Total
in Progress  current, not
current paid
costs and (paid
finance lease current year,
payments) received
prior year)
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Description
Transport assets 1,440 = = = 1,440
Computer equipment 6,533 329 = = 6,862
Furniture and office 927 342 = = 1,269
equipment
Other machinery and 3,047 88 - - 3,156
equipment
Total additions of movable 11,947* 759 ) ) 12,706

tangible capital assets

*The difference between total cash addition in this note and note 8 relates to the purchase of cellphone and telecommunication
equipment that are not regarded as assets per the Departmental Reporting Framework Guide.

Disposals

Disposals of movable tangible capital assets per asset register for the year ended 31 March 2010
Sold for cash Transfer out or Total disposals Cash received

destroyed or actual
scrapped

R'000 R'000 R’000 R’000

Description
Transport assets 571 664 1,235 202
Computer equipment 647 4,091 4,738 10
Furniture and office equipment 23 55 78 -
Other machinery and equipment = 62 62 =
Total Disposal of movable tangible 1,241 4,872 6,113 212

capital assets
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Opening balance Additions Disposals Closing balance
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Transport assets 3,221 93 (826) 2,488
Computer equipment 46,227 9,233 (10,163) 45297
Furniture and office equipment 13,622 657 (13) 14,266
Other machinery and equipment 2,650 162 (79) 2,733
Total movable tangible assets 65,720 10,145 (11,081) 64,784
294 Minor assets
Minor assets of the department as at 31 March 2010
Opening Current year Additions Disposal Closing
balance adjustment balance
to prior year
balances
R’000 R'000 R’000 R’000 R’000
Description
Computer 4,088 - 1,184 (502) 4,770
equipment
Furniture and office 24,681 @ 2,343 (383) 26,640
equipment
OiinSrmeeaneg/Eme 1,690 1 192 (50) 1,833
equipment
TOTAL 30,459 - 3,719 (935) 33,243
Machinery and Total
equipment
Minor assets for the department as at 31 March 2010 =
Minor assets 33,243 33,243
Total minor assets 33,243 33,243
Machinery and Total
equipment
Number of RT minor assets
Number of minor assets at cost 23 23
Total number of minor assets 23 23




29.4 Minor assets - continued

Minor assets of the department as at 31 March 2009

Computer equipment
Furniture and office
equipment

Other machinery and
equipment

Total

Opening  Current year Additions Disposal Closing
balance adjustment balance
to prior year
balances
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000
3,880 472 579 (843) 4,088
22,988 1,315 486 (108) 24,681
1,614 76 43 (43) 1,690
28,482 1,863 1,108 (994) 30,459
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PDF

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTRODUCTION

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Project Development Facility, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, as set out on pages 220 to 240.

ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA Statements of GAAP) and in the manner
required by the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR-GENERAL'S RESPONSIBILITY

As required by section 188 of the Constitution of South Africa and section 4 of the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004
(Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1570 of 2009 issued in
Government Gazette 32758 of 27 November 2009. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

OPINION

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Project
Development Facility as at 31 March 2010, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with the SA Statements of GAAP and in the manner required by the PFMA.



REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In terms of the PAA and General Notice 1570 of 2009, issued in Government Gazette 32758 of 27 November 2009, | include
below my findings on the report on predetermined objectives, compliance with the PFMA and financial management

(internal control).

FINDINGS

Predetermined objectives

No matters to report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

No matters to report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

| considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and the report on predetermined objectives
and compliance with the PFMA, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.
The matters reported below are limited to the deficiencies identified during the audit.

No matters to report.

MW-M

Pretoria
28 July 2010

l"
’ "

G

AUDITOR-GENIRAL
SOUTH AFRICA

Auditing fo build public confidence
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Notes 2009/10 2008/09
R R

ASSETS
Current assets 60,277,523 94,791,188
Receivables 8 283,478 343,813
Cash and cash equivalents 9 59,994,045 94,447,375
Total assets 60,277,523 94,791,188
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Retained earnings 51,084,009 81,829,410
Non Current liabilities
Revenue Fund 11 1,503,940 -
Current liabilities
Payables 10 7,278,003 11,850,558
Deferred revenue 14 411,571 1,111,220
Total equity and liabilities 60,277,523 94,791,188




STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes 2009/10 2008/09 §

R R S

o

S

Revenue 5 70,699,649 81,099,780 &

E

Project expenses (103,766,249) (81,075,980) é

>

o}

Gross profit/(loss) (33,066,600) 23,800 S

=

Investment Income 6 3,369,931 5,887,373 é

Z
Administration expenses 7 (1,047,570) (519,511)
Finance cost (1,162) (100,832)
Profit/(Loss) for the period (30,745,401) 5,290,830

Annual Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance at 1 April 2008

Net profit for the year
Balance at 31 March 2009
Net profit/(Loss) for the year

Balance at 31 March 2010

Retained Total
Earnings
R R
76,538,580 76,538,580
5,290,830 5,290,830
81,829,410 81,829,410
(30,745,401) (30,745,401)
51,084,009 51,084,009




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Notes 2009/10 2008/09
R R

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from government and other sources 70,999,649 82,211,000
Cash paid to suppliers (108,882,083) (74,869 649)
Interest Paid (1,162) (100 832)
Cash generated/(utilised) in operations 12 (37,883,596) 7,240,519

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 13 3,430,266 6,158,070
Net cash inflow/outflow from operating activities (34,453 330) 13,398,589
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (34,453,330) 13,398,589
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 9 94,447,375 81,048,786
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 9 59,994,045 94,447,375

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Project Development Fund (PDF) is a Trading Entity that is incorporated in the Republic of South Africa.
The PDF is located within the Public Private Partnership (PPP) unit of National Treasury. Its principle role is to
increase the quality and quantity of commercially viable projects that are processed through the PPP unit's
project pipeline.

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

2. STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS EARLY ADOPTED

The following used, approved but not yet effective accounting policy was adopted in the current period.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
All financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Statements of Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (GAAP). These require the use of certain accounting estimates. They also require management

to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies based on best available
information at the time of preparation.

3.2 CURRENCY

The financial statements are presented in South African Rand since that is the currency in which the majority of
the entity’s transactions are denominated.

3.3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except where indicated otherwise. The
financial statements incorporate the fundamental assumptions of going concern and accrual.

Annual Financial Statements

The principal accounting policies are adopted and set out below. These have been applied consistently with the

revious financial year.
224 P 4



3.4 REVENUE RECOGNITION

3.5

3.6

Grants
The grants received from the World Bank (US Grant) are all conditional grants which are recognised when it is

probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when the amount can be measured reliably.

The US grant is recognised as revenue to the extent that there is no further obligation arising from the receipt of
the transfer payment and that all the conditions are met.

The National Treasury grant is not a conditional grant and it is recognised when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow into the entity and when the amount can be measured reliably. An annual application is made
to National Treasury not to surrender the surplus.

IRREGULAR AND FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure relates to expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement
of any applicable legislation, including the Public Financial and Management Act (PFMA), 1999 as amended.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relates to expenditure made in vain and could have been avoided had
reasonable care or controls been exercised.

Allirregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is disclosed in the notes to the financial statement in the period
in which itis incurred.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Recognition

Financial instruments are initially recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
relevant instrument, and are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, these instruments
are measured as set out below.

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at amortised cost, which, due to their short-term nature, closely approximate
their fair value.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank.

Receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market are classified as 'loans and receivables.

Receivables are measured using the effective interest method.
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3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

Investment Income

Investment income is made up of Interest income.
Interest income is recognised on a time proportionate basis using the effective interest rate method.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities of PDF were classified as other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial liabilities and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Other financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the date the funds are received.

GOING CONCERN

The entity is financially dependent on the grant it receives from National Treasury. On the basis that the grant
has been listed in the Estimates of National Expenditure, management believe that the entity will continue to
be a going concern in the year ahead. For this reason, management continue to prepare the annual financial
statements on a going concern basis.

PUBLIC SECTOR PRACTICES AND POLICIES

INTER-RELATIONSHIP WITH OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES

The entity operates as a trading entity of the National Treasury, within the South African Government environment.
In line with prevailing government practices, the entity is not obliged to pay for certain expenditure such as office
space and utilisation of fixed and moveable assets.

PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Section 40(3) (b)
No material losses occurred during the current financial year due to criminal conduct nor any unauthorised
expenditure or irregular expenditure.



NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2009/10 2008/09 §
R R §
g
5. REVENUE %
2
- Government grants received 70,000,000 80,100,000 ‘;
- US Grant 699,649 999,780 2
70,699,649 81,099,780 =
6. INVESTMENT INCOME 2
Other income includes:
- Interest received from PDF bank account 1,159,791 2,684,574
- Interest received from NDPG bank account 2,210,140 3,202,800
3,369,931 5,887,373
7. ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Administration expenses comprises the following:
- Audit fees 234,677 163,938
- Bank charges 143,394 15,573
- Financial managers'fees 669,499 340,000
1,047,570 519,511

Financial manager’s fees represent amounts paid to Deloitte & Touche for accounting services.

8. RECEIVABLES

- Accrued interest 283,478 343,813

Total receivables consist of interest accrued from the bank due to the positive material bank balance. PDF’s
exposure to credit risk is disclosed in note 21.

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

PDF Bank account 11,624,044 27,472,802
NDPG Bank account 47,958,430 65,863,353
US Grant bank account 411,571 1,111,220

59,994,045 94,447,375
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10.

11.

12.

2009/10 2008/09
R R

PAYABLES
Payables 6,978,003 10,346,618
Revenue Fund = 1,503 940
Free State Dept of Health 300,000 -
7,278,003 11,850,558

The average credit period on purchases is 30 days from invoice date. No interest is charged on the trade payables.

The department has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the

credit time frame.

Co-funding received from the Free State Department of Health on the Hospitals funded project by the PDF.

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES

Revenue Fund 1,503,940

1,503,940

Liability from the Revenue fund is as a result of over recovery of the project reimbursement from the Eastern
Cape Department of Health, the funds, however, could not be repaid to the Eastern Cape Department of Health.

Therefore the amount was recognised as a liability as it was now owed to the Revenue Fund.

A process is currently underway for the money to be retained by the PDF.

RECONCILIATION OF NET PROFITFORTHEYEARTO CASH GENERATED

FROM OPERATIONS

Net profit/(Loss) for the year (30,745,401) 5,290,830
Net finance income (3,369,931) (5,887,373)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes (34,115,332) (596,543)
Working capital changes: (3,768,264) 7,837,062
- Decrease in trade and other payables (3,068,615) 6,725,842
- Decrease in other receivables - -
- Increase in deferred revenue (699,649) 1,111,220
Cash generated from operations (37,883,596) 7,240,519




13.

14.

15.

2009/10 2008/09
R R
INTEREST INCOME RECEIVED
Accrued interest income at beginning of year 343,813 614,510
Netfinanceincome received perthe statement of comprehensive 3,369,931 5,887,373
income
Accrued net finance income at the end of the year (283,478) (343,813)
Interest income received 3,430,266 6,158,070
DEFERRED REVENUE
Balance as at 1 April 2009 1,111,220 -
Grant received in the current year - 2,111,000
Revenue recognised in the current year 699,649 999,780
Balance at 31 March 2010 411,571 1,111,220
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Contingent liabilities are made up of:
Retained Earnings 51,084,009 81,879,670
NDPG projects 454,368,282 442,271,603
PDF projects 27,540,273 27,366,713

The retained earnings are retained for the funding of Transaction Advisors costs associated with establishment of
selected PPP and NDPG projects approved for funding during the course of the entity normal course of operations.
The entity has obtained permission from National Treasury to retain the retained earnings from the 2008/09 financial
year. The entity is in the process of requesting permission from National Treasury to retain the 2009/10 surplus.

Funding is disbursed upon the successful achievement of predefined milestones and Treasury Approvals. The
entity has no control over the performance / non-performance of the party they enter into agreement with, and
therefore no control over whether milestones are met and when they will be met. The project agreement is not
an irrevocable contract as a key condition for performance of the entity (i.e. payment of agreed funds) is fully
dependent upon the external party’s performance.

Management has therefore interpreted the net commitment balance (funding amount per contract less any
disbursements made to the project upon reaching the milestones) for both the PDF and NDPG projects to be a
contingent liability.
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15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Movement on NDPG projects identified for funding during the period:

NEIGHBOURHOOD DEVELOPMENT PROJECT GRANT

# PROJECT  PROJECTNAME& NDPG  CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURE FUTURE
NUMBER  DESCRIPTION FUNDING  EXPENDITURE FORTHE  REMAINING
AMOUNT ASAT  YEARENDING COMMITMENTS
31MARCH2009 31 MARCH2010
: :
| NDPGI-g77 | Cyabantu Community 2,000,000 810,833 - 1,189,167
Neighbourhood Centre
> NDPGI-0a3 | |Phophomeni Mult 1,000,000 817,031 . 182,969
Service Centre
3 NDPGI1-g9  KWaMashuTownCentre ) 0 743280 1,000,000 256,720
Redevelopment
4 NDPGI-ogp | NdwedweTownship 5,350,000 2,077,354 219,282 3,053,364
Development
Motherwell Sustainable
Community
5 NDPG1-183  Development - Social 2,500,000 1,773,532 - 726,468
Economic and
Demographic Survey
6 NDPG1-103  MasifundeNode 2,000,000 888,853 263,828 847,320
Initiative
Bara Central
7  NDPG1-242 8,340,000 631,064 - 7,708,936
Development
N N
§ NDPGa-045  NewCanadaNode 5,000,000 916,539 . 4,083461
Station Development
P
9 NDPG2-go7 | ~ccondaryProperty 9,000,000 1,982,377 5,747,793 1,269,830
Markets
10 NDPG-130 | MPumalanga Town 600,000 344,736 199,000 56,264
Centre Development
Swalala Precinct
Development &
11 NDPG1-038 10,865,000 2,095,320 3,705,436 5,064,244
KwaNyamazane
Renewal
Sports Facility &
12 NDPG1-097 i 2,600,000 440651 773,033 1386316
Economic Hub
13 NDPG1-223 | Niptown CBDrenewal 7,192,892 5,335,502 111,572 1745818
Parking Base
14 NDPG1-171 | K Urban Renewal 8,500,000 1,745,005 1,756,879 4,998,116
Programme
15 NDPG1-243  Orlando Ekhaya 700,000 304,486 = 395,514




15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

# PROJECT PROJECT NAME & NDPG CUMULATIVE  EXPENDITURE FUTURE
NUMBER DESCRIPTION FUNDING EXPENDITURE FORTHE REMAINING
AMOUNT AS AT YEARENDING COMMITMENTS
31 MARCH 2009 31 MARCH 2010
Zola Public Space and
16  NDPG2-044 ] 5,000,000 513,000 1,447,697 3,039,303
Nodal Planning
17 'NDPG2-112  Vilakazi Street Precinct 8,500,000 5,195,601 1,823,727 1,480,672
18 NDPG-1p7 | UmiaziMalukazi 7,000,000 1,301,976 149,340 5,548,684
Economic Development
Development of
Social, Economic &
19 'NDPG1-066  Community nodes & 2,500,000 849,384 = 1,650,616
Large Area Facilities for
resident townships
20 NDPGl-241 | ZECrUstMPCC/TS 4,823,300 1,778,067 1768314 1276919
lkageleng
Ekhrosini Li k
21 NDPGI-108 rosintLivestoc 2,000,000 500,389 . 1,499,611
Market
22 NDPGI-1g5 | |ransdoEconmicNode | ooc, 5, 1,402,877 5,257,644 4091825
Development
23 NDPGI-064 | Kowankowa Urban 4,800,000 1,537,945 1,844,383 1417,672
Renewal
Sundumbili Urban
24  NDPG3-052 7,600,000 730,000 - 6,870,000
Development
Bushbuckridge Urban
25 NDPG3-080 L 20,000,000 5,310,789 1,998,420 12,690,791
Municipality
BaPhalaborwa LM -
26 NDPG3-004 | Freedom & memorial 9,000,000 5,114,026 397,241 3,488,733
Precinct
27 NDPG1-079  New Brighton Renewal 3,300,000 155,000 325,000 2,820,000
28 NDPG2-028 Helenvale 5,000,000 393,300 271,594 4,335,106
29 NDPG3-083  Emfuleni LM 20,000,000 3,857,853 3,079,569 13,062,579
Athlone Power Station
30 NDPG2-032 10,000,000 3,128,970 4,228,826 2,642,204
Redevelopment
Nongoma Town
31 NDPG3-025 | Regeneration & Urban 3,000,000 1,547,799 1,778,201 -326,000
Development
32 NDPG3-095  Neighbourhood Revit 10,000,000 129,310 385,890 9,484,800
Townships
33 NDPG2-060  Regeneration (Rhini & 3,000,000 513,000 227,619 2,259,381
Others)
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15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

# PROJCT  PROJECTNAME& NDPG  CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURE FUTURE
NUMBER DESCRIPTION FUNDING  EXPENDITURE FORTHE REMAINING
AMOUNT ASAT  YEARENDING COMMITMENTS
31 MARCH2009 31 MARCH 2010
Diepsloot South -
34 NDPG2-040  Detailed design & 8,000,000 3,271,052 3,687,772 1,041,176
Implementation
Stretford Station
35 NDPG2-102 _ 6,000,000 1,640,132 1,293,960 3,065,908
Precinct
36 NDPG3-090  Thulamela Gateway 25,000,000 7,079,804 2309811 15,610,385
Mining belt upliftment
37 NDPG1-071  of informal settlement & 1,320,000 114,143 190,355 1,015,502
infra development
38 NDPG1-072 | enabilitation and 1,320,000 167,395 180,628 971,977
Urban Renewal
High
39 NDPG1-06s | Hi9hSteet 2,500,000 271,688 463,455 1,764,857
Development
Township Development
40 NDPG3-027  of Amathole District 23,500,000 1,033,898 3,186,627 19,279,476
Towns
41 NDPG2-12g | lermontUrban 5,000,000 114,057 785,429 4100514
Renewal
42 NDPG2-024  Township Restructuring 5,000,000 499,999 1,779,882 2,720,119
43 'NDPG3-058  Township Regeneration 25,000,000 171,456 346,073 24,482,471
44 NDPG3-029  Credterfaung 10,000,000 274315 2,819,921 6,905,765
regeneration Strategy
Fountain R
45 NDPG2-030 | Hountain Road 1,500,000 611,471 187,722 700,807
Development
L ial
46 NDPGI-067 | —Jcareasoca 6,750,000 139,946 218,004 6,392,050
facilities
Imbali Mi
47 NDPG1-1g7 | 'MbaliMixed Use 700,000 19,950 633,997 46,053
Investment Node
Wembezi Urban
48 NDPG3-040 11,000,000 211,499 450,129 10,338,372
Renewal
49 NDPGI-0gg | Cconomicé 1,320,000 ; 223,082 1,096,918
Community Node
50 NDPGl-0s9 | conomicé 1,320,000 ; 326,006 993,094
Community Node
51 NDPGI-070 | Cconomic& 1,320,000 - 614,167 705,834
Community Node
52 NDPGI-l0g | OSOlosoProgramme ) o - 1,580,758 28419242
(Public Spaces)




15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

# PROJECT  PROJECTNAME& NDPG  CUMULATIVE  EXPENDITURE FUTURE
NUMBER  DESCRIPTION FUNDING  EXPENDITURE FORTHE  REMAINING
AMOUNT ASAT  YEARENDING COMMITMENTS
31MARCH2009 31 MARCH 2010
Njoli
53 NDPG1-1g2 | ol Square 1,600,000 - - 1,600,000
Redevelopment
54 NDPGI-189A MPCC/TSC (uPhongolo) 600,000 - - 600,000
55 NDPG1-1898  Highflats: MPCC/TSC 600,000 - - 600,000
56 NDPG1-p3y | CudeMolen&Maidand -, g - - 2,000,000
Redevelopment
Nyanga T
57 NDPG2-031 | Yengalransport 2,000,000 - 801,684 1198316
Interchange
M isi |
58 | NDPG2-033 | onwabisi Coasta 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Node
Mitchells Pli
59 NDPG2-034 | Mitchells Plian & 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
Lentegeur CBDs
60 NDPG2-049  Kuyasa& OtherNodes = 10,000,000 - 3011433 6,988,567
61 NDPG3-005 | oeifontein Urban 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
Centre
62 NDPG3-020  JBC Urban Node 4,000,000 - 640,000 3,360,000
Township R i
63 NDPG3-035 CmshipRegeneration g ) 500 - . 5,000,000
& Investment Plan
64 NDPG3-063 Development Planning = 26,000,000 - - 26,000,000
lkageng
65 NDPG3-0s4 | heighboourhood 12,000,000 - - 12,000,000
Development
Programme
66 NDPG3-0a4  KWaDukuza Priority 10,350,000 - 253,840 10,096,160
Clusters
Identification &
67 NDPG3-053 |Plementation 7,000,000 - 3971,644 3,028,356
of Appropriate
Community Facilities
68 NDPG3-093 | OlokwaneTownship 12,000,000 - 2,021,655 9,978,345
Urban Renewal
69 NDPG4-0lp MVuseleloDeveloping 1,500,000 - 1015482 484518
Economic Spaces
Metsweding Townships
70 NDPG4-025  Regeneration 5,914,000 = 140,000 5,774,000
Programmes
71 NDPG4-17 | Integrated . 14,900,000 - 117,104 14,782,896
Development Project
72 NDPGA4-120.1  Urban Renewal 4,800,000 - 1,115,280 3,684,720
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15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

# PROJECT PROJECT NAME& NDPG  CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURE FUTURE
NUMBER DESCRIPTION FUNDING  EXPENDITURE FORTHE REMAINING
AMOUNT ASAT  YEARENDING COMMITMENTS
31MARCH2009 31MARCH2010
Leratong Intersection
73 NDPG4-1203 Commercial 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000
Development
E ic Devel t
74 NDPG4-1352 — ONOMICLEVEIOPMENT o 510,000 ; . 8,000,000
Node Others
75 NDPG4-127 | commercia 2,000,000 ; ; 2,000,000
Development
76 NDPGa-o1g | LopertsonTownship 2,000,000 - 207,850 1,792,150
Initiative
77 NDPGa-029  UrbanNodal 1,500,000 : 33,083 1,466,917
Development
78 'NDPG4-069  Bitou Coming Together 6,000,000 = 791,481 5,208,519
79 NDPG4-046  Eastern Gateway 5,700,000 = = 5,700,000
80 NDPG4-o1z  rbaniodal 2,000,000 ; 801,771 1,198,229
Development
81 NDPG4-130.1 Mothibistad Rural 4,000,000 - ; 4,000,000
Development
82 NDPG4-1302 Ccnerallmprovements 6,000,000 : ; 6,000,000
of Town Centre &
83 NDPG4-1303 [0V/nship &Town 4,000,000 : : 4,000,000
Centre Upgrade
Rural Town Centre
84 NDPGA4-1304 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
General Upgrades
85 NDPG4-130.5 Town Centre Upgrade 4,000,000 = = 4,000,000
86 NDPG4-130.6 Town Centre Upgrade 3,000,000 = = 3,000,000
87 NDPGo79 | |iBus/Hub& 6,000,000 ; 3,864,219 2,135,781
Recreation Centre
88 NDPG1-226  CdleshaveUrban 15,215,000 : 5,873,010 9,341,990
renewal
89 NDPGI-176  Mothibistad Rural 800,000 : . 800,000
Development
90 NDPG4-130  Various SA 30,000,000 - : 30,000,000
TOTAL 609,552,539 70,486,656 84,697,601 454,368,282

The Neighbourhood Development Partnership Grant (NDPG) was announced by the Minister of Finance in his

budget speech on 15 February 2006. Itis planned for an amount of R10 billion over a ten year period. The primary

focus of the grant is to stimulate and accelerate investment in poor, underserved residential neighbourhoods such

as townships by providing technical assistance and grant financing for municipal projects that have a distinct

private sector element in the project.




15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Movement on PDF projects identified for funding during the period:

PDF - PROJECTS

# INSTITUTION PROJECT NAME PDF CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURE FUTURE
FUNDING EXPENDITURE FORTHE YEAR REMAINING
COMMITTED AS AT ENDING COMMITMENTS
31 MARCH 31 MARCH
2009 2010
Department of
1 ICT 1,960,000 1,960,000 - -
Labour
Western Cape o
Rehabilitation
2 Department of 2,925,000 2,925,000 = =
Centre
Health
Western Cape
Settlers & Port
3 Department of . 496,060 496,060 = =
Alfred Hospitals
Health 2
KwaDukuza Solid Waste,
4 725,615 725,615 = -
Municipality Roads & Park
Limpopo
5 | Department of Penge hospital 45,000 45,000 - -
Health
6 | SADNF SAHMS 68,400 68,400 = =
PPP Tourism
7 Cape Nature ) 1,400,000 749,097 541,671 109,232
Toolkit
Greater
Sekhukhune
8 600,000 213,066 = 386,934
District
Municipality
Hibiscus Coast
9 o Phase 1 500,000 456,000 = 44,000
Municipality
Hibiscus Coast
10 o Phase 2 1,793,139 = 1,161,294 631,845
Municipality - P2
Eastern Cape
11 | department of Pharmaceuticals 4,846,436 3,587,757 1,258,679 =
Health
Eastern Cape
Fleet
12 | Department of 3,780,394 2,690,197 1,090,197 =
management
Transport
Western Cape
Swellendam
13 | Department of ) 372,692 372,692 - -
Hosptial
Health 3
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15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

# INSTITUTION PROJECT NAME PDF CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURE FUTURE
FUNDING EXPENDITURE FORTHEYEAR REMAINING
COMMITTED AS AT ENDING COMMITMENTS
31 MARCH 31 MARCH
2009 2010
Greater Kokstad o
14 o Civic Centre 2,000,000 1,333,035 431,369 235,596
Municipality
Potchefstroom Solid Waste
15 o 928,975 158,745 = 770,230
Municipality Management
Sedibeng Local o i
16 T Civic Precinct 2,000,000 638,466 1,361,534 =
Municipality
o Solid waste
Elundini
17 o management 3,000,000 269,679 921,691 1,808,630
Municipality
system
Western Cape
Department of
18 Chapmans peak 2,250,000 = 600,000 1,650,000
transport and
Public works
Thaba Chweu Resorts/Park/
19 991,018 = 693,942 297,076
Municipality Hostels
Greater Tubatse }
20 L Solid waste 3,500,000 170,000 3,324,781 5,219
Municipality
National Treasury
agreement
21 rollout Municipal 999,600 999,600 - -
Service and PPP
Guidelines
Tlokwe city Waste
22 ) 500,000 399,000 = 101,000
council management
Provinsial
Regional Sewer
department of )
23 Scheme - Project 2,500,000 = 2,131,735 368,265
local government
office
- Gauteng
24 Emalahleni Development 1,000,000 - 397,831 602,169
Correctional Fleet
25 . 2,000,000 = = 2,000,000
services 2 management
Municipal Water
26 | Lephalale ) 500,000 = = 500,000
Cervices
27 City of Cape town = Waste Water 1,000,000 = 279,300 720,700
) Tourism
28 | Siyancuma 1,000,000 = 69,358 930,642
Development




15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

# INSTITUTION PROJECT NAME PDF CUMULATIVE EXPENDITURE FUTURE
FUNDING EXPENDITURE FORTHE YEAR REMAINING
COMMITTED AS AT ENDING COMMITMENTS
31 MARCH 31 MARCH
2009 2010
Eastern Cape Tourism
29 1,700,000 = = 1,700,000
Parks Development
Science & Radiation
30 200,000 = = 200,000
Technology Therapy
31 National Health Biovac 1,000,000 - 445,890 554,110
FS Department of i
32 Hospitals 900,000 = 658,938 241,062
Health
Overstrand )
33 o Waste services 201,562 = = 201,562
Municipality
Western Cape
Tygerberg
34  Department of ) 600,000 = = 600,000
Hospital
Health 4
G Dept. of Arts &  (Cradle of
35 98,496 = 98,496 =
Culture Humankind)
Northern cape
Fleet
36 department of 700,000 = = 700,000
management
Roads
KwaDukuza Waste
37 o 1,500,000 = = 1,500,000
Municipality 2 management
Eastern cape
Fleet
38 department of 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
management
Roads & Transport
Blue Crane
Boschberg
39 Development 500,000 = 160,000 340,000
Country Estate
Agency
Thabazimbi
40 o Civic Centre 2,000,000 = = 2,000,000
Municipality
Mogalakwena Olifants River
41 o 3,000,000 = = 3,000,000
Municipality water resources
Water
Greater Tubatse
42 S Management 1,700,000 = = 1,700,000
Municipality ]
Services
Greater Tubatse )
43 Water Services 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
Municipality
Mbombela Fleet
44 . ) 642,000 = = 642,000
Municipality management
TOTAL 61,424,387 18,257,409 15,626,706 27,540,273
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16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

2009/10 2008/09
R R
COMMITMENTS
Payable within the next 12 months:
- Financial Managers Fees 240,000 420,000
Payable between 2 and 5 years:
- Financial Managers Fees = 175,000

The entity appointed Deloitte & Touche for the outsourced financial management of the Project Development Facility.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The focus of risk management in the entity is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms
of risk across the entity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, management endeavours to minimise it
by ensuring that the appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethics are applied throughout the entity and
managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

As the entity acquires finance from the National Treasury Finance Department and does not have borrowed funds
it does not have major exposure to credit, liquidity, interest and market risk.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing
to meet an obligation. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks and financial
institutions, as well as outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks and financial institutions,
only highly reputable financial institutions are used.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Ultimate
responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the National Treasury finance department, which has
built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the National Treasury’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The entity has limited exposure to interest risk. The entity’s cash and cash equivalents are subject to interest rate
risk for the portion of interest received. The Interest rate risk is limited as funds are invested with one of the four
major banks and this is assessed annually.



21.

22,

23.

2009/10 2008/09
R R

TAXATION

No provision is made for taxation, as the entity is exempt from taxation in terms of Section 10(1) (a) of the Income
Tax Act No. 58 of 1962.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There were no events after reporting date that might have a material effect on the fair presentation of the financial
statements as at 31 March 2010.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The entity received grants from the following related parties:

National Treasury 70,000,000 80,100,000
Free State Department of Health 300,000 -

The entity owed the following amount to related parties:

Revenue Fund 1,503,940 1,503,940
71,803,940 81,603,940

Free State Department of Health is co-funding some projects and have deposited R300,000 into PDF for this reason.
Liability from the Revenue fund is as a result of over recovery of the project reimbursement from the Eastern
Cape Department of Health, the funds, however, could not be repaid to the Eastern Cape Department of Health.

Therefore the amount was recognised as a liability as it was now owed to the Revenue Fund.

A process is currently underway for the money to be retained by the PDF.
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24. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relating to prior year
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure relating to current year

Less: Amounts condoned

Less: Amounts recovered

Less: Amounts transferred to receivables for recovery

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonation

Analysis of awaiting condonement per economic classification
Current

Capital

Transfers and Subsidies

Total

Analysis of prior year’s fruitless and wasteful expenditure

2009/10 2008/09
R R
101,408 =
1,162 101,408
(101,408) =
1,162 101,408
1,162 101,408
1,162 101,408

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure for the prior year was recovered in full from Standard Bank and was
appropriately allocated to the interest expense account and bank charges account.

Analysis of Current year’s fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Incident

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure for the current year was incurred
due to the timing delays in the inter transfer of funds between PDF and
NDPG bank accounts. The delay resulted in the interest expense and
bank charges being charged to the PDF bank account.

Interest on overdraft

Discipliniary
taken/Criminal
proceedings

None

2009/10
R

1,162
1,162

No disciplinary action as a result of this loss was taken. Instead, management has identified how and when the
expenditure was incurred and is undertaking measures to recover it in full from the financial management service

provider or the financial institution.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE TAU

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTRODUCTION

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Technical Assistance Unit, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2010, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, as set out on pages 246 to 261.

ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (SA Statements of GAAP) and in the manner
required by the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA). This responsibility
includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR-GENERAL'S RESPONSIBILITY

As required by section 188 of the Constitution of South Africa and section 4 of the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004
(Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1570 of 2009 issued in
Government Gazette 32758 of 27 November 2009. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.



OPINION

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Technical
Assistance Unit as at 31 March 2010, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance
with the SA Statements of GAAP and in the manner required by the PFMA.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In terms of the PAA and General Notice 1570 of 2009, issued in Government Gazette 32758 of 27 November 2009, | include
below my findings on the report on predetermined objectives, compliance with the PFMA and financial management
(internal control).

FINDINGS

Predetermined objectives

No matters to report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

No matters to report.

INTERNAL CONTROL
| considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and the report on predetermined objectives

and compliance with the PFMA, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.
The matters reported below are limited to the deficiencies identified during the audit.

No matters to report.

Pretoria
28 July 2010

‘.
o

AUDITOR-GENIRAL
SOUTH AFRICA

Auditing fo build public confidence
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS
Current assets
Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Accumulated surplus

Equity
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Equity and Liabilities

Notes 2010 2009
R R

4 14,553,548 2,432,269

5 7,391,915 11,397,518
21,945,463 13,829,787

16,172,033 7,629,562

16,172,033 7,629,562

6 5,773,430 6,200,225
21,945,463 13,829,787




STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Notes 2010 2009

R R

Revenue 2 55,664,284 31,567,145
Operating expenditure 2 48,052,592 24,006,081
Operating Profit 7,611,692 7,561,064
Interest income 930,779 68,498
Total comprehensive income for the year 8,542,471 7,629,562
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

§ Notes Accumulated Total Equity

S Surplus R

o

e R

o

(o

& )

= Balance at 1 April 2008 = =

g Comprehensive income for the year 7,629,562 7,629,562

>

% Balance at 1 April 2009 7,629,562 7,629,562

§ Comprehensive income for the year 8,542,471 8,542,471
Balance at 31 March 2010 16,172,033 16,172,033
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Notes 2010 2009
R R

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from government and other sources 44,710,682 32,933,358
Cash paid to suppliers (49,647,064) (21,604,338)
Cash generated from operations 7 (4,936,382) 11,329,020
Interest Income 930,779 68,498
Net cash generated from operating activities (4,005,603) 11,397,518
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (4,005,603) 11,397,518
Cash at the beginning of the year 11,397,518 -
TOTAL CASH AT END OF THE YEAR 5 7,391,915 11,397,518
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These Annual Financial Statements are presented in South African Rand. They are prepared on the historical cost basis.

The accounting policies have been applied to the results, assets, liabilities and cash flow of the Trading Entity in the
Annual Financial Statements, consistent with those in the previous year.

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally
Accepted Accounting Practices (SA GAAP).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial assets and financial liabilities have not been offset in the Statement of Financial Position.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are classified, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and are initially measured at fair value.

Receivables

Trade receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost. Amortised cost refers to the initial carrying amount, less
repayments and impairments. An estimate is made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts
at year-end. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter financial re-organisation,
and default or delinquency in payments (more than 120 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable
is impaired. Impairments are determined by discounting expected future cash flows to their present value.

The amount of the loss due to impairment, or the reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off will be recognised as revenue in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables and other payables which consist of revenue received in advance are stated at amortised cost,
which, due to short term nature, closely approximate their fair value.

Cash

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at amortised cost, which, due to their short term nature, closely approximate
their fair value. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and deposits held on call with banks.



1.2

1.2.1

1.2.2

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.3

1.4

REVENUE

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Appropriated funds

Appropriated and adjusted appropriated funds are recognised when the funds can be measured reliable on the
date the appropriation becomes effective. Appropriated funds are recognised as revenue to the extent that there
is no further obligation arising from the receipt of the transfer payment.

Donor funds

Donor funds are recognised when the funds can be measured reliable on the date the draw down requisition
becomes effective and the cost associated with the revenue has been incurred.

Cost Recovery

Revenue for services rendered is recognised when the amount of revenue can be measured reliable. Itis probable
that the economic benefits associated with the services will flow to the entity. The stage of completion of the
transaction at the end of the reporting period can be measured reliably and the cost incurred for the transaction
and the cost to complete the transaction can be measured reliable.

Interest Income

Interest income accrues on a time-proportioned basis, taking into account the principal amount outstanding and
the effective interest rate over the period to maturity.

Investment Income

Interest income accrues on a time-proportioned basis, taking into account the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate over the period to maturity.

IRREGULAR AND FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement
of any applicable legislation, including the PFMA. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that
was made in vain and could have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. In accordance with the
requirements of the PFMA, the details are included in a note to the financial statements. Any irregular, fruitless and
wasteful expenditure is charged against the respective class of expenses in the period in which it occurred.

RELATED PARTIES

The Technical Assistance Unit Trading Entity operates in an economic environment currently dominated by
entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African government. All national departments of government

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

Annual Financial Statements

251



National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

Annual Financial Statements

252

1.5

and state-controlled entities are regarded as related parties in accordance with Circular 4 of 2005: Guidance on the

term “state-controlled entities”in context of IAS 24 (AC 126) - Related Parties, issued by the South African Institute
of Chartered Accountants.

SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of annual financial statements requires management to make judgment, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses.

Estimates are made based on the best available information at the time of preparation of the Annual Financial
Statements. The estimates and under-lying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision on future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.



NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2010 2009 §
R R S
P
o
2 OPERATING PROFIT &
Operating surplus is arrived at after taking the following into account £
Revenue from: g
g
- Government grants received 18,898,000 20,000,000 %
- Donor grants received 22,453,205 = =
- Cost recovery 14,313,079 11,567,145
55,664,284 31,567,145
Expenditure for:
- Audit fees 246,875 =
- Movement in the Provision for impairment of Trade receivables
- Recognised 661,160 =
- Reversed = =
- Bank charges 5,841 1,381
- Consultancy fees 47,137,911 24,004,700
- Staff training 805 =
Operating Surplus 7,611,692 7,561,064

The amount of the impairment loss to the value of R661,160
recognised, relate to services rendered to SASSA which is still outstanding
after a year.

3. TAXATION

No provision has been made for taxation as the Trading Entity is exempt
from income tax in terms of section 10(1)(cA) of the Income Tax Act, 1962
(Act No 58 of 1962). As per agreement with the donor all VAT on services
paid with donor funds will be refundable by SARS.
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RECEIVABLES

Gross trade receivables
Less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables
SARS - VAT

Movement for the provision of impairment of trade receivables is as
follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year
Charged to profit and loss

Balance at the end of the year

Ageing of impaired accounts receivable:

0-30days

31 -60days

61 —90 days

91 - 120 days

120 days +
Total

At 31 March 2010 receivable amounting to R228,686 (2009: R1,550,400)
was past due but not impaired. This relates to customers who have no
recent history of defaulting.

The period by which these debtors exceed their payment terms is shown

below:
0-30days
31 -60days
61 - 90 days
91 - 120 days
120 days +
Total

2010 2009

R R
13,385,871 2,432,269
(661,160) =
1,828,837 o
14,553,548 2,432,269
661,160 o
661,160 =
661,160 o
661,160 S

= 1,550,400

228,686 =
228,686 1,550,400




The ageing of these receivables are shown below:

0-30days

31 -60days

61 - 90 days

91 - 120 days

120 days +
Total

Credit quality of trade receivables

The credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor
impaired can be assessed by reference to counterparty default rates.

Fair value of trade receivables

The net carrying values of receivables are considered to be a close
approximation of their fair values.

See note 8 on risk management in relation to the financial assets listed below.
Trade receivables

The carrying amount of trade receivables approximates their fair value.
There is no foreign currency exposure at the reporting date.

CASH

Cash and cash equivalents consists of :

Cash at bank
Call account
Financial assets

2010 2009

R R

= 1,550,400

228,686 =
228,686 1,550,400
2,701 119
7,389,214 11,397,399
7,391,915 11,397,518
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6.

2010

2009

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trade payables
Revenue received in advance

Creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for
service providers'services utilised and ongoing costs.

The average credit period taken is less than 30 days. The Trading Entity
considers that the carrying amount of trade and other payables at cost
closely approximates their fair value.

Revenue received in advance consists of cost recovery monies received
and services not rendered yet.

See note 8 on risk management in relation to the financial liabilities listed
above.

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Net Profit/(Loss) for the year
Adjustments for:

Movement in the Provision for impairment of Trade receivables
Interest income

Changes in working capital
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

4,273,430 2,401,743
1,500,000 3,798,483
5,773,430 6,200,226
8,542,471 7,629,562
(269,619) (68,498)
661,160 =
(930,779) (68,498)
(12,782,439) (2,/432,269)
(426,795) 6,200,225
(4,936,382) 11,329,020




RISK MANAGEMENT

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human
error or external events. When controls fail to perform, operational risk
can cause damage, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to
financial loss. The Trading Entity is constantly monitoring and responding
to potential risk thus managing the risk.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial liabilities

- Trade receivables

- Less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables
- SARS - VAT

- Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
- Trade and other payables

Price risk

As the Trading Entity has no significant interest-bearing assets, the
Trading Entity’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

Cash flow interest rate risk Current interest
Rate

Financial instruments

Trade and other receivables 0.00%
Cash and cash equivalents 5.50%
Trade and other payables 0.00%

2010 2009
R R
13,385,871 2,432,269
(661,160) -
1,828,837
7,391,915 11,397,518
4,273,430 2,401,743
Due in less than Duein2to5
ayear years
13,385,870.96 -
7,389,214.33 -
(4,273,430.14) -
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Interest rate risk

This risk is the potential financial loss as a result of adverse movement
in interest rates that affects the value of bank balances. Nominal interest
rate can be split into real interest rate risk and inflation risk. Interest
rate risk is managed by investing funds in highly liquid call accounts, at
reputable financial institutions, earning market related interest.

Market risk

No significant fluctuations in the market occurred during the year that
affected the Trading Entity.

Credit Risk

Financial assets, which potentially subject the TAU Trading Entity to the
risk of non-performance by counter parties, consist mainly of cash and
accounts receivable.

The Trading Entity limits its treasury counter-part exposure by only
dealing with well-established financial institutions approved by the
National Treasury.

Trade receivables consist of other government depart-ments.
Liquidity Risk

The Trading Entity manages liquidity risk through proper management
of working capital and proper cash flow projections.

CONTINGENCIES

In terms of the PFMA, all surplus funds as at the reporting date may be
forfeited to National Treasury. A request for the retention of surplus funds
to the value of R8,542,471 resulting from operations during the financial
year ended 31 March 2010 to National Treasury will be made.

2010

2009




10.

10.1

10.2

11.

12.

13.

2010 2009

COMMITMENTS

PROJECT COMMITMENTS

Current commitments will be funded from this years'surplus of R8,542,471
as well as future govern-ment grants, cost recovery and donor funds.

OPERATING COMMITMENTS

Payable within the next 12 months
- Contractual commitments 29,837,811 25,897,549

Payable after 12 months but before 60 months
- Contractual commitments 5,534,776 3,075175

Payable after 60 months Nil Nil

MATERIAL LOSSES THROUGH CRIMINAL CONDUCT,
IRREGULAR, FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE

To the best of our knowledge, no material losses through criminal
conduct or irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure were incurred
during the year ended 31 March 2010.

GOING CONCERN

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of
accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes
that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations
and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Accounting Authority is not aware of any matter or circumstance,
arising since the end of the financial year to the date of this report in
respect of matters which could require adjustments to, or disclosure in,
the annual financial statements.
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14. RELATED PARTIES

Amounts included in trade receivables regarding related parties

Department of Foreign Affairs

Department of Health

Department of Labour

Department of Environment and Tourism

National Department of Sports and Recreation
National Treasury

Office of the Premier

Reconstruction and Development Programme Fund
The Presidency

SASSA

Related - party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

Services provided to related parties

Department of Defense and Military Veterans
Department of Education

Department of Environment and Tourism
Department of Foreign Affairs

Department of Health

Department of Labour

Department of Public Service Administration
Financial Intelligence

National Department of Sports and Recreation
National Treasury

Office of the Municipal Manager

Office of the Premier

Treasury — Limpopo

The Agricultural Research Council

The Presidency

SASSA

Department of Local Government and Traditional Affairs
Department of Local Government and Housing

Services provided by related parties

National Treasury

2010 2009
R R

- 300,000

- 525,000

- (206,801)

300,000 -

- 326,040

- 427,510

228,606 -
12,196,105 -
- 399,360

661,160 661,160
378319 -

- 5,174,581

300,000 -

- 300,000

- 525,000

206,801 1477,150
900,000 -
1,045,500 -
1392216 326,040
4,060,018 2,473,602
375,667 -
228,606 -
1,568,100 -
69,283 -

- 399,360

- 661,160
4,766,664 101,517
319,733 -
18,898,000 20,000,000



15. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, various standards and Interpretations are issued which

are not yet effective. These include the following Standards and Interpretations which are applicable to the

Trading Entity

Standard

Details of Amendment

Effective

IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments:
Disclosures

Amendment clarifies the intended

interaction  between qualitative
and quantitative disclosures of the
nature and extent of risks arising

from financial instruments

1 January 2011

Removed some disclosure items
which were seen to be superfluous
or misleading

1 January 2011

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

New standard that forms the first
part of a three-part project to
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement

1 January 2013

IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial
Statements

Clarification  of  statement  of

changes in equity

1 January 2011

IAS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows

Classification of expenditures on
unrecognized assets

1 January 2010

IAS 10 — Events after the Reporting
Period

Amendment resulting from the
issue of IFRIC 17

1 July 2009

IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures

Simplification of the disclosure
requirements  for  government-
related entities. Clarification of the

definition of a related party

1 January 2011

The impact that these Standards and Interpretations may have on the financial statements of the entity has not

been assessed.

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

Annual Financial Statements

261



SERVICE DELIVERY

|




SERVICE DELIVERY

ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT

To deliver on its mandate, the National Treasury remains focused on continuous improvements to the recruitment,
development and retention of its staff. The talent acquisition process has been refined as part of the rollout of the talent
management framework. Various other operational policies and back-end systems have also been upgraded during the
period under review. These include the procurement strategy, several financial management policies, and advancing
knowledge management aims through deploying technology solutions. In recognition of the different approach
demanded by a rapidly changing economic and political environment, the National Treasury has developed innovative
solutions to improve coordination both internally and externally. We welcome the Performance, Monitoring and
Evaluation function in the Presidency and the formal introduction of outcomes, measurements and associated systems in
government. These will shape the formulation of our strategic plan for the next three years.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT REFORMS

Financing of government spending remains under pressure, with a slowly recovering domestic economy, and budget
reforms continue to focus on the value for money agenda. This is critical in ensuring that scarce resources are allocated in
line with the MTSF priorities and outcome targets. The savings exercise initiated has realised savings of R25.6 billion over

the next three years in national departments, and approximately R13.4 billion for reprioritisation within provincial budgets.

Stronger financial management systems, together with the capacity to operate these systems, are also important in
ensuring money is well spent. The National Treasury continues to invest in building the sustainable capacity of financial
practitioners in national and provincial government. Interventions include the Chartered Accountants Academy (CAA)
and Standard Chart Of Accounts (SCOA) and risk management training programmes.

Training was provided to 1 334 municipal officials on the new Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) standards,
the framework on preparing financial statements and inventory management. International advisors with expertise in
financial management were deployed to municipalities to support budget preparation, improve reporting and build local
skills. In addition, three roving advisors assisted provinces with monitoring municipal financial management reforms. A
total of 894 financial management interns were deployed as part of the programme to build capacity in municipalities.

ECONOMIC POLICY

The economic policy environment is an active area of work, ongoing research, policy analysis, data assessment, and
forecasting in support of National Treasury’s needs in the areas of budgeting, macroeconomic policy and factors
influencing economic growth. The global recession has required new ways of looking at economic policy and a deeper
perspective on international economic issues. Economic growth has remained a key area of work for the National Treasury.
South Africa is not immune to the effects of the global economic slowdown, and the National Treasury interacts regularly
with the markets to assess sentiment and consider changes to risk premia, exchange rate conditions and bond prices.
The implications of various budgetary stances on economic growth and policies are undertaken intensively during the
formulation of the national budget.
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TAX AND FINANCIAL SECTOR POLICY

The tax and financial sector policy environment came under particular pressure in the wake of the financial crisis.
Maintaining stability of the financial markets is of critical importance under these circumstances and the National
Treasury's efforts in this regard were successful.

A wide range of policy issues were addressed during the period under review, ranging from regular tax policy reforms
in line with the 2009 Budget, to governance in the financial sector and various ongoing reforms, such as the work on
reforming the retirement fund industry. More nascent policy questions and proposals that received attention included
work on motor vehicle carbon emissions taxes and implementation of the Mineral and Petroleum Royalty Act.

BUDGET OFFICE

The Budget Office coordinates the budgeting process, provides advice to senior stakeholders including the Ministers’
Committee on the budget, and monitors fiscal and public expenditure trends. During the 2009/10 year, the division led
the effort to yield R25.6 billion rands in national and provincial government budgets. The work stream on budget matters
related to reorganisation of government departments and functions, following the 2009 elections, were also led by the
Budget Office.

In playing their part in improving financial management in the public sector, various publications and capacity-building
activities were undertaken. Cost containment guidelines were issued to further improve value derived from public funds
spent, an update to the Reference Guide to the Economic Reporting Format (ERF), a policy framework for management of
Official Development Assistance (ODA) and revised Public-Private Partnership (PPP) contractual provisions were published.

The Neighbourhood Development Programme unit which administers the neighbourhood development partnership
grant (NDPG), is also located in the Budget Office. By the end of March 2010 the unit’s portfolio had expanded to 90
awards in 57 municipalities, with a value of R8.8 billion.

PUBLIC FINANCE

The Public Finance division advises the Minister of Finance on sectoral policies and departmental spending programmes,
evaluates budget submissions of national departments, public entities, state-owned enterprises and constitutional
institutions, monitors spending and service delivery trends, and provides support for improvements to financial
administration, such as the implementation of the Standard Chart of Accounts and compliance with the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA).

The Project Management Unit for Social Security and Retirement Reform (PMU), provides administrative support to the
inter-departmental task team on social security and retirement reform. During 2009/10 the unit circulated a consolidated
government paper, coordinated the work of several interdepartmental sub-committees and research projects, and
advised the Minister's Committee responsible for overseeing this reform project.

Technical and management support is offered to the rest of government by the Technical Assistance Unit (TAU). At the



end of the financial year, TAU was actively providing support to 60 projects, had completed seven projects and had

another 22 projects in the pipeline where initial engagements or pre-diagnostics were already taking place.
INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS

The importance of coordinating fiscal relations between the national, provincial and local spheres of government is clear
when one considers the design of intergovernmental funding arrangements, in which provinces and municipalities are
allocated approximately half of non-interest financial resources. A well-established intergovernmental system is also

necessary to ensure coordinated and efficient service delivery across government and the public sector at large.

The National Treasury compiles consolidated provincial budgets and quarterly expenditure reports required in terms of
Section 32 of the PFMA, and the consolidated reports on local government required by Section 71 of the MFMA. These
provide Parliament and provincial legislatures with valuable data for exercising effective oversight, and strengthen the
accountability of accounting officers. For the 2009/10 Medium Term Revenue Expenditure Framework (MTREF), 24 of the
targeted 27 large municipalities produced their budgets in the new formats developed and published by the National
Treasury and 11 other municipalities volunteered to produce their budgets in the new formats.

The local government fiscal framework has been revised to more appropriately acknowledge the different service delivery
challenges faced by large urban and smaller rural municipalities. A number of new provincial grants were introduced during
the reporting period including the expanded public works programme incentive grant, and public transport operations grant.

MANAGING PUBLIC SECTOR DEBT

The domestic bond market changed significantly during the period under review. The slowdown in domestic economic
activity and accompanying shortfall in government revenue led to a weaker fiscal position, resulting in a significant
increase in the government borrowing requirement. As a result, the National Treasury increased the amount of cash in the
weekly government bond auctions. Notwithstanding the substantial increase in government’s borrowing requirement
over the past year, bond and Treasury bill auctions were still oversubscribed — meaning that the bids received exceeded the
amount on offer. Government’s funding strategy will continue to strengthen the bond market through the diversification
of debt instruments, the creation of benchmark bonds and active management of the state debt portfolio. Issuance in the

broader public sector will be closely monitored.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL RELATIONS

International financial relations and regional economic integration continue to have relatively high priority. South Africa
again played an influential role in the G20 during the period under review, and participated in summits that were held to
deal with the global financial crisis.

The Collaborative African Budget Review Initiative, or CABRI, was established as an international organisation during the
period under review, with founding membership held by Ghana, Kenya, Mali, Rwanda, Senegal and South Africa (SA). SA
successfully hosted the first meeting of the 12th replenishment of the African Development Fund in Cape Town and the

National Treasury co-chaired G20 the working group on IMF reform and the experts group on financial inclusion.
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HUMAN RESOURCE REPORT

2. EXPENDITURE

Departments budget in terms of clearly defined programmes. The following tables summarise final audited

expenditure by programme (Table 2.1) and by salary bands (Table 2.2). In particular, it provides an indication of the

amount spent on personnel costs in terms of each of the programmes or salary bands within the department.

TABLE 2.1 - Personnel costs by programme, 2009/10

Personnel
costasa
percent
of total

expenditure

Professional
and Special
Services
(R'000)

Total Personnel Training
Expenditure | Expenditure | Expenditure
(R'000) (R'000) (R'000)

Programme

Programme 1
242,790 91,802 2,228 34,334 378
Administration

Programme 2

Public Finance and Budget 262,916 122,687 1,835 96,452 46.7
Management

Programme 3

Asset and Liability 53,174 38,070 381 6,552 716
Management
Programme 4

Financial Management and 405,632 39,583 214 45 9.8
Systems

Programme 5

Financial Accounting and 137,110 50,786 4,671 11,568 37.0
Reporting

Programme 6

Economic Policy and

International Financial 87 21 028 219 626
Relations
Programme 7
Provincial and Local 14,327,371 0 0 0 0

Government Transfers

Programme 8
Civil and Military Pensions, 4,955,140 0 0 25,255 0

Contributions to Funds

Programme 9
42,190,108 0 0 0 0

Fiscal Transfers

Total 62,668,728

402,073 9,957 183,401

* Note: Percentage of average personnel cost per employee calculated based on the number of employees in table 3.1

Average
personnel
cost per
employee
(R'000) *

275

440

433

396

368

441
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TABLE 2.2 - Personnel costs by salary bands, 2009/10

Average
Personnel
. % of total personnel cost
Salary bands Expenditure
(R'000) personnel cost per employee
(R'000) ***
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 236 0.06 59
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 7,041 177 139
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 49,843 12.50 176
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 170,132 42.66 354
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 171,520 43.01 675
Total ** 398,772 100 372

** Note: Minister and Deputy Minister personnel expenditure not included in total

***Note: Percentage of average personnel cost per employee calculated based on the number of employees in table 3.2

The following tables provide a summary per programme (Table 2.3) and salary bands (Table 2.4), of expenditure
incurred as a result of salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical assistance. In each case, the table
provides an indication of the percentage of the personnel budget that was used for these items.

TABLE 2.3 - Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Assistance by programme, 2009/10

. Home Owners . ;
Programme Overtime Medical Assistance
Allowance

Salaries Overtime HOA as A,;/l?s(:::cle
Amount asa%of | Amount asa%of | Amount a % of Amount 0
(R'000) personnel (R'000) personnel | (R'000) | personnel | (R'000) asad% Ofl
COSt *¥**¥ cost **** COSt *¥**¥ pcir::) :*23
Programme 1 62,369 67.94 343 0.37 1,042 1.14 2,370 2.58
Programme 2 77,633 63.28 58 0.05 1,679 137 2,537 207
Programme 3 25,015 65.71 0 0.0 425 112 1,052 2.76
Programme 4 26,357 66.59 0 0.0 239 0.60 1,095 2.77
Programme 5 31,983 62.98 0 0.0 483 0.95 886 1.74
Programme 6 36,968 62.50 0 0.0 658 111 1,050 1.78
Total 260,325 64.75 401 0.10 4,526 1.13 8,990 2.24

***¥ Note: Percent of personnel cost of salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical assistance are calculated on the total personnel

expenditure per programme in table 2.1



TABLE 2.4 - Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Assistance by salary bands, 2009/10

. Home Owner . .
Salary Bands Overtime SO Medical Assistance
Allowance

. . Medical
Salaries Overtime HOA as Assistance
Amount | asa%of | Amount as a % of Amount a % of Amount as 2% of
()
(R'000) | personnel | (R'000) personnel (R000) | personnel | (R'000)
personnel
cost cost cost
cost
Lower skilled
86 36.44 0 0.00 7 297 15 6.36
(Levels 1-2)
Skilled
3,873 55.01 37 0.53 129 1.83 379 5.38
(Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled
production 28,007 56.19 202 041 721 145 2,258 453
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled
supervision 110,287 64.82 162 0.10 1,374 0.81 4,019 2.36
(Levels 9-12)
Senior
management 116,393 67.86 0 0.00 2,295 1.34 2,290 1.34
(Levels 13-16)
Total ***** 258,646 401 4,526 8,961

****% Note: Minister and Deputy Minister personnel expenditure not included in total.

3. EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

The following tables summarise the number of posts on the establishment, the number of employees, the vacancy
rate, and only staff that are additional to the establishment. This information is presented in terms of three key
variables: - programme (Table 3.1) and salary band (Table 3.2). Departments have identified critical occupations that
need to be monitored. The vacancy rate reflects the percentage of posts that are not filled.
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TABLE 3.1 - Employment and vacancies by programme, 31 March 2010

Number Number of posts filled
additional to the

Vacancy
Rate %

Programme of funded Headcount
posts establishment

Programme 1 Administration 361 334 7 12 (1 excess)

Programme 2

Public Finance and Budget 304 279 8 28
Management
Programme 3

105 88 16 0
Asset and Liability Management
Programme 4

105 100 5 3 (3 excess)
Financial Management and Systems
Programme 5

128 138 0 3
Financial Accounting and Reporting
Programme 6
Economic Policy and international 148 134 9 7
Financial Relations
Total 1151 1073 7 53

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister included in totals.

DISTRIBUTION OF FILLED POSITIONS PER PROGRAMME

Financial Management and Systems, 100

Asset and Liability Management, 88 +

: \
Public Fmamce<_
and Budget
Management, 279

Administration, 334

Financial Accounting
P and Reporting, 138

Relations, 134

i s

—» Economic Policy and
international Financial



TABLE 3.2 - Employment and vacancies by salary bands, 31 March 2010

AL 7 Number of posts filled
Number of | posts filled Vacancy o
Salary band additional to the
posts (total Rate % .
establishment

headcount)

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 4 4 0 4

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 57 51 1 2

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 295 283 4 1

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 521 481 7 15

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 274 254 7 21

Total 1151 1073 7 53

NB: Vacancy reduced by additional appointments. Minister and Deputy Minister included in totals.

DISTRIBUTION OF FILLED POSITIONS PER SALARY BAND

Senior management
(Levels 13-16), 254

Skilled

(Levels 3-5), 51
Lower skilled + Highly skilled production
(Levels 1-2), 4 * (Levels 6-8), 283

e

-«

T
u"y,'r,'v,'|'||'|'|||lll||||

v

Highly skilled supervision
(Levels 9-12), 481

i

Note: Critical skills occupations for the National Treasury have not been finalised. However, the following areas are being considered: economists,

supply chain consultants, chartered accountants, and tax specialists.

The information in each case reflects the situation as at 31 March 2010. For an indication of changes in staffing
patterns over the year under review, please refer to section 5 of this report.
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4. JOB EVALUATION

The Public Service Regulations, 1999 introduced job evaluation as a way of ensuring that work of equal value is
remunerated equally. Within a nationally determined framework, executing authorities may evaluate or re-evaluate
any job in his or her organisation. In terms of the Regulations all vacancies on salary levels 9 and higher must be
evaluated before they are filled. This was complemented by a decision by the Minister for the Public Service and
Administration that all SMS jobs must be evaluated before 31 December 2002.

The following table (Table 4.1) summarises the number of jobs that were evaluated during the year under review.

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

The table also provides statistics on the number of posts that were upgraded or downgraded.

TABLE 4.1 - Job Evaluation, 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Number % of posts Posts Upgraded Posts downgraded
Number
Salary band of Dosts of Jobs evaluated by 9% of posts 9% of posts
P Evaluated | salarybands | Number | ieq | NUmber | ated
Lower skilled
4 0 0 0 0 0 0
(Levels 1-2)
Skilled
51 7 14 5 10 0 0
(Levels 3-5)
Highly skilled production
o . 283 3 1 0 0 0 0
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision
o : 481 110 23 11 2 0 0
(Levels 9-12)
Senior Management
198 45 23 0 0 0 0
Service Band A
Senior Management
61 4 7 0 0 0 0
Service Band B
Senior Management
14 0 0 0 0 0 0
Service Band C
Senior Management
1 0 0 0 0 0 0
Service Band D
Total 1151 169 15 16 1 0 0

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals.
The following table provides a summary of the number of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to

their posts being upgraded. The number of employees might differ from the number of posts upgraded since not

all employees are automatically absorbed into the new posts and some of the posts upgraded could also be vacant.
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TABLE 4.2 - Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their posts being
upgraded, 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Beneficiaries

Female

Male

Employees with a disability

Total

African

nn © wun

o O O

The following table summarises the number of cases where remuneration levels exceeded the grade determined

by job evaluation. Reasons for the deviation are provided in each case.

TABLE 4.3 - Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by job evaluation, 1 April 2009 to
31 March 2010 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Occupation

Chief Director
Director

Deputy Director
Assistant Director
Administration

Office Assistant

Number of
employees

6
10
32
9
5
3

Job evaluation
level

14
13
11and 12
9and 10
7and 8
3,4and 5

Remuneration
level

15
14 and 15
12and 13
10,11 and 12
8,9and 10
5and 6

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation in

2009/10

Percentage of total employment

Table 4.4 summarises the beneficiaries of the above in terms of race, gender, and disability.

deviation
Retention
Retention
Retention
Retention
Retention

Retention
65

6.05

TABLE 4.4 - Profile of employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by job evaluation,
1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 (in terms of PSR 1.V.C.3)

Beneficiaries
Female

Male

Total

African
16
17
33

Asian
0
3
3

Coloured
3
3
6

White

16
23

Total
26
39
65
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5. EMPLOYMENT CHANGES

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year.
Turnover rates provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of the department. The following table
provides a summary of turnover rates by salary band (Table 5.1).

TABLE 5.1 - Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Number of employees Appointments | Terminations and | Turnover

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

Salary Band per band as on and transfers into | transfers out of
31 March 2009 the department | the department
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 3 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 53 4 4 8
Highly skilled production(Levels 6-8) 230 79 20 9
Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 440 75 39 9
Senior Management Service Band A 163 24 16 10
Senior Management Service Band B 51 4 4 8
Senior Management Service Band C 1 3 0 0
Senior Management Service Band D 1 1 1 100
Total 950 193 84 8
NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals
Table 5.2 identifies the major reasons why staff left the department.
TABLE 5.2 - Reasons why staff are leaving the department
Termination Type Number % of total
Death 2 2
Resignation 47 56
Expiry of contract 9 11
Dismissal — operational changes 0 0
Dismissal — misconduct 3 4
Dismissal — inefficiency 0 0
Discharged due to ill-health 1 1
Retirement 5 6
Severance Package 0 0
Transfers to other Public Service Departments 17 20
Total 84 100
Total number of employees who left as a % of the total employment 8
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TABLE 5.3 - Promotions by salary band

Eralleracs 31 Promotions to | Salary bands promotions

Salary Band March 2009 another salary as a % of employees by
level salary level
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 53 4 8
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 230 23 10
Highly skilled supervision (Levels9-12) 440 64 15
Senior management (Levels13-16) 226 20 9
Total 950 111 12

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals.

PROMOTIONS TO ANOTHER SALARY LEVEL AS A PERCENTAGE (%) OF TOTAL (111)

Skilled
(Levels 3-5), 4%
Lower skilled + Highly skilled production
(Levels 1-2), 0% W - (Levels 6-8), 21%

Senior management
(Levels13-16), 18%

SRR
il
il

e

v

Highly skilled supervision
(Levels9-12), 58%
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6. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

The tables in this section are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity Act, 55 of 1998.

TABLE 6.1 - Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following
occupational categories as at 31 March 2010

Occupational

categories
(SASCO) African | Coloured ‘Indian White | African | Coloured ‘ Indian | White

Legislators, senior

64 12 19 40 38 6 6 30 215
officials and managers
Professionals 141 15 10 45 135 12 16 51 425
Technicians and

22 5 2 7 48 4 2 12 102
associate professionals
Clerks 51 1 2 6 147 17 8 45 277
Service and sales

12 1 1 0 8 1 0 0 23
workers
Plant and machine
operators and 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8
assemblers
Elementary occupations 7 4 0 0 9 1 0 0 21
Total 305 38 34 98 385 41 32 138 1071

NB: Minister and Deputy Minister not included in totals

RACE DISTRIBUTION

2008/09 2009/10

White, 23 White, 22

! !

| N -

> Black,77 > Black, 78

L i



TABLE 6.2 - Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following
occupational bands as on 31 March 2010

Occupational Bands

Top Management

Senior Management 63 15 16
Professionally qualified and experienced

117 13 10
specialists and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically
qualified workers, junior management,

95 6 3
supervisors, foreman and
superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision

24 1 0
making
Unskilled and defined decision making 2 2 0
Total 305 38 34

GENDER DISTRIBUTION

2008/09

Male, 46

A

—»  Female, 54

LA

40 43 5 8 35 225
41 101 12 12 52 358
9 220 22 12 50 417
1 19 0 0 0 45
0 0 0 0 0 4
98 385 41 32 138 1071
2009/10
Male, 44

A

—»  Female, 56

.
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TABLE 6.3 - Recruitment for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Female

Occupational Bands

Top Management 0 0 2 0 1 1 0 0 4
Senior Management 9 4 0 3 5 1 2 4 28
Professionally qualified and experienced

25 1 1 4 19 1 2 2 55
specialists and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically
qualified workers, junior management,

18 1 0 2 61 5 4 8 99
supervisors, foreman and
superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision

2 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 4
making
Unskilled and defined decision making 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Employees with disabilities 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 56 7 3 9 88 8 8 14 193

RECRUITMENT PROFILE

Professionally qualified and experienced
specialists and mid-management
(9-12), 40%

AN

Senior Management
(13-14),14% <*

I i

TR
T
i

¥
Top Management f * +
(15-16),2%
Unskilled and Semi-skilled and  Skilled technical and academically
defined decision  discretionary qualified workers, junior
making decision making ~ management, supervisors, foreman
(1-2),2% (3-5),2% and superintendents

(6-8),40%



TABLE 6.4 - Promotions for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Occupational Bands

Top Management

Senior Management

Professionally qualified and experienced
specialists and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically
qualified workers, junior management,
supervisors, foreman and
superintendents

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision
making

Unskilled and defined decision making
Employees with disabilities

Total

18

0

33

36

TABLE 6.5 — Terminations for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Occupational Bands

Top Management

Senior Management

Professionally qualified and experienced
specialists and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically
qualified workers, junior management,
supervisors, foreman and
superintendents

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision
making

Unskilled and defined decision making

Total

24

30

\Ce]

35

111

33

84
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TERMINATION OF SERVICES PROFILE

Professionally qualified and experienced
specialists and mid-management
9-12),31% &

Senior Management
(13-14), 24%

‘ff:\‘w‘w‘w\‘““'{h\\””“"Ii"lfil‘iﬁi“w i ﬂ!nﬁmw \

N Skilled technical and

Top Management (15 - 16),2% <

¥ academically qualified workers,

Unskilled and defined decision making (1 - 2), 2% ¥ junior management, supervisors, foreman
o ) ) . ) and superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making (3 - 5), 2% (6-8) 39%

TABLE 6.6 - Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

African ‘ Coloured ‘ Indian ‘ White ‘ African ‘ Coloured ‘ Indian ‘ White ‘ Total
Disciplinary action 5 0 0 0 2 0 0 1 8

TABLE 6.7 - Skills development for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Female ‘ Total

Occupational categories

African ‘ Coloured ‘ Indian ‘ White ‘ African ‘ Coloured ‘ Indian ‘ White ‘

Legislators, senior officials and

managers 48 8 13 26 30 5 6 24 160
Professionals 95 8 6 32 103 8 10 26 288
Technicians and associate professionals 19 5 2 6 39 4 3 6 84
Clerks 49 1 2 3 114 12 7 28 216
Service and sales workers 1 1 1 0 8 1 0 0 22
Skilled agriculture and fishery workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Craft and related trades workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
:Lasz‘;jglzlrrsnachme operators and 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Elementary occupations 4 2 0 0 1 1 0 0 8
Total 229 25 24 67 295 31 26 84 781

Employees with disabilities 1 0 0 2 0 0 0 3 0



7. PERFORMANCE REWARDS
To encourage good performance, the department has granted the following performance rewards during the year
under review. The information is presented in terms of race, gender, and disability (Table 6.1), salary bands (table 6.2)

and critical occupations (Table 6.3).

TABLE 7.1 - Performance Rewards by race, gender and disability, 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Number of Total number of % of total Cost Average cost
beneficiaries | employeesingroup | within group (R"000) per employee
African 383 593 64.5% 8,224 21,472
Male 160 270 59.2% 4,128 25,800
Female 223 323 69.0% 4,096 18,367
Asian 50 65 76.9% 1,735 66,730
Male 26 36 72.2% 1,107 42,576
Female 24 29 82.7% 628 26,166
Coloured 58 70 82.8% 1,642 27,830
Male 30 36 83.3% 938 31,266
Female 28 34 82.3% 704 25,142
White 189 222 85.1% 6,343 33,560
Male 75 91 82.4% 3,046 40,613
Female 114 131 87.0% 3,297 28,921
Total 680 950 71.5% 17,944 26,388

TABLE 7.2 - Performance Rewards by salary bands for personnel below Senior Management Service,
1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Salary Bands Beneficiary Profile

% of total tal Average Total costas a
Numberof | Number of within cost per % of the total
beneficiaries | employees salary employee personnel
bands (R'000) expenditure
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 1 1 100% 4 4 0.0%

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 53 53 100% 326 [§ 0.09%
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 137 230 59.5% 1,566 1 0.46%
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 289 440 65.6% 6,346 21 1.89%
Total 480 724 66.3% 8,242 17 2.46%

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

281



National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

282

TABLE 7.3 - Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band, for Senior Management Service

Total Cost
(R'000)

Salary Band Beneficiary Profile
Number of Number of % of total
beneficiaries employees within band

Band A 141 165 85.4%
Band B 47 48 97.9%
Band C 12 12 100%
Band D 0 1 0

Total 200 226 88.4%

Total cost as a
Average cost | % of the total
per employee personnel
expenditure

5,848 41 1.74%
3,039 64 0.90%
815 67 0.24%
0 0 0
9,702 48.5 2.9%

8. LEAVE UTILISATION FORTHE PERIOD 1 JANUARY 2009 TO

31 DECEMBER 2009

The Public Service Commission identified the need for careful monitoring of sick leave within the public service.

The following tables provide an indication of the use of sick leave (Table 8.1) and disability leave (Table 8.2). In both

cases, the estimated cost of the leave is also provided.

TABLE 8.1 - Sick leave, 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009

. Number of
% days with Er: lovees
Salary Band Total days medical Ut
. . using sick
certification
leave
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 270 83.3 44
Highly skilled production
g P 1350 784 212
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision
oy P 1909 709 338
(Levels9-12)
Senior management
777 74.9 154
(Levels 13-16)
Total 4306 74.8 748

% of total
Average .
employees davs per Estimated
using sick ysp Cost (R'000)
employee
leave
0 0 0

59 6 79

283 6 696

452 6 2221

20.6 5 1975

100 6 4971



TABLE 8.2 - Disability leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009

()
% days with Bl OS] Average | Estimated
Total days . Employees employees
Salary Band medical . A . o Tt days per Cost
taken . . using disability | using disability B
certification employee (R'000)
leave leave
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 0 0 0 0 0 0
Highly skilled production
o P 147 100 6 50 25 85
(Levels 6-8)
Highly skilled supervision
97 100 5 41.7 19 83
(Levels 9-12)
Senior management
20 100 1 83 20 51
(Levels 13-16)
Total 264 100 12 100 22 219

Table 8.3 summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with trade unions in the
PSCBC in 2000 requires management of annual leave to prevent high levels of accrued leave being paid at the time

of termination of service.

TABLE 8.3 — Annual Leave, 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009

Salary Bands ‘ Total days taken ‘ Average per employee
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 16 4
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1,150 22
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 5,165.76 18
Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 9,422.52 19
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 5,350 19
Total 21,088.28 19

PROFILE OF ANNUAL LEAVE TAKEN

Skilled (levels 3-5), 5% Highly skilled production

Lower skilled (levels A (levels 6-8), 24%

1-2),0% % A

Senior management

(levels13-16); 25%

—»  Highly skilled supervision
(levels9-12), 45%

SN s
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TABLE 8.4 - Capped leave, 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2009

Average capped leave

el i - TOt:I| days of Average number of days e I
pped leave taken taken per employee December 2009
Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0
Skilled (Levels 3-5) 7 4 27
Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 12 2 20
Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 64 4 34
Senior management (Levels 13-16) 23 4 65
Total 106 4 39

TABLE 8.5 - Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

The following table summarises payments made to employees as a result of leave that was not taken.

Total Amount Number of a0 Ry

Reason per employee

(GY[0]0)] Employees (R'000)

Leave payout for 2009/10 due to non-utilisation of

0 0 0

leave for the previous cycle
Capped leave payouts on termination of service for

788 5 158
2009/10
Current leave payout on termination of service for

895 58 15
2009/10
Total 1,683 63 27

9. HIV AND AIDS & HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAMMES

TABLE 9.1 - Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identified Key steps taken to reduce the risk

to be at high risk of contracting HIV &
related diseases (if any)

None « Offer quarterly Voluntary Counselling and Testing. People testing positive are
referred and registered with their respective medical aids for the HIV/AIDS
programme.

Conduct support groups on information sharing and open forum discussions

to people affected. Conduct quarterly Voluntary Counselling and Testing



TABLE 9.2 - Details of Health Promotion and HIV and AIDS Programmes (tick the applicable boxes and
provide the required information)

Has the department designated a member of
the SMS to implement the provisions contained
in Part VI E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service
Regulations, 20017 If so, provide her/his name
and position.

2. Does the department have a dedicated unit X
or has it designated specific staff members
to promote the health and well being of your
employees? If so, indicate the number of
employees who are involved in this task and the
annual budget that is available for this purpose.

3. Has the department introduced an Employee X
Assistance or Health Promotion Programme for
employees? If so, indicate the key elements/

services of this Programme.

4. Has the department established (a) committee(s) X
as contemplated in Part VI E.5 (e) of Chapter 1
of the Public Service Regulations, 20017 If so,
please provide the names of the members of
the committee and the stakeholder(s) that they

represent.

Director: Organisational Development

One (1) internal Human Resources Specialist: Employee

Wellness Programme (EWP); supported by an external

Employee Wellness service provider (ICAS).

Confidential Counselling

Assess and refer employees for interventions including:

financial and legal advice, relationships, family matters,

substance abuse, work stress, depression, trauma and
other Health issues.

Host Health awareness campaigns — focuses on health
assessments and advise also information sharing on
health related matters.

Quartely Voluntary Counselling and Testing (VCT)

Work-life programmes that includes sports activities.

Composed 9 internal members:

Hilda Mhlongo (CS)
Sheridan Pillay (ODG)
Thabsile Shezi (EP)
Rebecca Modiba (CS)
Marius Klue (OAG)

Betty Malope (CS)
Innocentia Machaba (SF)
Johnny October (CS)
Georgina Chauke (CS)
(until Feb 2010 - Retired)
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Question

5. Has the department reviewed its employment
policies and practices to ensure that these do
not unfairly discriminate against employees
on the basis of their HIV status? If so, list the
employment policies/practices so reviewed.

6. Has the department introduced measures
to protect HIV-positive employees or those

perceived to be HIV-positive from discrimination?

National Treasury Annual Report 2009/10

If 50, list the key elements of these measures.

7. Does the department encourage
its employees to undergo Voluntary
Counselling and Testing? If so, list the results
that you have you achieved.

8. Has the department developed measures/
indicators to monitor and evaluate
the impact of its health promotion
programme? If so, list these measures/
indicators.

10. LABOUR RELATIONS

X

Details, if yes

No. All our other employment policies do not discriminate
against employees on the basis of their HIV status.

The departments HIV and AIDS policy gives a solid
platform for ensuring non —discriminatory practices
against HIV- positive employees.

The HIV/AIDS policy emphasises confidentiality and the
names of all employees tested are kept confidentially

by an external Voluntary Counselling and Testing (VCT)
service provider. The disease management process

for those who are positive is done through GEMS and
information is also not disclosed to the employer.

VCT is conducted quarterly. 46.6% of our employees
underwent VCT in the period 01 April 2009 and 31 March
2010.

« VCT: target of 48%

+ Health and productivity: Target of less than 12%
absenteeism rate

- Wellness management: EWP utilisation rate of
20%

The following collective agreements were entered into with trade unions within the department.

TABLE 10.1 - Collective agreements, 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Subject Matter Date

N/A

The following table summarises the outcome of disciplinary hearings conducted within the department for the

year under review.
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TABLE 10.2 - Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised, 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Correctional counselling

Verbal warning

Written warning

Final written warning
Suspended without pay
Fine

Demotion

Dismissal

Not guilty

Case withdrawn

Total

TABLE 10.3 - Types of misconduct addressed at disciplinary hearings

Unauthorised use of the GG car
Unauthorised use of telephone pin code
Time Keeping

Negligence

Excessive use of telephone

Absenteeism

Total

TABLE 10.4 - Grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

| Number | %offoul

Number of grievances resolved
Number of grievances not resolved

Total number of grievances lodged

TABLE 10.5 - Disputes lodged with Councils for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

- Number | %ofToul

Number of disputes upheld
Number of disputes dismissed

Total number of disputes lodged

NB. There is still 1 (25%) outstanding dispute which is with the Labour Court

1

- O UL Nnw;

S N O

17

5
1
1
8
1
3
19

9

16

2
0
2

58
294

100

263
53
53

421
53

15.7

100

56.3
43.7
100

100
0
100
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TABLE 10.6 - Strike actions for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Total number of person working days lost

Total cost (R'000) of working days lost

Amount (R'000) recovered as a result of no work no pay

TABLE 10.7 - Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Number of people suspended

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days

Average number of days suspended

Cost (R'000) of suspensions

11. SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

This section highlights the efforts of the department with regard to skills development.

TABLE 11.1 - Training needs identified 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

0
0

o o o o

Training needs identified at start of reporting period

Number of
. . employees .
Occupational Categories ploy . Skills Programmes Other
as at 1 April
2009 Learnerships & other short forms of | Total
courses training

Legislators, senior officials and = Female 80 0 9 0 9
managers Male 134 0 9 0 9

Female 214 0 14 0 14
Professionals

Male 211 0 16 0 16
Technicians and associate = Female 66 0 4 0 4
professionals Male 36 0 3 0 3

Female 217 0 47 0 47
Clerks

Male 60 0 39 0 39

Female 9 0 4 0 4
Service and sales workers

Male 14 0 12 0 12
Skilled agriculture and fishery ' Female 0 0 0 0 0
workers Male 0 0 0 0 0
Craft and related trades Female 0 0 0 0 0
workers Male 0 0 0 0 0




Training needs identified at start of reporting period

o
>
Number of §
. . employees . o
Occupational Categories | Gender ploy . Skills Programmes Other <}
as at 1 April S
2009 Learnerships & other short formsof | Total e
©
courses training §
Plant and machine operators | Female 0 0 0 0 0 é
and assemblers Male 8 0 0 0 0 %
Fernale 10 0 0 0 0 =
Elementary occupations c
Male 11 0 0 0 0 S
©
Female 596 0 78 0 78 =
Sub Total
Male 475 0 79 0 79
Total 1071 0 157 0 157

TABLE 11.2 - Training provided 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Number of Training provided within the reporting period

Occupational employees Skills Programmes Other

Categories asat1April | Learnerships & other short forms of | Total
2009

courses training

Legislators, senior officials = Female 80 0 162 34 196
and managers Male 134 0 225 62 287
Professionals Female 214 0 379 17 396
Male 211 0 305 16 321
Technicians and associate = Female 66 0 107 4 111
professionals Male 36 0 68 4 72
Clerks Female 217 0 443 2 445
Male 60 0 205 0 205
Service and sales workers Female 9 0 14 0 14
Male 14 0 29 0 29
Skilled  agriculture  and | Female 0 0 0 0 0
fishery workers Male 0 0 0 0 0
Craft and related trades Female 0 0 0 0 0
workers Male 0 0 0 0 0
Plantand machine operators = Female 0 0 0 0 0
&assemblers Male 8 0 0 0 0
Elementary occupations Female 10 0 3 0 3
Male 11 0 7 0 7
Sub Total Female 596 0 1108 0 1165
Male 475 0 839 0 924
Total 1071 0 1947 139 2089
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12. INJURY ON DUTY

The following tables provide basic information on injury on duty.

TABLE 12.1 - Injury on duty, 1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total
Required basic medical attention only 2 0.19
Temporary Total Disablement 0 0
Permanent Disablement 0 0
Fatal 0 0
Total 2 0.19
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ANNEXURE 1: ABBREVIATIONS

ACCC
ADB
ADF
AFIS
APRM
ASB
AU
BAS
BIS
CFTC
CGE
CISNA
cMU
CMA
CcPD
DBSA
DCIS
DF
DOC
DORA
DPE
DME
DPSA
DSGE
ED
EU
FATF
FFC
FIC
FMS
FOSAD
FSB
G20
G24
GAMAP
GCC
GCIS
GDS
GEPF
GFECRA
GRAP
HD
HEDCOM
HIPC
HSRC

Anti-Corruption Coordinating Committee
African Development Bank

African Development Fund

Automated Fingerprint Identification System
African Peer Review Mechanism

Accounting Standards Board

African Union

Basic Accounting System

Bank for International Settlements
Commonwealth Fund for Technical Cooperation
Computable General Equilibrium

Securities and Non-banking Financial Authorities
Contract Management Unit

Common Monetary Area

Corporation for Public Deposits

Development Bank of Southern Africa
Development Corporation Information System
Development Finance Institution

Department of Communications

Division of Revenue Act

Department of Public Enterprises

Department of Minerals and Energy
Department of Public Service and Administration
Dynamic Srochastic General Equilibrium
Exposure Drafts

European Union

Financial Action Task Force

Financial and Fiscal Commission

Financial Intelligence Centre

Financial Management System

Forum of SA Directors-General

Financial Services Board

Group of Twenty Countries

Group of Twenty-Four Countries

Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practices

Guarantee Certification Committee

Government Communications and Information System

Growth and Development Summit
Government Employee Pension Fund

Gold and Foreign Exchange Contingency Reserve Account

Generally Recognised Accounting Practices
Historically Disadvantaged Individual

Heads of Education Departments Committee
Highly Indebted Poor Countries

Human Sciences Research Council



IAS
ICASA
IDC
IFAC
IFMS
1JS
IMF
IMFC
10SCO
IPFA
IPSAS
ISDA
LRAD
MFI
MFMA
MFMTAP
MIG
MOU
MSP
MTEF
MYPD
NCOP
NEDLAC
NEPAD
NERSA
NERT
NIA
NOFP
NPA
OAG
PIC
PFAI
PFMA
PPP
PPPFA
RDP
REDS
RISDP
RMF
SACU
SADC
SAFCOL
SANReN
SAPS
SAPO

International Accounting Standards
Independent Communications Authority of South Africa
International Development Cooperation
International Federation of Accountants
Integrated Financial Management Systems
Integrated Justice Sector

International Monetary Fund

International Monetary and Financial Committee
International Organisation of Securities Commissions
Institute for Public Finance and Auditing
International Public Sector Accounting Standards
International Swaps and Derivatives Association
Land Reform for Agricultural Development
Micro-Finance Intermediaries

Municipal Financial Management Act

Municipal Finance Management Technical Assistance Project
Municipal Infrastructure Grant

Memorandum of Understanding

Master Systems Plan

Medium-Term Expenditure Framework
Multi-Year Price Determination

National Council of Provinces

National Economic Development and Labour Council
New Partnership for Africa’'s Development
National Energy Regulator of South Africa
National Energy Response Team

National Intelligence Agency

Net Open Forward Position
National Ports Authority

Office of the Accountant-General

Public Investment Corporation

Provident Fund for Associated Institutions

Public Finance Management Act

Public-Private Partnerships

Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act
Reconstruction and Development Programme
Regional Electricity Distributors

Regional Indicative Strategic Development Plan
Risk Management Framework

Southern African Customs Union

Southern African Development Community

SA Forestry Company Limited

South African Research Network

South African Police Services

South African Post Office
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SARB
SARS
SASRIA
SAQA
SCM
SCOA
SEC
SETA
SITA
SCOPA
SMMEs
SOEs
STRIPS
TBPS
TCTA
WTO

South African Reserve Bank

South African Revenue Service

South African Special Risks Insurance Association
South African Qualifications Authority

Supply Chain Management

Standard Chart of Accounts

US Securities and Exchange Commission

Sector Education and Training Authority

State Information Technology Agency

Standing Committee on Public Accounts

Small, Medium and Micro-Enterprises
State-owned Enterprises

Separate Trading of Registered Interest and Principal Securities
Treasury Best Practice Standards

Trans-Caldon Tunnel Authority

World Trade Organisation



ANNEXURE 2:INSTITUTIONS ASSOCIATEDWITHTHENATIONALTREASURY

The National Treasury works closely with a number of public institutions. It has operational and institutional independence and,
in some instances, constitutionally guaranteed autonomy. It produces its own annual reports.

Accounting Standards Board

Section 87 of the Public Finance Management Act (1 of 1999)
Coin Liabilities

SA Reserve Bank subsidiary

Corporation for Public Deposits
Corporation for Public Deposits Act (46 of 1984)

Development Bank of Southern Africa
Development Bank of Southern Africa Act (13 of 1997)

Financial and Fiscal Commission
Financial and Fiscal Commission Act (99 of 1997)

Financial Services Board
Financial Services Board Act (97 of 1990)

The following report to it:
Pension Fund Adjudication
Financial Markets Advisory Board
Pension Funds Advisory Board

Financial Intelligence Centre
Financial Intelligence Centre Act (38 of 2001)

Independent Development Trust

Policy Board for Financial Services Regulation
Policy Board for Financial Services and Regulation Act (141 of 1993)

Public Accounts and Auditors Board

Public Investment Corporation
Public Investment Corporation Act, 2004 (23 of 2004)

Registrar of Banks
Reports to SA Reserve Bank

SA Banknote Company
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary

SA Mint Company
SA Reserve Bank subsidiary

South African Reserve Bank
SA Reserve Bank Act (90 of 1989)

South African Revenue Service
SA Revenue Service Act (34 of 1997)

South African Special Risk Insurance Association (SASRIA)
Special Pensions Board

Special Pensions Advisory Board

State Tender Board

Statistical Council
Statistics Act (66 of 1976)

Tax Advisory Committee
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